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Glossary

B

Unless the content otherwise requires, the capitalized terms
used under Corporate Information, Financial Highlights,
Chairlady’s Statement, Management Discussion and
Analysis, Directors’ Report, Corporate Governance Report,
Environmental, Social and Governance Report, Biographical
Information of Directors and Senior Management and
Financial Summary shall have the respective meanings set

BRXEREMEIN RFRER  UBRE  TFEHS
EEENWEN  BEFEERE CEEARE  RE -
HekEAHRE EERSREEEZBEFBNUANLY
BB AFAREER L THENSRRE -

out below.

“2017 AGM”

[—E—tFRRBFRE

“AGM(s)”
[RRBFRE]

“ASP”
[FHIEE]

“Audit Committee”

[EZZEE

“Board”
5=

“Bonus Issue”

[4IRRE1T ]

“business day”
Z%H]

“Bye-Laws”
EEUR

“Chairlady” or “Ms. Chan”
ES AN e

“Chief Executive Officer”
(1T

“close associate(s)”

[EEBMEAL]

“Company” or “Sino Harbour”

[ARE) ] sk DEBEZER]

“Company Secretary”
[ARE ]

the AGM to be held on Thursday, 27 July 2017
BR_E—+FtAZT+H (2B BTHRFTBFAE

annual general meeting(s) of the Company

ARABTBEAE

average selling price

T 195 B

audit committee of the Board
EEgERZEY

board of Directors

S

issue of the bonus shares on the basis of one bonus share for every one
Share held on 4 August 2016
BR-ZZ—R"FN\RANBHEES —RRMEE —RAKRKRD A EEZITA

Bz

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB EmARRIPTE TR E

bye-laws of the Company
PA/NSIFEE]

Ms. CHAN Heung Ling, the NED and chairlady of the Board
BRI X T RIFNTEEREETSEE

the chief executive officer of the Company
RAFHTHAREL

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB R RIPTRE TR E

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited, incorporated in Bermuda with limited
liability, the issued Shares of which are listed and traded on the main board
of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 1663)

EREEREBARAR  —MRBEREIMRIZBERLAE - HEBTR
MR ER E KRR 5 (R R5E - 1663)

company secretary of the Company

RRARZ REWE
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“controlling shareholder(s)”

[ 2B AR

“Corporate Governance Code”

[{EEEATA

“Davi Pharmaceutical”

[ KRB

“Deputy Chairman”
[Bl=F/F ]

“Director(s)”

[E%]

“ESG Report”
[ESG % |

“Executive Director(s)”

[(ITEE]

“Extra Good”
[ Extra Good |

“Final Dividend”
[REARE. ]

“FY2016”
[ZF—RE ]

“GFA”
[#Rs2sEmTE

“Group”
[AREE

“HKS$”
[t

“Hong Kong”
[ &5

4

“Independent Auditor’
EohvEzE il

“INED(s)’
[ IENTTESE

“KPIs”
[ AR AR AR 1R ]

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
BB EmRAIPE T HRE

corporate governance code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
TR BR8P EL 2 (R EVE SRR

Zhejiang Davi Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
WIAREXRBR AT

the deputy chairman of the Company
RARIEIERE

director(s) of the Company

RRRIES

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
R g RERRE

executive Director(s)
WITES

Extra Good Enterprises Ltd.
Extra Good Enterprises Ltd.

the payment of a final dividend of HK1.0 cent per Share for FY2017
ZE—EHFIRN KRR EEMR 1.0

year ended 31 March 2016
HE_ZT—XF=ZA=1+—HILFE

gross floor area
HRFREEER

the Company and its subsidiaries
RRa REMHE R

Hong Kong dollar(s), the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BT BREAEERE

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PEEBFRTRR

independent auditor of the Company
/NI EAVE T

independent non-executive Director(s)

BYIFRITES

Key Performance Indicators
FRERUER

EBEREEERATF
2016/17 F1R < 03




Glossary

B

4

“Listing Rules’
[ Em#R Al

“Model Code”
2SN

“Mr. Wong”
R4

“NED”
[SEHITES]

“Nomination Committee”

[fR2Z 82

“Pan Hong Holdings”

R R

“PRC”
[FRE

“Register of Members”

[ R A fff )

4

“Remuneration Committee’

B ES S

“RMB”
[AR®]

“SFO”
[F& 5 K AR A

“Share(s)”
[t ]
“Shareholder(s)”
&

“sq. m.”

7%

“Stock Exchange”
[ Bt 32 P |

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
B FTE A LM AR A

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
AR REE S ET BT AESETE S ISR LETH

Mr. WONG Lam Ping, the husband of Ms. Chan
SEMKSEERREL L2 K

non-executive Director

FRITES

nomination committee of the Board

ExgR%%B8e

Pan Hong Holdings Group Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda with
limited liability whose issued shares are listed on the main board of Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited and a controlling shareholder of the
Company

NABZEBREEBERRAR - REREFMEAZHBRAR - HEBITRGO R
MINEERRZZAAERARIER LT - WARRBIZERAR

the People’s Republic of China and, for the purpose of this annual report,
excluding Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region and Taiwan
REARLNE - EAFERmME - TREES  RFISITREREE

register of members of the Company
PN e

remuneration committee of the Board
EEgYFNELZES

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
AR - hENEEEE

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong)
& R AEGE (FREIES7T1E)

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
AABIRARF0.01 BTz E@mAx

holder(s) of the Share(s)

RIDFFE A

square metre(s)

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEMARIMBERAT]
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“subsidiary(ies)” has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

[P~ 7] 8 BB LEWHRAAAETOERRE

“US$” United States dollar(s), the lawful currency of the United States of America
EF ¥ E ENBRERBUEEEE

“Year” or “FY2017” year ended 31 March 2017

[(REE] [ ZF— 4] ¥ BEZ—EF=A=T—AILFE

“%” per cent. or percentage

(%] B ¥ Bot

EBEREEERATF
2016/17 F1R < 05




Corporate Information

NEER

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

Mr. SHI Feng (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. WONG Lui
Ms. GAO Lan

Non-executive Director:
Ms. CHAN Heung Ling (Chairlady)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. XIE Gang
Mr. LEE Man To
Ms. ZHANG Juan

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. CHAN Chun Kit

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. WONG Lui
Mr. CHAN Chun Kit

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. LEE Man To (Chairman)
Mr. XIE Gang
Ms. ZHANG Juan

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. XIE Gang (Chairman)
Ms. CHAN Heung Ling
Mr. LEE Man To

Ms. ZHANG Juan

Mr. SHI Feng

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. XIE Gang (Chairman)
Mr. LEE Man To

Ms. ZHANG Juan

Mr. WONG Lui

Ms. GAO Lan

SHARE LISTING

Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 01663
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Corporate Informatio

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

http://www.sinoharbour.com.hk

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN PRC

Level 25 and 26, Sino Harbour Kaixuan Center,
Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan (f & 4LA8lhE)

No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, Honggu Tan Central District,
Nanchang City, Jiangxi Province,

the PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 1215, Tower B,
Hunghom Commercial Centre,
37-39 Ma Tau Wai Road,
Hunghom, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2363 1300
Facsimile:  (852) 2764 2160

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House,
2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Codan Services Limited

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11,

Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited
31/F., 148 Electric Road,

North Point,

Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

CIE D
http://www.sinoharbour.com.hk
BRRPEFTEEEMR
A

IPEEET

KA R AT AR KIE 1568 57
&4 A EE
EABYIER 25 R 26 [E
EBETEEXEME

B/A

JUBEATH)

558 B 78 37-39 5%
PRl
BEE1215 =

T ¢ (852) 2363 1300
fEHE : (852) 2764 2160

EERiE

Clarendon House,
2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda

FEROBBFETE

Codan Services Limited

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11,

Bermuda

RiIBFERL DB

EEBREAFELABR AR
i A
BRIE 148573112

BB
BRI ERREMEFMERAR
EES -]

EBEREEERATF
2016/17 F1R

( 07




Financial Highlights

MBERE

(RMB’OO(l) (RMB’OOQ)
(AR¥TT) - (AR®TT)
597,023
559,918 143,768
476,339 500,874 126,444
92,926 94,966
I I ]
2012/13 2013/14  2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2012/13  2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
Revenue Profit Attributable to Owners of
['ON the Company
PSS 2PNy ]
(RMB’000)
(AR®T )
1,597,254
1,523,746
1,397,949
1,306,542
1,191,064

2012/13  2013/14  2014/15  2015/16  2016/17

Net Assets
FEE
(RMB’000)
i i 48.0%  48.2%
240917 0% 2%
42.4%
37.1%
183,660
25.5%
119,526
67,768 I
2012/13  2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2012/13  2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
Cash and Cash Equivalents Gearing Ratio:
REeRELZEEY Total borrowings less
related deposit collateral/Total equity
EREGELE

BEE
BARBE R E R AR B
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | hereby present the annual report
of the Group for FY2017.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

In FY2017, the Group had recorded a revenue of
approximately RMB693.5 million, representing an increase
of 16.2% from FY2016. Gross profit margin increased from
13.4% in FY2016 to 19.3% in FY2017. Profit before tax
increased to approximately RMB123.0 million and profit
after tax amounted to approximately RMB73.7 million for
the Year. To thank our Shareholders for their continued
support to us, the Board has resolved to recommend the
payment of a Final Dividend HK1.0 cent per Share for
FY2017, subject to the approval of Shareholders at the
2017 AGM.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Market Review

During the Year, even though the PRC government
tightened restrictions on the property market, the annual
sales amount and sales area of commodity housing in China
both hit historical highs, which suggested that the market
demand was climbing. Thus, | believe the property market
will continue to grow steadily in 2017 and beyond.

Chairlady’s State

x5

BURR -

AANRKEFS  EUHREAEE _TLUFZ2FR-

R ES

R-Z—tMF AEERRBRANARKEBAE
T BT R FIEMN16.2% c ENEKH T —KH
FH18A%IEE T —LHFM19.3% - AFEEREA
EAMIBEHARE1280BE T - MEHEEFNROSA
RETBTAET REHSKRREAEENFHES &

SEHRREZFR T EMFIRBEESRRM 1.08112
REPKRE  HAGKRRR -_Z—LFRRAFRG L#t
/e

e d0)

35 B B

AEE - BEREBTRERYETSIEMARE - -
BENEREFEHESBEREEARGATEFNS -
MILA R - BB RIECERFH - Bl - RABEHED
BER T F RN ERSEE -

BEEAEZEREEERAT
2016/17 F ik

{ 09




Chairlady’s Statement

ERBE

New Business Diversity

The Group’s property projects continued to be well received
by the market. At the same time, the Group stepped up
effort to explore opportunities in the pharmaceutical related
industry. In January 2017, the Group set up a subsidiary in
Guangxi Province to aid the expansion of its stem cell
business in the local market. Taking into account the
government’s supportive policies, the aging population in
China and rising health consciousness of the Chinese
people, we believe the pharmaceutical related industry will
soon become another robust business growth driver of the
Company and will help it generate better returns to our
Shareholders.

APPRECIATION

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my gratitude to all Shareholders and
staff of the Group for their support and trust in the Company
throughout the Year.

CHAN Heung Ling
Chairlady
Hong Kong, 19 June 2017

HEBZ T
AEBENMERBFERZITHEL - AR - XEE TR
MEBNHRRERBRBITRODHE - R-F—LF—57
AEBREREKL—EHEAR - KB EBARE
BREWTHIER - ERBRFRKRBER - FBEAOZE
ERPBEARNREEBIER  RPBEERBBITED
AKKBARBN S —BYRBFIERE D - URHHA
DA BIREREERR

EC
Bik AAREEFE HURTHARE2BBRAR
BINBEAFERE AR ANZERISERR RO
8 o

FE
BRI 22
e —T—tFRATNR

1 0 Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17




Management Discussion and Analysi

EEENWmRD M

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS IN FY2017
COMPARED TO FY2016

Revenue

In FY2017, the Group recorded revenue of approximately
RMB693.5 million, representing an increase of 16.2% from
approximately RMB597.0 million in FY2016.

Revenue in FY2017 was primarily derived from the delivery
of residential units of Nanchang Sino Harbour Kaixuan City
(B EEB IR Zone 3, Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting Yuan (#E
MEEZEFZBT) Phase 3 as well as Yichun Royal Lake City (B
HFHML) Phase 2, all in the PRC. In FY2016, revenue was
mainly attributable to the delivery of residential units of
Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting Yuan Phase 3 as well as Yichun Royal
Lake City Phase 2.

The following table sets out an analysis of the revenue for (i)
residential properties, (i) commercial properties, and (i) car
parking spaces during FY2017:

CEtUFHECE-APFE ML ROE

LN

RZE—EUF AEESZEBSBANARBEI35HE
T TR R FEHARESI7.0BEITEIN16.2% ©

“EMFEZRATIEZRBURFTENEEZEIE
WM=EE mMNEFXER=HREREHRN _BETE
NS e RZT— R F - WAZ BRI EMMEE
Bl =R EF RN — B E A

TREY LB FERNOEEWE - (i) 55 %W 2 i)
FEMAZWADHT

Percentage
2017 2016 change
—E—+tF —ZE-RF BEHD L
%
() Residential () E=
— GFA sold — BEEERE
(in'sg.m.) (LA KET) 131,273 119,015 10.3
— ASP —FHEE
(RMB per sg.m.) (BFARARE) 5,121 4,918 4.
— Revenue (approx. RMB’000) — WA (HAREFIT) 672,227 585,333 14.8
(i) Commercial (i) P
— GFA sold — BEEERE
(in sq.m.) (BASETKED) 1,376 294 368.0
— ASP — FTHEE
(RMB per sq.m.) (BFARARE) 12,300 10,527 16.8
— Revenue (approx. RMB’000) — WA (HARETIT) 16,925 3,095 446.8
(i) Car parking spaces (i) BEAL
— Revenue (approx. RMB’000) — WA (HARETIT) 4,360 8,595 (49.9)
Total revenue (approx. RMB’000) WA BEE (M ARETIT) 693,512 597,023 16.2
EREREEBRALF

2016/17 F1R
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREFN WD

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS IN FY2017
COMPARED TO FY2016 (Continued)

Cost of Sales and Gross Profit Margin

Cost of sales increased from approximately RMB516.7
million in FY2016 to approximately RMB559.4 million in
FY2017. In FY2017, a greater portion of the revenue of the
Group was attributable to the delivery of residential units of
Nanchang Sino Harbour Kaixuan City Zone 3, which had a
higher gross profit margin compared with other residential
units delivered. Consequently, gross profit margin increased
from 13.4% in FY2016 to 19.3% in FY2017.

Other Income and Other Gains and Losses

Other income and other gains and losses decreased from
approximately RMB101.9 million in FY2016 to approximately
RMB53.9 million in FY2017. The decrease was mainly
attributable to a decrease in net fair value gain for the
Group’s investment properties.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses decreased from
approximately RMB18.7 million in FY2016 to approximately
RMB17.9 million in FY2017. The lower selling and
distribution expenses in FY2017 were mainly due to a
decrease in the marketing expenses incurred for Yichun
Royal Lake City.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased by 2.6% to
approximately RMB40.3 million in FY2017 from
approximately RMB39.3 million in FY2016. The increase
was mainly attributable to the increase in staff cost.

Finance Costs

The Group recorded approximately RMB5.9 million non-
capitalised finance costs in FY2017 (FY2016: nil).

Profit for the Year

As a cumulative effect of the foregoing factors, the Group
recorded a profit before income tax of approximately
RMB1283.0 million in FY2017, compared to approximately
RMB122.8 million in FY2016.

In line with the increase in taxable profits, income tax
expenses increased to approximately RMB49.3 million in
FY2017 from approximately RMB29.7 million in FY2016.

As a result, the Group had recorded a profit after tax of
approximately RMB73.7 million in FY2017, representing a
decrease of 20.9% from that of FY2016.

1 2 Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17

CE—+tHFHECE- AU EEEL RO E
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HERARERNR

HEKRAE - ZE— R HEHARESI6.7TESETEMNE—
T PHFEHARKSS0O4BET RS+ F @&
KD AREBRAFREEZ BN —EHEFEE
MHRA BEMEEEMELERBESHNERE -
At EFRBE - — NP FEN184%ENE T —+
B9 19.3% °

H AW A LU H A K35 K &5 18
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ZHIEEESAREREYEZ R EREF R D
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HERDHEH
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PSR FER

EEEA

EEERAR T AUFHNARKIIEETIEIN2.6%
ETHHFHARKIOIEE T TEHREILK
AIEINFTEL ©

BB A A
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—NEHEE ) ZIFEAMER BRI -

FERER
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ERENWRDN

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT
31 MARCH 2017

Property, Plant and Equipment

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had property, plant and
equipment of approximately RMB56.2 million, compared to
approximately RMB58.7 million as at 31 March 2016. The
decrease was mainly attributable to depreciation provided in
FY2017.

Investment Properties

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had investment properties
at fair value of approximately RMB536.8 million, compared
to RMB491.9 million as at 31 March 2016. The increase
comprised mainly the net fair value gain of the Group’s
investment properties.

Interest in an Associate

The Group had interest in an associate of approximately
RMB5.7 million as at 31 March 2017 compared to
approximately RMB6.1 million as at 31 March 2016, which
represented a 30% equity interest in Davi Pharmaceutical as
at 31 March 2017 and the share of results of an associate in
FY2017.

Other Financial Assets

In FY2017, the Group acquired equity interests in a number
of entities incorporated in the PRC at an aggregate
consideration of approximately RMB8.6 million. The Group
does not have control nor significant influence in these
entities. The Group accounts for these investments as other
financial assets.

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss increased
from RMB4.8 million as at 31 March 2016 to RMB7.1 million
as at 31 March 2017 mainly due to an increased in the fair
value of the profit guarantee as at 31 March 2017 in relation
to the acquisition of a 30% equity interest in Davi
Pharmaceutical.

REEBE—+tFE=ZA=+—HAZ2HERRDM

M BERRE

R-ZE—tF=A=+—8" ZJSE@%HW% 5 K
BEOARES62HET MR _F—A"F=A=1+—
BROARKESBTEE T RERBEIEREAN_-F
— I FREONITE -

BREM=

R-ZF—tF=ZA=1+—8 FAEEHEREVELR
BENARKS68EETL MR _T—R"F=ZA=1—H
WREMEARERARE419BET - ZFEMEE
BN ANEBIREYEAELNF AN BRI FRAE -

REE QT 2B

RZZ—tF=ZA=1—8 XEEHEERBELQFLZ
BENARESTABLIMR _ZT—R"F=ZA=1t—HA
MARBEIBETL - RBMERB 2 a /R T —tF
A=t HRAREXARINMAMA T —tMF
DIEBE R R ZRAE -

HtteMEE
Rt MF AEEUEHNARKSAETZK
BYEBETHEEMRIERN KRG - AEBHZEE
BYBRGABATES) AEESZFREFESEM
SREEIR -

BARERBRIIRZERMERE

BRARERERIRZEREEHNR T —R"F=H
=t+-—HOARK4BEABLENENR _—_T—+tF=H

=t+—HHWARE71BE - SRENTER_FT—+F
ZA=T-—HABUBARERI% BB ZMERER
SAEIBINPTER

EBEREEERATF
2016/17 F1R
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREFN WD

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT
31 MARCH 2017 (Continued)

Properties Held under Development

As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s properties held under
development increased to approximately RMB1,379.5
million from approximately RMB1,312.5 million as at 31
March 2016. The increase was in tandem with the
construction progress of Han Zhi Yun Commercial Centre
(ZE 28w % 0 ) (formerly known as Sino Harbour
Kaixuan Square (£ ¢ SlIEES)).

Properties Held for Sale

Properties held for sale decreased from approximately
RMB729.6 million as at 31 March 2016 to approximately
RMB360.0 million as at 31 March 2017, mainly due to the
handover of property units of Nanchang Sino Harbour
Kaixuan City Zone 3, Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting Yuan Phase 3 as
well as Yichun Royal Lake City Phase 2 to the buyers.

Accounts Receivable

As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s accounts receivable
amounted to approximately RMB1.5 million, compared to
approximately RMB2.7 million as at 31 March 2016. The
decrease was mainly due to the recovery of accounts
receivable in FY2017. Since the balances were considered
fully recoverable, no impairment provision was required.

Prepayments and Other Receivables

As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s prepayments and other
receivables amounted to approximately RMB106.7 million,
compared to approximately RMB134.9 million as at 31
March 2016. The decrease was mainly due to a decrease in
the prepayments to the contractors for the construction of
the Group’s project.

Tax Recoverable

Tax recoverable decreased to approximately RMB20.8
million as at 31 March 2017 from approximately RMB24.3
million as at 31 March 2016 mainly attributable to a
decrease in prepayment of the PRC income tax during
FY2017.

Structured Bank Balances

Structured bank balances represented structured bank
balances which are placed in banks with enhance yield than
general bank balances.

1 4 Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17
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RIE—tF=ZA=1+—8 AEEBRMNFAREME
WHIEEEARARKI106.7BET MRZT—RE=
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REVIEW OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT
31 MARCH 2017 (Continued)

Pledged Deposits

Long-term and short-term pledged deposits decreased
from approximately RMB311.0 million as at 31 March 2016
to approximately RMB221.6 million as at 31 March 2017.
The decrease was mainly due to a decrease in deposits
pledged against and secured for the bank and other loans
to the Group.

Accounts Payable, Accruals, Receipts in Advance and
Other Payables

Accounts payable increased to approximately RMB79.9
million as at 31 March 2017 from approximately RMB48.8
million as at 31 March 2016 due to an increase in amounts
payable to the suppliers for construction costs incurred in
respect of Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting Yuan Phase 3 and Yichun
Royal Lake City Phase 2.

Accruals, receipts in advance and other payables mainly
comprised the advance receipts from customers in respect
of the deposits and prepayments for the Group’s property
pre-sales, the accrued construction costs and project-
related expenses that are based on the progress of project
development but are not due for payment.

Accruals, receipts in advance and other payables decreased
to approximately RMB466.8 million as at 31 March 2017
from approximately RMB813.3 million as at 31 March 2016.
The decrease mainly represented the advance receipts
realized as revenue in FY2017, which was partially offset by
the receipts from customers for the deposits and
prepayments for the Group’s property pre-sales in FY2017.

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities increased from approximately
RMB72.4 million as at 31 March 2016 to approximately
RMBB80.0 million as at 31 March 2017 mainly attributable to
the provision of deferred tax liabilities in respect of fair value
gain of investment properties.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Cash Position
Cash and Bank Balances

In FY2017, the Group had recorded a net cash inflow of
approximately RMB99.7 million from operating activities,
mainly attributable to a decrease in properties held under
development and properties held for sale.

Net cash inflow from investing activities in FY2017 was
approximately RMB78.6 million, which was mainly due to a
decrease in pledged deposits.

Net cash outflow from financing activities in FY2017 was
approximately RMB33.9 million mainly attributable to the
repayments of loan principals and interests and they were
partially offset by the receipts from new bank and other
loans.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had cash and bank
balances of approximately RMB264.4 million, of which
mostly were denominated in RMB and HK$ (31 March
2016: RMB119.5 million).

BORROWINGS AND GEARING RATIO
Bank and Other Loans

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had total borrowings of
approximately RMB832.8 million (2016: approximately
RMB815.2 million), which were repayable as follows:

BERR
RERWITHE

RoB—+BF  AREAGEEDRERLRAFE
WARMTESRT  TERRBEETNERSENE
D

R-ZF—tMF KEREZHZRERAFEOAR
786 BB TEHANERRERD -

R-ZZF—tMF KAEBRETZHZRERLFROAR
%3BOAET  TEHNEEERAE KA EIAKERK
FERTT R EME R -

R-ZE—+F=ZA=+—8 AEBZRS RETES
HEBANREBIABE TN - E—XRFEF=A=1+—8":
ARBA195BE L) @ ER AL UARE XEITTEHE °

BEREERAMFELR
RITREME

RZE—+F=ZA=+—H AEBENREEHARE
8R8HEL(ZE—RNF: HARKGIS2HET) ° 18
FREIBEWT

2017 2016
—=E—+F ZE—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBT R

Repayment period EEE
Within one year or on demand —FAFILEREE 228,258 366,692
More than one year, but not exceeding two years B—FEATNBBME 98,849 190,309
More than two years but not exceeding five years BRFENBBRAF 505,716 258,200
832,823 815,201

As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s total borrowings were
denominated in RMB and US$ and bore interest at floating
rate ranging from 1.92% to 7.50% per annum.
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BORROWINGS AND GEARING RATIO (Continued)
Gearing Ratio

Gearing ratio is measured by borrowings (total amount of
bank and other loans) less related deposit collateral over
total equity. As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s gearing ratio
was 42.4%. The Group has implemented certain loan
management policies which include close monitoring of the
gearing ratio and any changes in interest rates.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE

Details of the financial guarantee of the Group are set out in
notes 17 and 33 of the consolidated financial statements.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Details of the capital commitments of the Group are set out
in notes 17 and 31 of the consolidated financial statements.

FUNDING AND TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopts a prudent funding and treasury policy
with regard to its overall business operations. Historically,
we have met our capital expenditures, working capital and
other liquidity requirements principally from cash generated
from our operations and bank and other borrowings. Going
forward, we expect to fund our working capital, capital
expenditures and other capital requirements with a
combination of various sources, including but not limited to
cash generated from our operations, bank and other
borrowings as well as other external equity and debt
financing. The Group’s objectives are to maintain a prudent
financial policy, to monitor liquidity ratios against risk limits
and to maintain contingency plan for funding to ensure that
the Group maintains sufficient cash to meet its liquidity
requirements.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Most of the Group’s transactions are carried out in RMB
which is the functional currency of the Company and most
of its operating subsidiaries. Exposures to currency
exchange rates arise from certain of the Group’s cash and
bank balances and bank loans which are denominated in
HK$ and US$. The Group does not use derivative financial
instruments to hedge its foreign currency risk. The Group
reviews its foreign currency exposures regularly and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arises.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2017, the Group pledged its property, plant
and equipment, investment properties, properties held
under development, properties held for sale, and bank
deposits of approximately RMB1,666.2 million (2016:
approximately RMB1,305.9 million) to various banks and
financial institutions to secure loan facilities granted to the
Group.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

The Group did not have any material acquisition or disposal
of assets, subsidiaries and affiliated companies during
FY2017 (FY2016: nil).

No important events affecting the Group have occurred
since 31 March 2017.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

The Group did not hold any significant investment in FY2017
(FY2016: nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities (31 March 2016: nil).

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

There were 242 employees in the Group as at 31 March
2017 (81 March 2016: 222). Staff remuneration packages
are determined in consideration of market conditions and
the performance of the individuals concerned, and are
subject to review from time to time. The Group also provides
other staff benefits including medical insurance, and grants
discretionary incentive bonuses to eligible staff based on
their performance and contributions to the Group. Employee
costs, including Directors’ emoluments, amounted to
approximately RMB30.1 million in FY2017 (FY2016:
approximately RMB27.7 million).
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COMPANY UPDATE DEBRHHEE

Property Pre-sales Y TEE

The cumulative results for the pre-sale and delivery of HE-_Z—+HFAAt++tH FEH ZWEEE R
properties under each project up to 17 May 2017 are ZE2FHER AT

summarised as follows:

Nanchang Sino

Harbour Fuzhou Hua Yichun Royal

Kaixuan City Cui Ting Yuan Lake City

Zone 2 Phase 3 Phase 2

BEEBIEE A WNERRER = BEMBE =5

Estimated total GFA released for sale 34,095 sg. m. 117,177 sq. m. 101,587 sg. m.
(total units) (180 units) (1,127 units) (1,064 units)
TRETHE L AN E C MRS (BB EA) 34,005 F oK (18018) 117,177 FAK (1,127 &) 101,587 ¥ 73K (1,064 1&)
Estimated total GFA pre-sold 18,378 sq. m. 117,065 sg. m. 100,612 sg. m.
(total units) (99 units) (1,126 units) (1,054 units)

Et DR AR EmE (RENHA)

18,378 F 75 K (99 &)

117,085 F 5K (1,126 &)

100,612 F 75 K (1,054 &)

Percentage of pre-sale 54% 99% 99%
BEMGL X BA254 BH 299 BH299
Pre-sale GFA (units pre-sold) not handed 15,131 sq. m. 4,124 sg. m. 10,164 sq. m.

to buyers as at 31 March 2017" (86 units) (40 units) (93 units)

BE_Z—+F=A=T—HHARNEFZ
ERERTERE(CREENLHE)"

Pre-sale value not handed over to buyers
as at 31 March 2017"

15,131 F /5K (86 @)

RMB?208.18 million

4,124 F 5K (401&)

RMB20.48 million

10,164 3 75K (93 &)

RMB42.56 million

HE_ZE—+tF=-A=t—BHARAREPFZ ARE20818BETT ARE2048BETT ARE4256 BB
EREETFHEESE"
ASP per sg. m.* RMB13,759 RMB4,966 RMB4,187
BEFKRTHER" AR#13,759 7T AR# 4,966 T AR# 4,187 T
Expected completion date Completed Completed Completed
TEHRTERK B ER B®%T B®T BE%T
= ASP of the projects is computed as follows: Pre-sale value not 1 BREHEAZFHEBIHELLUNT  HABKEFZERE
handed over to buyers divided by pre-sale GFA not handed over BFRSERUSABREFZCFEEETHER -
to buyers.
“ Pre-sale value not handed over to buyers is computed as follows: N HARBREFPZEEEBFRLHEIEST AN  FUEE
Pre-sales at the beginning of the year plus new pre-sales during CEMNFANFIEEERFALBRES (REANERRIHE)
the year less those handed over to buyers during the year TEE o

(recognised as sales during the year).

CONSTRUCTION PROGRESS AND DEVELOPING BEEERFARER

PROJECTS

The Group will maintain our construction scale in order to
offer enough GFA available for sale and for delivery to
support our growth in future.

A B S H RSO R O R SR SR 4L
BRI EHERICER -

EREREEARAR
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LAND BANK

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had land bank with total
planned saleable GFA of approximately 2,562,711 sq. m. in
5 cities in the PRC.

Tk
RZFB—tF=ZA=1—8 XEERPERERDHE
BHREIRI SR EMEN) /82,562, 711 F 77K 2 L -

Planned
saleable GFA
BRETE
EEmBE

Completed properties held for sales
Properties under development
Properties held for further development

Total 48

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Property industry in China had shifted from a more relaxed
environment to a more restricted environment during 2016.
Despite that, market demand had remained strong driven
by the country’s “two-child policy” and Chinese citizens’
advanced standard of living. The annual sales area of
commodity housing in China grew by 22.5% year-on-year
to 1.57 billion square metres. The sales amount of
commodity housing also surged at an even higher rate by
34.8% to approximately RMB11,700 billion. Both the sales
area and sales amount had hit historical highs. Since the
Central Economic Work Conference has set “seeking
progress while maintaining stability” as the main theme of
the Chinese economy in 2017, the Group expects that
China’s property market will maintain a stable growth in
2017 and benefit from the intention of implementing different
policies in different cities to reduce the stock of unsold
homes cited at the National People’s Congress and National
Committee of the Chinese Peoples’ Political Consultative
Conference. The Group believes that these national industry
policies will continue to create a favorable environment for
the long term development of the property industry.
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FUTURE OUTLOOK (Continued)

The Group has strived to achieve business diversification in
recent years and identify opportunities to further its
expansion. Observing China’s strong support to the bio-
pharmaceutical industry and that industry’s great potential,
the Group has seized early-mover opportunities and
expanded into the industry since 2015. The Group set up a
new subsidiary in January 2017 in order to expand its stem
cell business to the Guangxi market. Looking ahead,
according to the newly publicized “Development Plan and
Guidance for the Pharmaceutical Industry”, China will fully
implement the “Healthy China” strategic directive during the
13th Five-Year Plan. The ageing population, rising health
awareness of citizens and advances in new technologies
should also promote the unprecedented rapid growth in
China’s pharmaceutical industry, making the pharmaceutical
and healthcare industry one of the industries with the
greatest potential in the country. Thus, the Group has
strong confidence in the development prospects of the bio-
pharmaceutical industry.

The Group will continue to keep a close watch on the
changes in national policies and flexibly adjust its
development strategies in order to maintain a stable growth
in its property business. Meanwhile, the Group will also
actively explore development opportunities in the bio-
pharmaceutical industry, expand its existing business
presence and diversify its business and income sources so
as to generate higher returns for the Shareholders.
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ESEHRE

The Board presents this annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities and other particulars of the
subsidiaries are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the Year.

RESULTS AND FINAL DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page
83 of this annual report.

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of the
Final Dividend to the Shareholders whose names will appear
on the Register of Members on Thursday, 3 August 2017.

The proposed Final Dividend is subject to the approval by
the Shareholders at the 2017 AGM. It is expected that the
Final Dividend would be paid to the Shareholders on
Tuesday, 15 August 2017.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2017 AGM is scheduled to be held on Thursday, 27
July 2017. A notice convening the 2017 AGM will be issued
and sent to the Shareholders in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
2017 AGM

The Register of Members will be closed from Monday, 24
July 2017 to Thursday, 27 July 2017, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of Shares will be effected. In
order to be eligible to attend the 2017 AGM, all completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong
branch share registrar, Boardroom Share Registrars (HK)
Limited at 31/F., 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong
Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 21
July 2017.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
(CONTINUED)

Proposed Final Dividend

Conditional on the passing of the resolution approving the
Final Dividend by the Shareholders at the 2017 AGM, the
Register of Members will be closed on Wednesday, 2
August 2017 and Thursday, 3 August 2017, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will be
effected. In order to qualify for the Final Dividend, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch
share registrar, Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited at
31/F., 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong, for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 1 August
2017.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and review on the business activities of
the Group as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) of Hong Kong, including a fair review
of the Group’s business as well as future development in
the Group’s business can be found in the sections headed
“Chairlady’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” set out on pages 9 and 10 and pages 11 to 21 of
this annual report respectively. The above sections form
part of this report. No important event affecting the Group
has occurred since the end of the Year.

Principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group
Business Risk

As a property development company, our capability to
identify and acquire suitable land for property development
is crucial to our business. Our business, financial condition
and results of operations may be adversely affected if we
are unable to acquire suitable land for property development
at prices that allow our Group to achieve reasonable returns
upon the sale of our development properties.

Policy and Market Risk

As a key economic pillars industry for the PRC’s
development, the property sector is more susceptible to the
impact of macro-economic and industrial policies. Our
Group’s performance may be adversely affected by
changes of the political, social and economic conditions in
the PRC if we are unable to respond to the ever-changing
market condition in a timely manner.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group
(continued)

Expansion Risk

While the Group is currently principally engaged in the
business of property development, it has been exploring
other possible business areas and seeking to expand into
new business sectors. However, our experiences may not
be applicable to the new business sectors. Our Group’s
performance may be adversely affected by the failure to
expand into new business sectors.

Financial Risk

An analysis of the Group’s financial risk management is
disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Key Performance Indicators

Please refer to the section headed “Financial Summary” on
pages 189 and 190 of this annual report for further details.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations
that Have a Significant Impact

During the Year, the Company has complied with all the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the operations of the Group.

Relationship with stakeholders

The Group recognizes that employees, customers and
suppliers are keys to its sustainable development and has
maintained a good relationship with its stakeholders.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group believes that sustainable development is the
foundation for the long-term growth of businesses and
society. As a responsible property developer, the Group has
complied with the laws and regulations regarding
environmental protection. The Group has submitted
environmental impact assessment report for each of the
Group’s projects before the commencement of construction
and obtained approval from the relevant environmental
protection bureau after completion of the project.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages
189 and 190 of this annual report.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial performance and cash flows for the Year of the
Group and the financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2017 are set out on pages 75 to 188 of this annual
report.

SHARE CAPITAL

1,232,000 new Shares were issue during the Year under the
Bonus Issue. Details of the movement in the share capital of
the Company during the Year are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profits attributable to the Shareholders, before dividends, of
RMB52,364,000 (2016: RMB94,966,000) have been
transferred to reserves. Other movements in reserves are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on pages 86 and 87 of this annual report.

At 31 March 2017, the reserves of the Company available
for distribution to Shareholders as calculated in accordance
with the provisions of the laws of Bermuda amounted to
approximately RMB22,869,000 (31 March 2016: Nil).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, the Company did not redeem any of the
Shares listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange nor
did the Company or any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell
any of such Shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Bye-Laws or the laws of Bermuda in relation to the issue of
new Shares.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
for its employees in Hong Kong and participates in a defined
contribution retirement scheme organized by the municipal
government of the PRC for its employees. Particulars of
these retirement schemes are set out in note 3.18 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to its Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BANK AND OTHER LOANS

Details of bank and other loans of the Group are set out in
note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, sales to the Group’s largest customer and
five largest customers amounted to approximately 0.6%
and approximately 2.7% respectively of the Group’s revenue
for the Year.

During the Year, payment attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier and five largest suppliers amounted to
approximately 33.7% and 72.8% of total payment under
construction contracts for the Year respectively.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers or customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. SHI Feng (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. WONG Lui
Ms. GAO Lan

Non-executive Director:
Ms. CHAN Heung Ling (Chairlady)
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DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. XIE Gang
Mr. LEE Man To
Ms. ZHANG Juan

In accordance with bye-laws 84(1) of the Bye-Laws, Mr.
WONG Lui and Ms. GAO Lan (both Executive Directors) as
well as Ms. ZHANG Juan (an INED) will retire from office by
rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the 2017 AGM.

The Company has received from each of the INEDs, namely
Mr. XIE Gang, Mr. LEE Man To and Ms. ZHANG Juan an
annual written confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. As at the date of
this report, the Company considers that all of them are
independent.

The biographical information of the Directors and senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 69 to 72 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Ms. Chan, Mr. SHI Feng, Mr. WONG Lui and Ms.
GAO Lan has a service contract with the Company for a
term of three years and each of these service contracts is
subject to termination by either party giving not less than six
months’ written notice to the other.

Each of the INEDs has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for an initial term of one year and
thereafter shall continue year to year subject to termination
by either party giving not less than one month’s notice to
the other.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors proposed
for re-election at the 2017 AGM has a service contract or
letter of appointment with the Company, which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee is set up for, among other
matters, reviewing the Group’s emolument policy and
structure of all remuneration of the Directors and senior
management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market practices.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ emoluments are subject to the
recommendations of the Remuneration Committee and the
Board’s approval. The emoluments are determined by the
Board by reference to the Directors’ duties, responsibilities
and performance and the results of the Group.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five
individuals with the highest emoluments for the Year are set
out in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES

As at 31 March 2017, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

(i) Long position in the Shares
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Approximate percentage

Name of Director/ Number of Capital/ of shareholding
chief executive Shares held nature of interest in the Company*
HERATREZ
B TETHRASHSE FriEiR B # A 55 REME BRBEDE*
Ms. Chan 1,800,000,000 Interest of controlled 73.05%
(Note) corporations
PRzt (B3 REHEE R

Note: These Shares are held by Pan Hong Holdings as beneficial
owner. Pan Hong Holdings is owned as to 56.22% by
Extra Good, which is in turn owned as to 52% by Mr.
Wong and 48% by Ms. Chan.

The percentage represents the total number of the Shares
interested divided by the number of issued Shares as at
31 March 2017 (i.e. 2,464,000,000 Shares).
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Long positions in the shares of associated
corporations

Name of associated
corporations

Name of Directors/
chief executive

Capacity/
nature of interest

EERERITRAE 2R (F)

(i) MHEBEZERGOZER

Number, class and
percentage of issued shares in
associated corporations

i -9 HAEEEZENE RITROHE -
FETHAERR i) b g B RERME HRRBADL
Mr. SHI Feng Pan Hong Holdings Beneficial owner 473,900 ordinary shares (0.09%)
Al A AR ERlEA 473,900 A% & 3% (0.09%)
Ms. Chan Pan Hong Holdings Beneficial owner, 328,193,094 ordinary shares (64.06%)
family interest and (Note)
interest of a controlled
corporation
BR2z+ B FERR EnEE A« K&z 328,193,094 J& I i@ % (64.06%)
R EZES A AR (F3E)
Ms. Chan Extra Good Beneficial owner 48 ordinary shares (48%)
PR 22+ Extra Good EoEA A A8 %L 3E A% (48%)

Note: Ms. Chan is interested in 328,193,094 ordinary shares
(approximately 64.06% of all the issued shares) of Pan
Hong Holdings, which comprises: (1) 14,443,300 ordinary
shares of Pan Hong Holdings held by her; (2) 25,749,794
ordinary shares of Pan Hong Holdings held by her
husband, Mr. Wong, in which she is deemed to be
interested; and (3) 288,000,000 ordinary shares of Pan
Hong Holdings held by Extra Good, in which she is
deemed to be interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had or was
deemed to have any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were required (i) to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) pursuant to section 352
of the SFO to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or (iii) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable a Director
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of the
Shares or any shares in other body corporate.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2017, insofar as is known to the Directors
or chief executive of the Company, the following persons
(other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) or
organisations had or were deemed or taken to have
interests and/or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares, which fell to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or
which would be required, pursuant to section 336 of SFO,
to be entered into the register referred to therein, were as
follows:

FERR2ED

RZFB—tF=ZA=1—8 BEFILARFETETH
ABFE - TOIAL(MERESHAARREEITHAER)
AR A A £ S AR R AR 10 PR BB SR AR AE AR E A
BARB(ESZ LB HEID FEXVERE2 37 & 2 %X
AR E R E RRIECGE 7 RS %D F 336 IRBCA
Hpre B 2 gamk doXamT

Long position in the Shares ARG zEE
Approximate percentage
Number of Capital/ of shareholding
Name of Shareholders Shares held nature of interest in the Company*
EARDRREZ
REREHE FrEERG AR B nttE BMOBD*
Pan Hong Holdings 1,800,000,000 Beneficial owner 73.05%
NPT AR EmEBA
Extra Good 1,800,000,000 Interest of a controlled 73.05%
(Note) corporation
Extra Good (FF5E) SR AERER
Mr. Wong 1,800,000,000 Interest of controlled 73.05%
(Note) corporations
A (M%) RIEHEE R

Note: Pan Hong Holdings is owned as to 56.22% by Extra Good, which
is in turn owned as to 52% by Mr. Wong, the husband of Ms.
Chan, and 48% by Ms. Chan. By virtue of SFO, Mr. Wong is
deemed to be interested in the same parcel of Shares held by
Extra Good and Pan Hong Holdings.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, the
Directors are not aware of any other persons (other than a
Director or chief executive of the Company) or organisations
who/which had, or were deemed or taken to have an
interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares,
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and were required
to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.

5 The percentage represents the total number of the Shares

interested divided by the number of issued Shares as at 31
March 2017 (i.e. 2,464,000,000 Shares).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions as disclosed in note 34(a) to
the consolidated financial statements also fell under the
definition of “continuing connected transaction” in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. As the annual amount involved in
this continuing connected transaction is less than
HK$3,000,000, such continuing connected transaction
qualifies as a de minimis transaction under Rule 14A.76(1)
of the Listing Rules, that is exempt from the reporting,
annual review, announcement and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements.

DISCLOSURE UNDER RULES 13.18 AND 13.21 OF
THE LISTING RULES

On 5 August 2016, Hangzhou Ganglian Real Estate
Company Limited (1 /N /& Bt & 2% B R A 7]) (‘Hangzhou
Ganglian”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as
borrower, entered into a loan agreement (the “Loan
Agreement”) with Hang Seng Bank (China) Limited,
Hangzhou Branch (18 4 tR47 (R EI) BR 2GRN 1T) (the
“Bank”), as lender, pursuant to which the Bank had agreed
to grant to Hangzhou Ganglian a loan of up to RMB450
million (the “Loan”). The final maturity date of all outstanding
amounts under the Loan Agreement will be the date falling
36 months after the first day of draw down of the Loan by
Hangzhou Ganglian or the date of termination of the Loan
Agreement for breach of the terms therein, whichever is the
earlier.

The Loan Agreement requires, among others, that Mr.
Wong and Ms. Chan retain their effective control over the
Company at any time, any failure to comply with which will
constitute an event of default under the Loan Agreement.

As at 31 March 2017, approximately RMB148.9 million of
the Loan had been drawn and utilized.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN ARRANGEMENT,
TRANSACTION OR CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No arrangements, transactions or contracts of significance
in relation to the Group’s business, to which the Company
or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director has a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, none of
the Directors are considered to have interests in a business
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group, as defined in the
Listing Rules.

NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKING

On 30 June 2011, the Company and Pan Hong Holdings
entered into a non-compete undertaking (the “Non-
compete Undertaking”) to avoid any potential
competitions between the business of the Company and
Pan Hong Holdings after the spin-off and separate listing of
the Company. Information about the relevant undertakings
between the Company and Pan Hong Holdings was
disclosed in the section headed “Relationship with
Controlling Shareholders” of the Company’s prospectus
dated 12 July 2011.

The Company has received a written confirmation from Pan
Hong Holdings that it had complied with the terms of the
Non-compete Undertaking for the Year. The INEDs have
also reviewed the said confirmation and are of the view that
Pan Hong Holdings had complied with the terms of the
Non-compete Undertaking.

SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed above, no Shareholder had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the
Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITIES

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws, the Directors shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which may incur or sustain
by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in
or about the execution of their duties. In addition, the
Company has taken out appropriate and sufficient insurance
coverage on Directors’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
taken against Directors arising out of corporate activities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The principal corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance
Report of this annual report.
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ISSUE OF EQUITY SECURITIES

On 27 May 2016, the Board resolved to allot and issue new
Shares on the basis of one bonus Share for every one
ordinary Share held to the Shareholders. After the ordinary
resolution had been approved by the Shareholders at the
AGM held on 26 July 2016, a total of 1,232,000,000 new
Shares were allotted and issued pursuant to the Bonus
Issue on 11 August 2016. The Bonus Issue was completed
on 12 August 2016. Please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 27 May 2016, 20 June 2016 and 12
August 2016 and the circular of the Company dated 24
June 2016 for details.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed above, no equity-linked agreements that
will or may result in the Company issuing Shares or that
require the Company to enter into any agreements that will
or may result in the Company issuing Shares were entered
into by the Company during the Year or subsisted at the
end of the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Board confirms that the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float as required by the Listing Rules (i.e. at
least 25% of the issued Shares in public hands) during the
Year and as at the date of this report.

DONATION

The Group did not make any chariable donations during the
Year (2016: Nil).

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has discussed and reviewed with the
management the annual results, the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the Year and this annual report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

BDO Limited retires and a resolution for its re-appointment
as Independent Auditor will be proposed at the 2017 AGM.
There has been no change in the Independent Auditor since
the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

By order of the Board

SHI Feng
Deputy Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 19 June 2017
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Corporate Governance Report

TRERWE

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

Sino Harbour and the Group recognise that good corporate
governance establishes and maintains a legal and ethical
environment, which is essential for preserving and
enhancing the interests of all stakeholders. The Company
has applied the principles and complied with all of the code
provisions in the Corporate Governance Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during the Year except as
disclosed in this report.

(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and
supervising the management of the business affairs
and the overall performance of the Group. It sets the
Group’s values and standards and ensures that the
requisite financial and human resources support are in
place for the Group to achieve its objectives.
Currently, the Board comprises seven Directors,
including three Executive Directors, Mr. SHI Feng (the
Deputy Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer), Mr.
WONG Lui and Ms. GAO Lan, a NED Ms. Chan (the
Chairlady) and three INEDs, Mr. XIE Gang, Mr. LEE
Man To and Ms. ZHANG Juan. Mr. WONG Lui is the
son of Ms. Chan. Save as disclosed above, there is
no family or other material relationship among the
members of the Board. The biographical details of the
Directors are set out on pages 69 to 72 of this annual
report.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which
sets out the approach to accomplish diversity on the
Board. The Company recognises that increasing
diversity at the Board level will support the
achievement of the Company’s business objectives
and sustainable development.

The Company seeks to accomplish Board diversity
through the consideration of a number of factors,
such as gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on merits while taking into
account diversity including gender diversity.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, such as gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience,
skills and knowledge. The ultimate decision will be
based on merits and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.
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TRERBME

(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

All Executive Directors and the NED have entered into
service contracts with the Company for a specific
term of three years. All INEDs have entered into letters
of appointment with the Company for a specific term
of one year.

In compliance with Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three INEDs, one of whom
has appropriate professional qualifications in
accounting and financial management. Each of the
INEDs has confirmed his/her independence of the
Company and the Company considers each of them
to be independent in accordance with the guidelines
for assessing independence set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.

Under the Bye-Laws, the Board is empowered to
appoint any person as a Director to fill a causal
vacancy or, subject to authorisation by shareholders
in general meeting, as an additional Director. Where
vacancies exist, the Board shall carry out selection
process by making reference to the skills, experience,
qualification, integrity and time commitments of the
proposed candidates.

One-third of the Directors are subject to retirement
from office by rotation and re-election at each AGM
provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at least once every three years in
accordance with the Bye-Laws.

All Directors, including the INEDs, have given sufficient
time and effort to the affairs of the Group. The INEDs
have provided the Board with their diversified
expertise, experience and professional advice. The
Board believes that the ratio between the Executive
Directors and the INEDs is reasonable and adequate
to provide sufficient checks and balances that
safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and the
Group. The Board also believes that the views and
participation of the INEDs in the Board and committee
meetings provide independent judgment on the issues
relating to strategy, performance, conflict of interest
and management process to ensure that the interests
of all Shareholders are considered and safeguarded.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information in relation to the Group’s businesses and
affairs as well as unrestricted access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary, who is
responsible for providing the Directors with Board
papers and related materials. The Directors may seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s
expenses in carrying out their duties and
responsibilities.
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Corporate Governance Repo

TEERME

During the Year, the Board held five meetings. At
these Board meetings, the Directors discussed and
exchanged their views on significant issues and
general operations of the Group, reviewed the financial
performance and reviewed and approved the
quarterly, interim and final results.

(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED) A ES=E(E)
The Company has taken out appropriate and sufficient RABIEMESTEBITAGEKEEEME AEZE
insurance policies on Directors’ liabilities in respect of SRR BT E E NI B HIRE -
legal actions taken against Directors arising out of
corporate activities.
The Directors are committed to complying with code EEAEBETOES AT EABSIESTAHES o
provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance Code. REEAFE  2REFHEL2HESEIEERE -
All Directors have participated in continuous WERARRREEMES 2558
professional development and provided a record of
training they had received for the Year to the
Company.
The individual training record of each Director received REEREE  SEFESEI 2 BMAZREEHTWM
for the Year is set out below: ™~
Reading materials and/or attending seminars/
briefings relating to updates
on the business,
operations and corporate
governance matters
MEEEXK  ZER
TEEREERFTERR
Name of Directors EEfNG REEERREEEHR
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. SHI Feng (Deputy Chairman AELE (BIERHE
and Chief Executive Officer) BEHITE) v
Mr. WONG Lui T@EEE v
Ms. GAO Lan SEZT v
NED FHITES
Ms. Chan (Chairlady) PRI (ERF) 4
INEDs BYFHITES
Mr. XIE Gang BRI 5 A v/
Mr. LEE Man To FHUBESE v
Ms. ZHANG Juan RIBE L 4
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Corporate Governance Report

TRERBME

(A)

(B)

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

At least 14 days’ notice prior to the date of each
regular meeting is given to all Directors and an agenda
together with the Board papers are sent to all
Directors not less than three days before the date of
meeting. All Directors are given an opportunity to
include in the agenda any other matter that they would
like to discuss in the meeting. Regarding the Board
committee meetings, reasonable prior notice or such
length of notice as required by the respective terms of
reference of the Board committees is given to all
committee members.

The Company Secretary assists the Chairlady in
preparation of the agenda for the Board meetings and
Board committee meetings. He also prepares and
keeps detailed minutes of each Board meeting and
Board committee meeting. Within a reasonable time
after each meeting, the draft minutes are circulated to
all Directors or committee members for comment and
the final and approved version of minutes is sent to all
Directors and committee members for their record.
The Company Secretary has duly complied with the
relevant professional training requirement under Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.

CHAIRLADY AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Ms. Chan is the Chairlady and Mr. SHI Feng is the
Chief Executive Officer. The division of responsibilities
between the Chairlady and the Chief Executive Officer
are clearly divided to ensure a balance of power and
authority.

Ms. Chan, being the Chairlady, is responsible for
formulating the Company’s overall strategies and
policies, providing leadership to the Board and
ensuring the Board functions effectively. She would
ensure complete, reliable and timely information being
provided to the Directors and encourage Directors to
actively participate in the Board to act in the best
interest of the Company.

Mr. SHI Feng, being the Chief Executive Officer, is
responsible for the daily operations of the Company,
execution of business policies, strategies, objectives
and plans as formulated and adopted by the Board
and leading the management of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its
code of conduct for securities transactions by the
Directors, senior management and certain employees
of the Group (who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished inside information in relation to the
Company or its securities). After having made a
specific enquiry by the Company with each of the
Directors, all of them confirmed that they had
complied with the required dealing standards set out
in the Model Code and the Company’s code of
conduct throughout the Year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
for the Year, which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at
31 March 2017 and of the Group’s results and cash
flows for the Year then ended and are properly
prepared on a going concern basis in accordance
with the applicable statutory requirements and
accounting standards.

The Independent Auditor has also stated their
reporting responsibility in the Independent Auditor’s
report of the consolidated financial statements.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees,
namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee, to
oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
The Board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties.

The written terms of reference for each committee
were adopted by the Board. They are in line with the
Listing Rules and are posted on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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TRERBME

(F)

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the
Audit Committee was established on 4 July 2011 with
written terms of reference in accordance with the
Corporate Governance Code. The Audit Committee
comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. LEE Man To (the
chairman), Mr. XIE Gang and Ms. ZHANG Juan. The
Audit Committee reports to the Board and is
delegated by the Board to assess matters related to
the financial statements. Under its terms of reference,
the Audit Committee is required to perform, amongst
others, the following duties:

° monitoring whether the Group’s management
has, in the performance of its duties, infringed
any policies set by the Board or any applicable
laws, regulations and code and reporting to the
Board;

° reviewing the Group’s risk management and
internal control procedures and systems;

° making recommendations to the Board for the
improvement of the Group’s risk management
and internal control procedures and systems;

° making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and approving and reviewing
the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor and any questions of its
resignation or dismissal; and

° monitoring the integrity of accounts, financial
statements, interim reports and annual reports.

The Audit Committee held five meetings during the
Year and all minutes are kept by the Company
Secretary. During the Year, amongst others, the Audit
Committee reviewed the accounting policies and
practices adopted by the Group and the quarterly
results, interim results and annual results of the Group
as well as financial controls, risk management and
internal control systems. The Audit Committee
reported that there was no material uncertainty that
cast doubt on the Company’s going concern ability.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
(CONTINUED)

Auditor’s remuneration

The total fees paid/payable in relation to the audit
service provided by BDO Limited, Certified Public
Accountants, Hong Kong, the Independent Auditor, in
respect of the Year amounted to HK$900,000. No
non-audit service was provided by the Independent
Auditor for the Year.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee on the re-appointment of the
Independent Auditor, and they both have agreed to
recommend the re-appointment of BDO Limited as
the Independent Auditor for the ensuing year at the
2017 AGM.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

In compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules, the
Remuneration Committee was established on 4 July
2011 with written terms of reference in accordance
with the Corporate Governance Code. The main
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include but are not limited to formulating a
remuneration policy for the approval of the Board, and
making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration
of all Directors and senior management and on the
remuneration packages of individual Executive
Directors and senior management. The Remuneration
Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. XIE
Gang (the chairman), Mr. LEE Man To and Ms.
ZHANG Juan, one NED Ms. Chan and one Executive
Director Mr. SHI Feng.

The remuneration of senior management by band for
the Year are set out in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.

One Remuneration Committee meeting was held
during the Year and all minutes are kept by the
Company Secretary. During the Year, amongst others,
the Remuneration Committee (i) evaluated and
reviewed the performance of individual Executive
Directors and senior management of the Company in
respect of FY2016; and (ii) recommended to the
Board for consideration on the discretionary bonus for
FY2016 of each of the Directors and senior
management of the Company.
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TRERBME

(H) NOMINATION COMMITTEE

U]

The Nomination Committee was established on 4 July
2011 with written terms of reference in accordance
with the Corporate Governance Code.

The major duties of the Nomination Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment/re-appointment of the Directors, to
review the structure, size and composition of the
Board, and to assess the independence of the INEDs.

The Nomination Committee comprises three INEDs,
namely Mr. XIE Gang (the chairman), Mr. LEE Man To
and Ms. ZHANG Juan and two Executive Directors
Mr. WONG Lui and Ms. GAO Lan.

One Nomination Committee meeting was held during
the Year and all minutes are kept by the Company
Secretary. During the Year, amongst others, the
Nomination Committee (i) assessed the independence
of the INEDs; (ii) reviewed the structure, size and
diversity of the Board and the board diversity policy;
and (iii) reviewed the performance of the retiring
Directors and recommended to the Board the re-
election of the retiring Directors at the AGM held on
26 July 2016 (the “2016 AGM”).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions of the Company pursuant to the
Corporate Governance Code and, has, amongst
others, reviewed this corporate governance report in
discharge of its corporate governance functions,
ensuring compliance with the Listing Rules.

According to the Stock Exchange’s proposal on risk
management and internal control under the Corporate
Governance Code applicable to accounting periods of
listed companies commencing on or after 1 January
2016, the Board should oversee the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems on an
ongoing basis. The Board has on 17 June 2016
delegated such responsibilities to the Audit Committee
and the terms of reference of the Audit Committee
were revised and adopted on 17 June 2016 to include
the responsibilities on reviewing the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group.

During the Year, the Board has reviewed and
performed the corporate governance functions under
code provision D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board
meetings, Board committee meetings and the general
meeting of the Company held during the Year is set
out in the table below:

)

TEERME

EENRZEERENSHHFELTH
TREVNSEFHENAFERTZESTESH
EXREEERRARABRRAGHRCEE -

Attendance/Number of Meeting(s) held
LRSS ERETRY

Audit Remuneration Nomination General

Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting

] Exg EREEE FMzEE REZEE RRAE

Executive Directors BTES

Mr. SHI Feng A& E 3/5 N/A il N/A 11
N NEA

Mr. WONG Lui AERAE 5/5 N/A N/A 11 11
TER TER

Ms. GAO Lan SRZT 5/5 N/A N/A 11 11
il NiEA

NED FHTES

Ms. Chan Bt 4/5 N/A il N/A 1
o il TER

INEDs BYFGTES

Mr. XIE Gang e 5/5 5/5 11 11 0/1

Mr. LEE Man To FEBRE 5/5 5/5 11 11 11

Ms. ZHANG Juan Kigt 3/5 3/5 11 11 Al

Code provision A.6.7 of the Corporate Governance
Code provides that independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should
attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of the shareholders. Two
INEDs were not able to attend the 2016 AGM due to
their respective business engagements. Other Board
members who attended the 2016 AGM were already
of sufficient calibre and number for answering
questions raised by the Shareholders at the 2016
AGM.
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(K)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for
maintaining a sound system of risk management and
internal control framework. The controls are to provide
reasonable assurance to safeguard Shareholders’
investments and the Group’s assets. The systems of
risk management and internal control are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives. It can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss and the review of the
Group’s risk management and internal control
systems should be a concerted and continuing
process.

The Group’s control environment provides the
foundation upon which all other components of risk
management and internal control systems are built. It
provides discipline and structure, setting the tone of
the organisation and influencing the control
consciousness of its staff. A weak control environment
foundation hampers the effectiveness of even the best
designed internal control procedure.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (CONTINUED)

During the Year, the Group has complied with the risk
management and internal control code provisions set
out in code provision C.2 of the Corporate
Governance Code by having adopted a three-tier risk
management approach to identify, assess, mitigate
and handle risks. The Group has developed and
adopted a strategic planning and risk management
policy, which is designed to enhance risk
management of the Group by identifying, analyzing
and evaluating the possible material risks which shall
have adverse impact on the achievement of the
Group’s objectives, including strategic risks, financial
risks, market risks, operational risks and legal and
regulatory risks. Divisions and department heads are
responsible for the first line of defence. They oversee
the daily operations of their own business units and
are accountable for the conduct and performance of
their own operations. Any incidents regarding non-
compliance of their operations with regulations and
laws, failure to identify or properly manage the risks
associated with their business units, which might lead
to financial or non-financial losses to the Group, shall
be reported to the legal and compliance department
and the internal audit department of the Group (the
“Internal Audit Function”). As the second line of
defence, the Internal Audit Function defines rule sets
and models, provides professional advices, develops
work plans of internal audit, as well as monitor and
review the processes, practices and procedures of
internal controls for all business units on a regular
basis. It annually prepares internal audit report
containing findings and recommendations for
improvements in respect of the risk management and
internal controls and submits such report to the Audit
Committee for review. It also ensures that risks are
within the acceptable range and that the first line of
defence is effective. As the final line of defence, the
Audit Committee, with the professional advices and
opinions from the Internal Audit Function, ensures that
the first and second lines of defence are effective
through constant inspection and monitoring.

The Company is aware of its obligations under Part
XIVA of the SFO and the Listing Rules, to handle and
disseminate of price-sensitive inside information to the
public, after the information has come to the
Company’s knowledge, as soon as reasonably
practicable.
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TRERBME

(K)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (CONTINUED)

In ensuring compliance with the obligation to disclose
inside information in relation to any material changes
in the Group’s financial condition, performance of the
Group’s business or the expectation as to the Group’s
performance, the Board has established a policy for
appropriate and effective reporting procedures which
ensure a timely and structured flow of relevant
financial and operational data (the “Inside
Information Disclosure Policy”) with close regard
to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
issued by the Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong in June 2012.

The Inside Information Disclosure Policy includes,
amongst other, the following:

° establish controls for monitoring business and
corporate developments and events so that any
potential inside information is promptly identified
and escalated;

° establish periodic financial reporting procedures
so that key financial and operating data is
identified and escalated in a structured and
timely manner;

° maintain an audit trail of meetings and
discussions concerning the assessment of
inside information;

° restrict access to inside information to a limited
number of employees on a need-to-know basis
and ensure employees who are in possession of
inside information are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentiality;

° ensure appropriate confidentiality agreements
are in place when the Group enters into
significant negotiations with the third parties;

° disseminate inside information via the electronic
publication system operated by the Stock
Exchange before the information is released via
other channels such as the Company’s website;

o develop procedures for responding to market
rumours, leaks and inadvertent disclosures;
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (CONTINUED)

° provide regular training to relevant employees to
help them understand the Inside Information
Disclosure Policy as well as their relevant
disclosure duties and obligations under such

policy;

o document the Inside Information Disclosure
Policy in writing and keep the documentation up
to date; and

° publish the Inside Information Disclosure Policy
so that the media and other stakeholders
understand the Group’s statutory disclosure
obligations.

Any potential inside information comes to the
knowledge of any Directors or any employees of the
Group should be reported to the Company. The
materiality of the relevant information will be assessed
and, if considered appropriate, such information will
be escalated for the attention of the Board. Before the
inside information is fully disclosed to the public, the
Company shall take reasonable measures to preserve
the confidentiality of the information. In the opinion of
the Board, where the information has not been kept
confidential or there has been a leak, the Company
must issue a public announcement by way of the
electronic publication system operated by the Stock
Exchange as soon as reasonably practicable. If the
Board needs time to clarify details of, and the impact
arising from, an event or a set of circumstances before
it is in a position to issue a full announcement to
properly inform the public, the Board shall consider
issuing a “holding announcement”. There are
circumstances where confidentiality has not been
maintained and the Board is not able to make a full
announcement or a holding announcement, the Board
shall consider applying for a trading halt in its
securities until disclosure can be made. All
announcements in relation to inside information
disclosure should be properly approved by the Board
and issued to the public without delay.
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TRERBME

(K)

(L)

(M)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL (K) EaEERAIPEEE(E)

CONTROL (CONTINUED)

The Independent Auditor has, during the course of BUZEAMENFEEZBREPEEREEZHE
annual audit, considered the internal control relevant NEAREBGRGEMIEHRRERE Z NZPEE « R
to the Group’s preparation of the consolidated AFEEEECERERZESRFRNASERE
financial statements within the scope of their audit. e IR M NEPEEIR R 2B - WE MR AR BFE
During the Year, the Board, through the Audit @it AEET MY ISESRBETmNER - BT
Committee, had annually reviewed the effectiveness of BN IR RERESHERELERR
the risk management and internal control systems of BEEARH EESHERERAREERANIE
the Group, and also reviewed the adequacy of BRRBFTENB -

resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the

Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial

reporting functions, and their training programmes

and budget. The Board believes that the existing risk

management and internal control systems are

adequate and effective.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND L EEREREEEBHTH

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the Corporate BEMEESTASAIEYEBASIKE  FEFEHR
Governance Code, the remuneration of the members NEFH  EERSAEEEBEZ EBRAE] —zK
of the senior management (other than the Directors) FESREERB(TEREES) K EFTMIRERET
whose particulars are contained in the section headed W

“Biographical Information of Directors and Senior

Management” in this annual report for the Year by

band is set out below:

Remuneration band (in HK$) Number of individuals
FrfeaE (B o) AE
Nil to 1,000,000 4
£ % 1,000,000

SHAREHOLDERS’ RELATIONS (M) BRER

The Group is committed to regular and proactive
communication with its Shareholders. The Company
has adopted a policy of disclosing clear, adequate
and relevant information to Shareholders in a timely
manner through various channels. Annual and interim
reports are printed and sent to all Shareholders by
post as requested. The Company has complied with
the provisions of the Listing Rules by posting
announcements, notices, interim reports, annual
reports and Shareholders’ circulars on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
(http://www.sinoharbour.com.hk).
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(M) SHAREHOLDERS’ RELATIONS (CONTINUED)

(N)

Notice of the AGM is delivered to all Shareholders at
least 20 clear business days prior to the date of the
meeting, setting out details of each proposed
resolution, voting procedures (including procedures
for demanding and conducting a poll) and other
relevant information. As at the beginning of the
meeting, the procedures for demanding and
conducting a poll will be explained by the chairman of
the meeting. Vote results are released by way of
publication of an announcement.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

How Shareholders can convene a Special
General Meeting

According to bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws,
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall have the right
to require a special general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition.

The requisition shall be in writing addressed to the
Board or the Company Secretary and deposited at
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong at Room 1215, Tower B, Hunghom Commercial
Centre, 37-39 Ma Tau Wai Road, Hunghom, Kowloon,
Hong Kong.

If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance
with section 74(3) of the Companies Act of Bermuda.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, the contact
details of which are set out as follows:

Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited
31/F., 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong
Telephone:

(852) 2153 1688

Facsimile:  (852) 3020 5058
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TRERBME

(N)

(0)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Shareholders, potential investors and the media may
at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent that such information is
publicly available and make enquiries to the Company
through the following means:

By telephone: (852) 2363 1300

Room 1215, Tower B,
Hunghom Commercial Centre,
37-39 Ma Tau Wai Road,
Hunghom, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

By post:

By email: ir@sinoharbour.com.hk
Procedures for making proposals at general
meetings

To put forward proposals at a general meeting,
Shareholders should submit a written notice of those
proposals with detailed contact information to the
Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong at Room 1215, Tower B,
Hunghom Commercial Centre, 37-39 Ma Tau Wai
Road, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The request
will be verified by the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong and upon
their confirmation that the request is proper and in
order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to
include the resolution in the agenda for the general
meeting.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were no significant changes in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the Year.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE - HERERWME

ABOUT THIS REPORT

The Group published the first ESG Report. The
purpose of this report is to convey the Group’s
management principles, sustainable development
strategies and key performance to stakeholders.

The Board has reviewed and approved the ESG
Report after their discussion with the relevant
management of the Group regarding the effectiveness
of the corporate social responsibility policies. The
Board would like to express its sincere gratitude to the
management of the Group and all the staff for their
hard work and dedication, in contributing to this report
and to the environmental and social performances
throughout the year.

1.1 Reporting Guideline

This report follows the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide, as set out in
Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules. Information
regarding Corporate Governance is addressed
in the annual report according to Corporate
Governance Code.

1.2 Reporting Scope

The reporting period follows in FY2017, unless
otherwise specified.

Unless otherwise specified, the report covers
Sino Harbour’s principal business operating
areas, including completed properties,
properties held under development, properties
held for investment and the Group’s own
property.

Information regarding environmental KPIs will be
disclosed in the Group’s financial year in 2018 (1
April 2017 to 31 March 2018).
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ABOUT THIS REPORT (CONTINUED)
1.3 Contact Information

If you have any comments or suggestions on
this report, please contact the investor relations
department at the address below:

Room 1215, Tower B,

Hunghom Commercial Centre,
37-39 Ma Tau Wai Road, Hunghom,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Tel:
(852) 2363 1300

Fax:
(852) 2764 2160

THE GROUP’S SUSTAINABILITY PROGRESS

The Group is principally engaged in the business of
property development, investing properties include:
residential property, detached housing, apartments,
retails and commercial properties.

Beyond the reporting of business and economic
activities, the Group has begun to structure the
reporting of environmental and social performance in
order to better communicate with the shareholders of
the Group on sustainable development.

The following measures were taken in FY2017:
o Writing the Group’s first ESG Report;

o Establishing a data collection system for both
environmental and social aspects;

o Setting up new goals within the Group’s
sustainable development framework to further
improve the performance of sustainable
development for the year of 2018 (1 April 2017
to 31 March 2018).
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RE - HERERWME

THE GROUP’S MANAGEMENT APPROACH TO
SUSTAINABILITY

As a responsible property developer, the Group firmly
believes that through incorporating the concept of
sustainable development into its business operations
will enable a long-term business growth, and also
promote social development to its community. This
report provides an overview of the Group’s
management principles in the environment,
employees, property quality and society.

3.1 Environment and Resource Management
3.1.1 The Group's Environmental Policy

The Group strikes a balance between
maximizing the profitability while ensuring
a sustainable development. The Group is
committed to providing the best living
environment to its customer and the
surrounding society while meeting the
best interests of its business stakeholders
and investors.

The Group promotes the practice and
development of green property
development and strives to implement
environmental protective measures
through its operation. The Group is
committed to:

° Developing energy efficiency
programs and target to reduce the
use of natural resources such as
electricity and water;

° Quantifying and monitoring emissions
from its managing properties, such
as air emissions, wastewater, noise,
construction waste and dust, and
ensure that emissions requirements
are met;
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RiE - AE8RERGHRS

3. THE GROUP’S MANAGEMENT APPROACH TO 3. AREEURBEZEMNEESS (E)
SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

3.1 Environment and Resource Management 3.1 REREREE(E)
(Continued)
3.1.1 The Group’s Environmental Policy 3.1.1 ZXEFEEES B (&)
(Continued)
e Compiling environmental impact e BREREFETEREAZNL
assessment reports to monitor and EHIEIE R HIRBEIMAN T E

control the environmental impacts
that comes from its properties;

e Requiring all employees to fulffill their J gﬂ%ﬁﬁ ﬁf\ Tk El:ﬁ EERFT
environmental responsibility and BITRERATMAMERRRF

internal management procedures in
their day-to-day operations.

During FY2017, the operation of the E-F LW Z'X%E’U%@E?ﬁ
Group has complied with relevant FRERMBEEREHN - AKE LA
environmental laws and regulations on air ?F‘;’ﬁ : iﬁ%ﬁﬁ%@?%%@iﬁ%@ 77
and greenhouse gas emissions, RENS UV

discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.

3.1.2 Managing Environmental Impact 312 EBREZE
The Group implements different measures REBNE YA B RKEUVT R 80 5 A
in various property projects in order to BRMEBHRENTE - fINAEE
effectively manage its impact on the FHEETBERABHNKRE - BRR
environment. For example, the Group BEYMERBENNT —ERE - tBEE
strives to oversee the performance of its HRE - RE EIHEREERESH
contractors to insure that measures are E TR -

drawn at all stages of the life-cycle of the
building construction, from project
planning to design phase and from
construction to operation phase.
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RE - HERERWME

3. THE GROUP’S MANAGEMENT APPROACH TO 3. AREEURBEZEMNEESS (E)
SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

3.1 Environment and Resource Management 31 BREREREE(E)
(Continued)
3.1.2 Managing Environmental Impact 312 EHREZE (B)
(Continued)

3.1.2.1Reducing Energy Consumption and 31.2.1)8 L BE N5 HFE RIGH B IR M 7

Improving Resource Efficiency

In accordance with the provision of
the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Promoting Clean
Production, the Group adopts the
construction and decoration
materials that meet national
standards in the planning and design
phase of the project to the maximum
extent. At the same time, the Group
also endeavours to enhance the
efficiency in terms of energy, water
and material consumption.

Effective use of electricity

The Group has taken various
measures to enhance the
effectiveness in energy saving
through the design and planning
phases of its property projects. The
Group actively employs energy-
saving building materials, such as
the application of thermal insulation
layer on the roof; and the installation
of double-glazed windows and
energy-saving doors. Likewise, the
Group considers taking full use of
natural lighting in the design phase
of the indoor lighting of the property
projects to reduce the electricity
consumption from the artificial
lighting system and hence
significantly reduces energy usage.
In addition, the Group installs
environmentally friendly lighting
fixtures such as light-emitting diodes
(LEDs) in various operating
properties where applicable to
reduce energy consumption.
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RiE - AE8RERGHRS

3. THE GROUP’S MANAGEMENT APPROACH TO 3. AREEURBEZEMNEESS (E)
SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

3.1 Environment and Resource Management 31 BREREREE(E)
(Continued)
3.1.2 Managing Environmental Impact 312 EEREZE (B)
(Continued)
3.1.2.1Reducing Energy Consumption and 3.1.2.1 )8 L BENR BFE RIGH BN iz (&)
Improving Resource Efficiency
(Continued)
Improve the water use efficiency RFAKERE AR
The Group strives to improve water REEBWM NIRRT KERERME -
use efficiency. The Group makes REBEZSYMEBEPEAL K
use of water-saving toilets, flush and BUPRR(E RS« B OB RS
showers in various property projects LUR D KEREEFE o b4 - K
to reduce the water consumption. In SEERMFEIEERGERYF
addition, the Group has established K Ol A&7 - {5 FR AR e /KSR AT -
a central water reuse facility in its B IE pIKAEIRER - R
property projects where feasible, HTESSIKEVHEIRE -

such as exploiting central water
flushing to effectively increase the
recycling rate of water and reduce
the amount of domestic sewage.

3.1.2.2Construction Phase 3.1.2.25 T BifE]

During construction, air emission, REELTHM - A& B D B ERE
wastewater discharge, noise and oI5k - BE - BREEY
solid waste are identified as the SHEmY e AREBERKEABR
emission of the Group. The Group RER << BIKIRIBIRE A >> WA R
requires its contractors to implement RERENR  EELIRIEITHR
environmental protection measures EERBRESR  WIRAHE
during both construction and THREREEBNETTEE
operation phases in accordance BEREMER -

with the laws and regulations of
National Environmental Protection
Law, and also enhances its staff’s
awareness on environmental
protection, energy conservation and
waste management.
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3. THE GROUP’S MANAGEMENT APPROACH TO 3. AREEURBEZEMNEESS (E)
SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

3.1 Environment and Resource Management 31 BREREREE(E)
(Continued)
3.1.2 Managing Environmental Impact 312 EHREZE (B)
(Continued)
3.1.2.2Construction Phase (Continued) 3.1.2. 25 T HifE] (4E)
Air Emissions & RN

The major air emissions during
construction include dust and
suspended particulates from
construction machinery and
equipment. The Group demands its
contractors to carry out on-site
assessment and preventive
measures during construction to
reduce air emissions, such as:

° Spraying water on construction
sites and roads to control air
emission level during
transportation of vehicles and
materials;

° Setting up dustproof shelters
to reduce dust emissions and
ensuring a clean and sanitary
construction site.

Wastewater Discharge

During the construction phase,
wastewater is mainly discharged
from the process of the mixing of the
cement slurry, the cleaning of
machinery and equipment, and the
domestic sewage from workers. The
Group supervises its contractors to
implement the following measures:

° Provision of temporary water
storage tank on site to
discharge the wastewater into
the appropriate sewer after
sedimentation;
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3. THE GROUP’S MANAGEMENT APPROACH TO 3.
SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

FEEETRHERRNEEDH (H)

3.1 Environment and Resource Management 31 BREREREE(E)
(Continued)
3.1.2 Managing Environmental Impact 312 EEREBELZE (18)

(Continued)

3.1.2.2Construction Phase (Continued) 3.1.22 i T HjfE ()

Wastewater Discharge (Continued)

° Prevention of oil spills from
machinery and transport
vehicles and forbidden of
waste oil disposal at
construction sites.

Noise Pollution

During construction, the main source
of noise generation are from piling
and construction. The Group has set
up the noise management of
construction site in accordance with
the local laws and regulations to
prevent and minimize the nuisance
that it generated. The Group
inspects its project contractors:

° To adopt low-noise
machineries and technology,
such as replacing vertical
vibrating piling to new
technologies of spiral piling,
static pressure piling, or jet
piling, etc.

° To use ready-mixed concrete
to significantly reduce noise
pollution during construction.

Solid Waste Disposal

During construction, the majority of
solid waste comes from the
construction waste (such as brickbat,
waste sand, waste steel, etc.) and
general waste from workers. The
Group has strictly formulated the
waste collection policy, in which it
postulates all employees to classify
and recycle waste, and to hand over
the waste to the local Bureau for
Environmental Health for disposal.
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3. THE GROUP’S MANAGEMENT APPROACH TO 3. AREEURBEZEMNEESS (E)
SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

3.1 Environment and Resource Management 31 BREREREE(E)
(Continued)

= 1 =
3.1.2 Managing Environmental Impact 312 EEREHE (A)

(Continued)

3.1.2.30peration Phase 31235 8K

AEBREREEHRHENMELIE
RS ETERERE S BE
EREMEROEE REBE
KEABE MY EEIEEBIERIR
RRETIE THFEEBEHK(2-3
N EBENEMETEEEENE

During operation, the Group focuses
on its design concept and
supporting facilities, and also pays
attention to the environment and site
greening of the community. The

Group’s contractors and property R T S
management agencies are B ML BMER  HRRE

demanded to carry out Zhl - BHTREE - REMN
environmental protection measures, ’%iﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁt%i&ﬂ% %le$E Ej
and arranges a dedicated team (2-3 MEREE  BREVRAORS

people) responsible for overseeing HEAMER -
the residential solid waste

management, nearby traffic

management, commercial noise

control, catering industry pollution

management, and landscape

protection and greening to develop

relevant measures to safeguard

environmental quality of the property

to meet standards.

ERHEIK

BT BB NEAE BT
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REMMPEERS  BBIED
- ERERBEHERERNEC(T
XEERFTHERE) (TU36-79)
TEREREEMNERF AN

Air Emissions

In order to effectively reduce the air
emissions generated from the
vehicles in the property area that
influence owners and residents, the
Group has stipulated the
management of underground
parking lots. The Group has installed
a mechanical exhaust system in
each underground parking lot to
undertake that the concentration of
gaseous emission through
engineering analysis is fulfilling with
the maximum allowable standard for
the hazardous substances set in the
Hygienic Standards for Industrial
Enterprise Designing (TJ36-79).
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3. THE GROUP’S MANAGEMENT APPROACH TO 3.
SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

3.1 Environment and Resource Management 31 BREREREE(E)
(Continued)

FEEUHFARRNOEESH (H)

3.1.2 Managing Environmental Impact 312 EEBIREZHE ()

(Continued)

3.1.2.30peration Phase (Continued) 3123 E R (&)

Wastewater Discharge

The Group’s wastewater discharge
during operation is mainly from
domestic consumption. The Group
designs the drainage pipes for
concentrating sewage from the
district and discharging it into the
municipal sewage pipe network after

5 7KBER
REEREERBRBEKBENE
B RETEIFK - NEBERERFHEK
BE EINEEENSKERS
IKEE L EMEIBRETR
ATTBSKERA - BRFEOHK
875 7K BT B RS 2 W HE BUR 2D
(GB18918-2002) °

septic treatment, to make sure it
complies with the “Discharge
Standard of Pollutants for Municipal
Wastewater Treatment Plant”
(GB18918-2002).

Solid Waste Disposal ElEEEEEY)
During operation, the Group’s solid REBRZEERABHNEBEREY

TEREERREY  AEERR
—WERRXHEWREHERE

waste generation is mainly from

domestic waste. Waste are centrally

collected by the Group and handed

over to local Bureau for

Environmental Health for disposal.
3.2 Employees and Talent Investment

32 EERAFERE

AEERREEREREENEE - AR HE
BAORSIAIBFETRAS - TERABEETH
BeE > THNETERENRAKIEFETH
HBEES -

The Group considers employees are the most
important asset. The Group endeavors to attract
and nurture talents, in which it focuses on the
development of the potential employees and
constantly improving the working environment
while enhancing employee’s knowledge and
ability.
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3. THE GROUP’S MANAGEMENT APPROACH TO 3. AREEURBEZEMNEESS (E)
SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

3.2 Employees and Talent Investment
(Continued)

3.2.1 Employment Policy 3.2.1 EIEHE

32 EERAFRE(H)

The Group actively recruits and nurtures
talents to promote a multi-inclusive
culture. As a company that cares for its
employees, the Group assures the
recruitment process complies with national
laws and regulations and is committed to
providing equal opportunities to all job
seekers regardless of race, color,
nationality, religion, sex, age and disability.

The Group provides reasonable and
competitive remuneration packages and
various paid holidays. For example, the
Group has built up an emolument
management system according to the
Labor Law of the People’s Republic of
China and make the most of the incentive
effect of wages on employees. The Group
also regulates its overtime allowance
standards, such as providing allowances
to employees due to overtime work during
the statutory holidays.

The Group respects the basic human
rights and labor rights of employees, and
implements a strict recruitment
management system which prohibits any
department and staff from recruiting child
labor and using compulsory labor.

During FY2017, the Group has complied
with all relevant laws and regulations
relating to remuneration and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours,
holidays, equal opportunities,
diversification, anti-discrimination, other
benefits and welfare, and prohibition of
child labor and forced labor.
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3. THE GROUP’S MANAGEMENT APPROACH TO 3. AREEURBEZEMNEESS (E)
SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

3.2 Employees and Talent Investment
(Continued)

32 EERAFRE(H)

3.2.2 Employee Occupational Health and 322 EEB¥EREHZTS

Safety

Protecting employees’ occupational health
and safety during operation is the Group’s
utmost priority. The Group is actively
creating a healthy, comfortable and safe
working environment.

According to the local safety laws and
regulations, contractors are requested to
provide training on the construction site to
staff regarding the occupational safety and
health.

The Group is committed to ensuring the
safety of its property projects, it strictly
enforces necessary safety measures and
prohibits any unauthorized entry into the
site to avoid accidents.

During FY2017, the Group’s operations
has complied with relevant laws and
regulations relating to providing a safe
working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

3.2.3 Employee Training and Education

Through establishing an ongoing staff
training mechanism, the Group
encourages its employees to have
continuous education and development.

The Group also stipulates each of its
contractors must provide trainings
regarding safety and environmental
protection to front-line employees, such
as safety management, and regular site
health and safety assessment to
guarantee the safety of staff on site.
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3. THE GROUP’S MANAGEMENT APPROACH TO
SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

3.2 Employees and Talent Investment
(Continued)

3.2.4 Anti-Corruption Mechanism

The Group operates on the principle of
honest and fairness basis, in which
employees are required to uphold
professional conduct and maintain
corporate governance standards. Any
form of corruption will not be tolerated.
The Group prohibits all employees from
working with related responsible personnel
to establish any connection of economic
interests.

The Group abides the internal control
manual and establishes the project
bidding management system, which
strengthens the supervision and
management of the bidding activities and
prevents the bribery and corruption in the
bidding process to protect company’s
interests. The Group has also applied
measures such as monitoring system,
reporting, and accountability mechanism
to continuously standardize the Group’s
business management decision-making
behavior.

During FY2017, the operation of the
Group has complied with relevant laws
and regulations relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering.

3.3 Pursuit of excellence in quality

The Group focuses on the quality standards of
its properties, it seeks to fulfill its environmental,
social and economic responsibilities in the
business operations starting from the supply
chain.

3. FEEUFEABRRNERLH (B
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3. THE GROUP’S MANAGEMENT APPROACH TO 3. AREEURBEZEMNEESS (E)

SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)
3.3 Pursuit of excellence in quality (Continued)

3.3 ERFHMNRE(H)

3.3.1 Supply Chain Management 3.3.1 (HEREE

The Group’s suppliers mainly include
building contractors and various suppliers
of building materials and facility and
equipment. Through managing the
environmental and social performance of
the supply chain, the Group can have a
deeper understanding and effectively
managing the impact of procurement
operations on environment and society.

In order to facilitate supply chain partners
to align with the Group’s sustainable
development management, the Group
requires suppliers to secure the provision
of safe, reliable and environmentally
friendly building materials.

The Group also closely monitors health
and safety performance of its suppliers,
where it develops management systems
and reviews measures in accordance with
relevant laws and regulations to
continuously provide safety assessments
and propose corresponding health
precaution procedures to its suppliers.

At the same time, the Group has
implemented a strict internal control
system to apply a fair and impartial bidding
procedure in the process of selecting
material suppliers. The tender team and
tender committee of the Group are
appointed to manage the purchasing
process of each individual project and to
prohibit any illegal behavior.

In order to assure the quality of materials
used for construction purpose, the Group
conducts assessment of the suppliers
during the procurement process to ensure
their quality, delivery time and social
responsibility.
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3. THE GROUP’S MANAGEMENT APPROACH TO
SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

3.3 Pursuit of excellence in quality (Continued)
3.3.2 Excellence in Quality

The Group adheres to the strategy for
pursuit of excellence in quality to satisfy
the need of the market and customers.

In order to integrate the quality and safety
management into daily management
practices, the Group develops an
independent “Acceptance of Concealed
Work Report” after the completion of the
construction work in all of its property
projects. This aims to provide a careful
and comprehensive examination and
improvement of the project management.
Through a comprehensive inspection of
the design quality, fire safety and
environmental management standards,
the Group is in compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations.

In addition to maintaining the current
quality standards in the coming year, the
Group also strives to obtain green building
certification by adopting more
environmental measures in line with
international standards in the design and
planning process of each investment
properties.

During FY2017, the Group’s operations
have complied with relevant laws and
regulations relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided
and methods of redress.

3.4 Community Investment

The Group understands that it is necessary to
fulfill its corporate social responsibility and seek
well-being for the business community as a
corporate citizenship. The Group collaborates
with local communities to organize various types
of activities to help those in need.
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3. THE GROUP’S MANAGEMENT APPROACH TO
SUSTAINABILITY (CONTINUED)

3.4

66 )

Community Investment (Continued)

The Group has spared no effort to encourage its
employees to participate in volunteer work and
services to enhance community harmony and to
help those in need.

The Group will continue to contribute on the
road for public welfare, and will carry on to
contribute to the community.

Case Study
“Warm the Silent World” charity activity

Sino Harbour established Jiangxi Hanyun
Incubator Limited (“Hanyun Incubator”) in
2015 to assist the Group to seek new business
opportunities. Jiangxi Province is a place where
young talents gathers, and Hanyun Incubator
advocates entrepreneurs’ persistence of the
social responsibility beyond integrity, honesty,
and inclusiveness, where it promotes the
willingness to contribute to the community.

In February 2017, Hanyun Incubator held the
“Warm the Silent World” charity activity, which
was aimed at expressing sympathy for the
children with disabilities at Triple Special School,
such that children could feel the love and
warmth from the community.

In March 2017, more than 20 people including
representatives of internal start-up teams from
Hanyun Incubator paid a visit to Nanchang
Triple Special School. During the visit, the
representatives handed over the raised supplies
to the headmaster, and donated raised funds
for improving school conditions. The Group
believed that employees who have participated
in community services would receive positive
energy through outward display of love.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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THE STOCK EXCHANGE’S ESG REPORTING 4., HERXFIZESGHERII

GUIDE INDEX

This report has been prepared in accordance with the AL 2B THOGRIE @ REBREES])
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting il o —MMBERBEFENRTRLEBHENZE
Guide of the Stock Exchange. General disclosures are ZEERE -

indicated in the table below that directs readers to the
relevant sections.

Aspect Guide Section Page
Em| #3 =40 E¥
A. Environmental
ARIE
Emissions Al 3.1.2Managing Environmental Impact 54-60
HER) AT SI12BBRENFE
Use of Resources A2 3.1.2.1 Reducing Energy 55-56
Consumption and Improving
Resource Efficiency
BIREMA A2 312 1R RERERE R B RN
The Environment and Natural Resources A3 3.1Environment and Resource 53-60
Management
RIERRARER A3 SARBENERER
B. Social
B.#&
Employment and Labour Practices
EBREREZEIER
Employment B1 3.2.1Employment Policy 61
(=2 B1 321 EEER
Health and Safety B2 3.2.2Employee Occupational Health 62
and Safety
fREEZ R B2 B22EEBEREERZ S
Development and Training B3 3.2.3Employee Training and 62
Education
EEYEE B3 323 EEEIIEHKE
LLabour Standards B4 3.2.1Employment Policy 61
LT | B4 321 BB
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4. THE STOCK EXCHANGE’S ESG REPORTING 4. HRFTZESGHEHEESI (&)
GUIDE INDEX (CONTINUED)

Aspect Guide Section Page
=] 4] =11 BEH
Operating Practices

EIEED

Supply Chain Management B5 3.3.1Supply Chain Management 64
HrEsEE I B5 331 HERER

Product Responsibility B6 3.3.2Excellence in Quality 65
EmEE B6 332K ImHE

Anti-corruption B7 3.2.4 Anti-Corruption Mechanism 63
RE&ES B7 3.2.4 RE R

Community

HE

Community Investment B8 3.4Community Investment 65-66
HERKE B8 34tERIRE
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREERB ZBERRIE

CHAIRLADY AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

CHAN Heung Ling ( Bf M ¥ ), aged 58, is one of the
founders of the Group and became the Chairlady and the
NED on 4 July 2011. She is also a member of the
Remuneration Committee. Ms. CHAN is mainly responsible
for the formulation of the overall strategy of the Group. Ms.
CHAN has engaged in property development since 1990s
and has experience in this area for over 20 years. She
participated in the property business of Pan Hong Holdings,
and was the deputy chairlady and an executive director of
Pan Hong Holdings from January 2006 to June 2011. Ms.
CHAN is the spouse of Mr. Wong, and is the mother of Mr.
WONG Lui, one of the Executive Directors. Ms. CHAN and
Mr. Wong indirectly control Pan Hong Holdings.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

SHI Feng (FI£), aged 59, became the Deputy Chairman,
the Chief Executive Officer and an Executive Director on 4
July 2011. He is also a member of the Remuneration
Committee and a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. SHI is responsible for the management of
project plans, quality control, coordination with contractors,
and the management of the Company’s subsidiaries. He
joined Pan Hong Holdings in September 2002 and was an
executive director of Pan Hong Holdings from January 2006
to June 2011.

He was certified as an engineer by the Ministry of Light
Industry of the PRC (H 2 A AL FNEI &8 T 22 35) in 1987.

Mr. SHI graduated with a bachelor’s degree in civil and
industrial construction from the Hunan University in the PRC
in December 1981.

Prior to joining Pan Hong Holdings, Mr. SHI was an
assistant civil engineer at the construction technology
department of Twenty Third Metallurgy Construction
Company under the Ministry of Metallurgy ()& & T 2 %8 &
ZHZReBRRAA(EIME)) from 1982 to 1983.
He served as an engineer at the Changsha Design Institute
of the Ministry of Light Industry (88 T 38 &% 58%) from
1983 to 1992, where he specialised in the structural design
of buildings. Mr. SHI subsequently joined Huilong (Group)
Ltd. of Huizhou City, Guangdong Province (& &8 & =M ™
BEEEARAF)IN the PRC from 1992 to 1999 as the
deputy general manager, responsible for real estate
development and technical construction management.
Between 1999 and 2002, he was the general manager of
3A Electronics Co., Ltd. GIiI & MM =T FAMR A7) in
Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. SHI is now a member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of Donghu District of Nanchang
City, Jiangxi Province, the PRC. He is also the standing
director of the Second Nanchang Overseas Chinese
Entrepreneurs Association.

WONG Lui (;£%), aged 34, became an Executive Director
on 4 July 2011 and is a member of the Nomination Committee.
He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. WONG Lui is mainly responsible for the operational
management and development of the projects of Nanchang
Honggu Kaixuan (7 & 4L A 8l i ) and Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting
Yuan ( #E M ZE %5 B2 B2 ) in the PRC. He joined Pan Hong
Holdings in October 2007 as the assistant to the chairman of
Pan Hong Holdings responsible for the formulation of business
strategy and management of Pan Hong Holdings. He was
appointed as the deputy project manager and the deputy
general manager of Jiangxi Asia City Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. (“Jiangxi Asia City”, )T F o /i S EMRZEER A
A]), one of the Company’s subsidiaries, in 2008 and was
mainly responsible for management of construction works. He
was also appointed as the general manager of the Company’s
subsidiaries, Fuzhou Pan Hong Kai Xuan Property
Development Co., Ltd. (‘Fuzhou Pan Hong’, #EM N/ EE i
E [ 8 B R A 7)), Hangzhou Ganglian Real Estate Co., Ltd.
(‘Hangzhou Ganglian”, {8 B 2GR A F]) and Jiangxi
Hanyun Incubator Limited (‘Hanyun Incubator”, ;T &% B9
{EZZ B R 2 E]) in 2009, 2014 and 2015 respectively and was
mainly responsible for the formulation of business strategy and
the daily management of Fuzhou Pan Hong, Hangzhou
Ganglian and Hanyun Incubator.

Mr. WONG Lui is now a member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of Jiangxi Province, the
PRC and a standing committee member of Jiangxi
Federation of Industry and Commerce in the PRC.

Mr. WONG Lui is the son of Ms. Chan, and Mr. Wong. Ms.
Chan and Mr. Wong indirectly control Pan Hong Holdings.

GAO Lan (&), aged 51, joined the Group in June 2010
as the director of marketing and administration. She has
been re-designated as the Group’s director of marketing
since November 2013 in order to concentrate on the
Group’s marketing affairs. Ms. GAO was appointed as an
Executive Director on 13 August 2014 and is also a member
of the Nomination Committee.

Ms. GAO graduated from the Jiangxi Industrial University (T 78 T
% KX2) in the PRC, the predecessor of Nanchang University (3
ER2), in 1987, with a bachelor's degree majoring in industrial
and civil construction. She was certified as an engineer in 1994
and qualified as a class 2 constructor in 2003.

70 Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17

BITES (8)

E%ELEJ%EPI}Iﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ‘%ﬁﬁﬂliqﬂl}\ﬁﬂf&; W
EEKE - WARE_EEEBITELERBEES
ED

AE MR R E——FLtANBXAERNTEE I
BIRBZEEIZKE - BINALRRRAETHERARZE
FEoIZAETEEFENRTREAS LA NE S HEM
iifﬁZMﬁEE&EEﬁﬁoﬁﬂ_77t¢+ﬂ
PIACHBIER - BENLBEREFDHE B a&6E
%éﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%li%%i@ﬂl BIENE - BR-_EZEN\FEZREIT AR
EE—RHMNBARIAMNREHERBEER AR ([T
AEME) 2EITEBEEREIAKIE T2aFEET
EER - FHAONR_TEETNF T HER_Z
—hHFEZEAARRARNBARTENNVESHERES
RAE ([HEMAED RMUMNEBBEZERR AR ([FMB
B RTmEIB cRER AR (EMREEE]) 24K
B TEASHITEMILE - N BEEE IR R
¥BEEBEATER -

ARAERATERIAETBEARBAHESHKE &
TRETHEEITEHEBASEEERS -

ABEERRZTRIREZRTF - R T RELEM
Tﬁz*ﬁ %U /ﬂ/%?ﬁﬂx ©

BE 51 —T-EFENANAREER  REHKT
BB WA _T—=F+—HA FAERLEEZH
E - BEAKEZEHER S XEIR_FT-—IOFEN
A+=BEZERATEFTAIRIRLEZEGHKE -

BREIN— ﬂ/\ti%%ﬁ“iﬂ BITATXAZ(MEAR

ZHE) BBRELBM TETIXERAEE - 1
—NNEFEER —U%I%Eﬁfﬁ YR -_FZ=FERA 5
ZARGRAERD o



Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREERB ZBERRIE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Ms. GAO has extensive experience in the construction and
real estate development industry. She worked at the
technology division of the real estate department of
Nanchang City Municipal Engineering Development Co.,
Lid. (FAE M M Ti2F & AR A7) from 1987 to 1993.
She joined Hainan Huan Li (Real Estate) Group (/& & & 37
(3 E ) % E )in 1993, acting as the director of the chief
executive officer’s office, and as the deputy general
manager of Hainan Huan Li Real Estate Development Co.
Ltd. OB FER Y B E M2 R 2 al). Ms. GAO was the
deputy general manager of Shanghai Jing Ja Immovable
Investment Consultant Co., Ltd. (/B ETEERE Hr
ABRAF]) from 2001 to 2006. From 2006 to 2009, she was
the deputy general manager of Nanchang Lan Di Consultant
Co., Ltd. (FFEEHEER AR 2 F]). Afterwards, she joined
Jiangxi Jinhai Property Co., Ltd. CTHRSE/8EEEGRET A
7] )as the general manager from 2009 to 2010 before
joining the Group.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

XIE Gang (f#Hl) , aged 52, became an INED on 4 July 2011.
He is also the chairman of each of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee and a member of
the Audit Committee. Mr. XIE was the head representative of
AXA Guangzhou representative office from 1995 to 2002,
during which period he was responsible for the operation of
the representative office and matters relating to establishing
branch companies for AXA group. From 2003 to 2008, he was
the manager of AXA-Minmetals Assurance Co., Ltd.,
Guangdong Branch in the PRC and was responsible for
government relations, establishing new companies,
recruitment, franchise development, risk management,
marketing and sales, etc. Mr. XIE graduated from the Xiamen
University in the PRC with a bachelor’s degree in computer
science in July 1988.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

LEE Man To (Z= 8% ), aged 44, became an INED on 4
July 2011. He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee
and a member of each of the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee. Mr. LEE is an executive director,
the financial controller, qualified accountant and company
secretary of Combest Holdings Limited, a company listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 8190). Mr. LEE has over 18 years of
experience in auditing, accounting and finance including
acting as accountant, compliance officer and financial
manager for various private companies. He served in the
group finance department of Rosedale Hotel Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Wing On Travel (Holdings)
Limited), a company listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 1189), in 2007 and 2008. Mr. LEE
graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with
a bachelor’s degree in accountancy in 1995. Mr. LEE is an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants.

ZHANG Juan (3R#8), aged 33, became an INED on 4 July
2011. She is also a member of each of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.
She has been the legal representative of Shanghai Jinfu
Trading Company Limited ( =% £5 28 7 & & R A & ) since
2009, which is principally engaged in the business of retail of
jewellery and artworks and accessories trading. Ms. ZHANG is
responsible for product design and product manufacturing and
sales process. She has also been a director of Shanghai
Yunteng Investment Management Limited (_E)8 2 E1% & &
I A R A A]) since 2010, which is principally engaged in the
business of financial investment management and consultancy.
Ms. ZHANG is in charge of the said company’s financial
regulatory matters, budget analysis, as well as overseeing the
said company’s internal controls. Ms. ZHANG graduated from
the Shanghai Ocean University ( - /& /& )£ X ) (formerly
known as Shanghai Fisheries University ( £ /87K E A £2)), in
the PRC with a bachelor’s degree in finance in 2005.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

LI Ming Yuan (Z=BiJt), aged 54, is the Group’s director
of property management. He joined Pan Hong Holdings in
2004 as deputy general manager of Jiangxi Asia City. He
remained in this position until 2007 and was afterwards
appointed as the deputy general manager of Jiangxi
Ganghong Investment Co. Ltd. CIFEEREEEABRAR) in
the same year.

Mr. LI was educated at the Jiangxi Broadcasting and
Television University GT 78 EHEE 42 A 2) in the PRC, where
he graduated in 1989 majoring in industrial and civil
construction. From 1989 to 1996, he served as a
construction worker, the deputy head of the production
department and the director of production technology
department at Nanchang City Municipal Engineering
Development Co., Ltd. (FEm MK LIEAEER A A]).
Mr. LI was certified as an engineer in 1997.

QIU Si Yuan (E8/R)E) , aged 57, is the Group’s director of
planning and design. Mr. QIU joined Pan Hong Holdings as
the director of planning and design in 2008.

Mr. QIU has worked in the construction industry for over 25
years, including China CEC Engineering Corporation ( /7 £ &%
TEEP TRAERADA), formerly known as Changsha
Design Institute of the Ministry of Light Industry (88 T 2 &/
&EHBE ), from 1982 to 1995. In 1995, Mr. QIU was assigned
to work in Hunan Dacheng Design Co., Ltd. G ARKE %
s+ A BR 2 7)) as the deputy head of the institute and chief
architect until 2008. He joined Pan Hong Holdings thereafter.
Mr. QIU was registered as a certified class 2 architect in 1997.

LIU Lin Yu (2185 %), aged 65, is the Group’s director of
project expenditure. He joined Pan Hong Holdings in 2000,
and had been responsible for costs management at Pan
Hong Holdings’ development projects. Since joining Pan
Hong Holdings, he has served as the deputy general
manager of Jieyang Hong Jun Real Estate Co. Ltd. (}38f5 %
& = # E 2 7)) and on-site engineer of Huzhou Liyang
Housing and Landing Development Co., Ltd. G5 /1| BB 5 &
i 7 F 2 B BR 2 7] ). He had also served as the budget
forecast manager and the deputy general manager of
Jiangxi Asia City.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. LIU was certified as an assistant engineer by Chaozhou
City Science and Technology Committee (#i/N i &l Z 5 flT &
E%) in the PRC in 1989. He graduated from an intermediate
level professional civil engineering correspondence learning
course (1 & /K 28 T 12 & 2 (1 1% 3) from the Sichuan
International Technical and Economic Management Training
Centre (791 B Bl B AR B & T2 A2 m #5300 in the PRC
in 1990. In 1991, he was qualified as a budget forecaster and
worked for Chaozhou City Qiao Dong Construction Company
(BN TS EREEEA A)) . The said qualification was granted by
Guangdong Province Construction Standard Authority (JEE 4
FERRARAE FE FAAR L ) in the PRC.

CHAN Chun Kit (FREE#E) , aged 37, has been the Group’s
financial controller, the Company Secretary and one of the
authorized representatives of the Company under the Listing
Rules since 31 July 2015.

Mr. CHAN joined Pan Hong Holdings in 2008 as the
financial controller and company secretary and had been
responsible for the finance and accounting functions of Pan
Hong Holdings. He was also responsible for statutory
compliance, corporate governance and coordination with
the stakeholders of Pan Hong Holdings. Mr. CHAN was
appointed as an executive director of Pan Hong Holdings in
2011 until 31 July 2015.

Prior to joining Pan Hong Holdings, Mr. CHAN was an
auditor with an international public accounting firm. Mr.
CHAN graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Accountancy
(Hons). He is also a Certified Public Accountant, a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in England and a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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IBDO

Tel : +852 2218 8288
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111 Connaught Road Central

www.bdo.com.hk Hong Kong
R

TEE © +852 2218 8288 i

{8 H : +852 2815 2239 FEHEER11158

www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of
Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 83
to 188, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2017, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 March 2017, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Refer to notes 3.7, 4.2 and 6 to the consolidated financial
Statements

The Group recognised revenue from sale of properties held
for sale of RMB693,512,000 for the year ended 31 March
2017. Revenue from sale of properties held for sale is
recognised upon the transfer of significant risks and rewards
of ownership of these properties held for sale to the
customers, which is dependent on the contractual
arrangements for the sale and the laws in the relevant
jurisdiction and may require management judgement.

Qur response

Our procedures in relation to the management’s recognition
of revenue included:

—  Assessing the management’s control over the point of
time at which revenue from sales of properties held for
sale is recognised by obtaining an understanding of
the management’s control process and testing the
control on a sample basis; and

— Reviewing the terms stated in the sales and purchase
agreements, on a sample basis, and obtaining
evidence regarding the completion and the delivery of
properties, on a sample basis, including completion
certificates and delivery notices, to assess whether
the criteria for revenue recognition set out in note 3.7
to the consolidated financial statements have been
met.
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ASSESSMENT OF NET REALISABLE VALUE OF
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE AND PROPERTIES
HELD UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Refer to notes 3.13, 3.14, 4.1, 20 and 21 to the
consolidated financial statements

The Group has significant properties held for sale and
properties held under development in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) and together represent the largest
category of assets on the consolidated statement of
financial position at RMB1,739,486,000 as at 31 March
2017.

Properties held for sale and properties held under
development are stated at the lower of their costs and their
net realisable values.

The determination of the estimated net realisable value of
these properties held for sale and properties held under
development is critically dependent upon the Group’s
estimation of future selling prices and construction costs to
complete their projects.

Qur response

Our procedures in relation to the management’s net
realisable value assessment included:

— Assessing the calculations of net realisable value of
properties held for sale and properties held under
development, and challenging the reasonableness
and consistency of the assumptions used by
management;

— Assessing the appropriateness of the Group’s
estimated selling prices, on a sample basis, by
comparing them to, where available, recently
transacted prices and prices of comparable properties
located in the same vicinity as the development
projects; and

— Assessing the construction costs and interest
expenses estimated by the management based on
underlying documentation and reasonableness.

AHERFEYRRAR DY RN TERFE

FRERAMEREMA3.183 314 4.1 20 21 »

EEERPEARKMBE([FE D EEFEME AR
¥ -t AR1,739,486,0007T © B_E—+F=H
—t+—BZHEAPBRRERP L ERANEERET

FEMELFAEPYERERNRNERZRFE(ZEPR
BE)FIHK -

FEVMEEHABETDEZAFAZRFETELRE B
SEERRHEERRTTHIRB 2 BERAETEFTM

H -

HeFie o /&
B E IR R A # R FENEF B

- HEGEMELRETFYMERZAZEFE THE
EEMARKNAEEMEEMIRHER |

— BEBUERER) R HER MR —HEHERIN
ERFHAEMA AL BMEER  mEHE &
SEZAEFHHEEBRNEELE &

- HMEEEBERBRXMRAEMEAEARERS
RABEAM -

EBEREEERATF
2016/17 F1R

(7]




Independent Auditor’s Report

18 3 % B EN R

VALUATION OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Refer to notes 3.9, 4.1 and 14 to the consolidated financial
Statements.

The Group owns a portfolio of investment properties
comprising commercial offices and shop units, located in
the PRC. Investment properties were significant to the
Group as they represented approximately 17% of the total
assets of the Group as at 31 March 2017.

These investment properties are stated at their fair value
based on independent external valuations.

The valuation process involves significant judgement in
determining the appropriate valuation methodology to be
used, and in estimating the underlying assumptions to be
applied. The valuations are highly sensitive to key
assumptions applied in deriving at the capitalisation,
discount and terminal yield rates i.e. a small change in the
assumptions can have a significant impact to the valuation.

Qur response

Our procedures in relation to the management’s valuation of
investment properties included:

—  Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of external valuer;

— Assessing the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions adopted for
the valuations;

— Checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used; and

— Assessing the adequacy of related disclosures in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the
Company’s annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process. The Audit Committee
assists the directors in discharging their responsibility in this
regard.

FHRzHMER
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ZEBRANEHMER  BIEREESFHRER LI
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Independent Auditor’s Report

18 3 % B EN R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

18 M % B E RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT BRYMRETFEMBRRAEZEE(E)

OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(CONTINUED)

e conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use . HEEHAFRECESTARMNRE HIELLER -
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based RIEFTER AR RE - i%éf&éﬁ%lé‘kli
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material NEBRNERTHETE  HmaJEEsy B£E
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that MFECERENEESEREE - WRRMRATE
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to BATHETENE  AIBLEEZEE®RE R IRBER
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a fé %‘,&?éﬁﬁ%#&qﬂ RIEBEHEE - BREBBRIFEE
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw CBIRMEERERIEEREER - BPINER
attention in our auditor’s report to the related xe%ﬁAV%(Eﬁi#EiEJtﬁﬁHX KIEET/RFE o A -
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements RREBEXBERATGEEH BEETRFELE -

or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and o S EEAMBERRNEREYHRARN  SENARER
content of the consolidated financial statements, BREEE  URGREMBREESTARMZFH
including the disclosures, and whether the HIF o

consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

. obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding . o OEEEATRAER TN EEERNE
the financial information of the entities or business E CEENEEE  WEHGRAUBHRKRERE
activities within the Group to express an opinion on cHMEE BEHXERETNAMW - BEEMHMIT -
the consolidated financial statements. We are ﬁszﬁt’j HERAESIEE -

responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, MEMEBIBIN BRPEBZETELE @B 2N ETH
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the BRI BAEHREE  AERMEESD G
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant A H A R4 ] B (L {r] 8 KRR PG ©

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our

audit.
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18 3 % B EN R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Cheung Or Ping
Practising Certificate Number P0O5412

Hong Kong, 19 June 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Incom

HEEHWE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZ=_ZT—tF=A=+—HIEFE

2017 2016
—ZE—+tF —ZE—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E AR%T T AREFTT
Revenue KA 6 693,512 597,023
Cost of sales SHE RN (559,414) (516,739)
Gross profit ER 134,098 80,284
Other income and other gains and losses E YA AR E b U2k & B8 6 53,929 101,906
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (17,920) (18,684)
Administrative expenses EIEER (40,341) (39,334)
Operating profit KRR 129,766 124,172
Finance costs BhE R A 7 (5,888) -
Share of results of joint ventures B ETEES (500) 916)
Share of result of an associate FE(REE S R AIEEE (414) (408)
Profit before income tax R P 5 A& R 8 122,964 122,848
Income tax expense Frisfif s 9 (49,290) (29,743)
Profit for the year FRER 73,674 93,105
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) Hfth 2 EUzs (FNRHIIE)
ltem that may be reclassified HEQWEEHRIEE
subsequently to profit or loss: Bx2IEE
Exchange differences on translation of REGINEBH WK 2
financial statements of foreign operations EH =% (566) (5,330)
Other comprehensive income FREMEEKE
for the year (566) (5,330)
Total comprehensive income for the year £R2H K58 73,108 87,775
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: BT A T FE{GE R
(E8) :
Owners of the Company RARER A 52,364 94,966
Non-controlling interests IEPERR R = 21,310 (1,861)
73,674 93,105
Total comprehensive income DTATEESEEZE
attributable to: Yk %8 -
Owners of the Company PAN/NEIEZE DN 51,798 89,636
Non-controlling interests IEPE AR R 2 21,310 (1,861)
73,108 87,775
Earnings per share for profit attributable FRZA QA THEE A
to the owners of the Company during BRI z2SRBF (Restated)
the year (in RMB cents) (AR®ES) (R&E5)
— Basic and diluted — BERR#E 11 2.13 3.88
EREREEBRALF
2016/17 F < 83




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

wE BT ESIR O &

Asat 31 March 2017 RA=ZE—+F=H=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+F TE—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR¥ET T ARETIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R MRS 13 56,163 58,696
Investment properties EYE 14 536,754 491,934
Interests in joint ventures ReEtEIER 16 184,764 185,264
Interest in an associate REEERNF) 2w 17 5,673 6,087
Other financial assets EfamEE 18 8,627 -
Financial assets at fair value BARERERYIERZ
through profit or loss TRIEE 19 7,070 4,778
Pledged deposits [REEEGEEE=N 25 5,500 150,000
Deferred tax assets EIEFR IR E B 28 12,658 15,012
817,209 911,771
Current assets REBEE
Properties held under development Y% 20 1,379,470 1,312,497
Properties held for sale FEWE 21 360,016 729,576
Accounts receivable TEURBREFX 22 1,524 2,657
Prepayments and other receivables FEA 5K & E b e W3R8 23 106,664 134,890
Tax recoverable AR B IE 20,813 24,329
Structured bank balances HEEMIRITA R 24 1,500 =
Pledged deposits EHERER 25 216,058 160,960
Cash and bank balances INE NMIRTTHE 25 264,392 119,526
2,350,437 2,484,435
Current liabilities REEE
Accounts payable FETER IR 26 79,897 48,809
Accruals, receipts in advance and FERT IR « TRUGRIA K
other payables H Ao FE A RTE 26 466,773 813,281
Provision for tax TR IE B 110,863 122,769
Bank and other loans RITREMER 27 228,258 366,692
885,791 1,351,551
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,464,646 1,132,884
Total assets less current liabilities HEERARBERE 2,281,855 2,044,655
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Bank and other loans RITREMER 27 604,565 448,509
Deferred tax liabilities FIEFIBAE 28 80,036 72,400
684,601 520,909
Net assets REE 1,597,254 1,523,746

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Positio

B BT ESR

As at 31 March 2017

RZE—+F=A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+F NS
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR%ET T AREFT
EQUITY xR
Equity attributable to the EATEE A
Company’s owners LR
Share capital A% A 29 20,735 10,193
Reserves fHiE 30 1,349,059 1,307,803
1,369,794 1,317,996
Non-controlling interests TR ER 227,460 205,750
Total equity R 1,597,254 1,523,746
Chan Heung Ling Shi Feng
BRIMES A&
Director Director
EFE EFE
EREREEBRALF

2016/17 F1R < 85




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mEERBER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-—Z—tF=A=1+—HILFE

Equity attrioutable to the owners of the Company

YN Z PN 3
Non-
Share Share  Statutory  Exchange  Retained controlling Totdl
Capital premium” reserve” reserve’ profits* Total interests equity
BE ROEE  EREE  EARE  BREA  FiRER  ERLE
RVB'000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETL AREBTn ARETR ARETR ARETR
(Note 30()  (Note 30(i)
(Watson) (Wit on)
At 1 Aprl 2015 RZE-REMA-A 9,931 537,99 66,439 6,966 569,008 1,190,338 207611 1,397,949
Transactions with owners BREAIZS
Issuance of shares 1iRM 262 37,760 - - - 38,022 - 38,022
Proft/{oss) for the year EREH/ (BB 5 S B = 94,966 94,966 (1,861) 93,105
Fxchange differences on trandlaion of ~ A EEN £ R KER 2
financial statements of foreign operations  [E 3 %% - - - (5,330) - (5,330) - (5,330)
Total comprehensive income for the year - £ A2 Bz 45 E = : (:330) 9496 89636 (1,861) 87,775
Transfer to statutory reserve BRITTEE - - 3,947 - (3947) - - -
At 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016 RoB—E=A=1t-Bk
“E-ERmA-A 10,193 575,754 70,386 1,636 060,027 1,317,996 205,750 1,523,746

86 Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equi

mERERSE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE T —+F=A=+—HIFE

Equity attributable to the owners of the Company

ADRE LR
Non-
Share Share  Statutory  Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium*  reserve*  reserve* profits* Total interests equity
Rx  REE*  iERE  EXRET  HERAC it FERER REAE
RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARMTR ARMTr ARBTR ARETR AR%Tz ARETR ARET:
(Note 30(i)  (Note 30(if)
(et 3o) (At 300i)
At 1 Aprl 2016 RZE-7EMA-A 10,193 575,754 70,386 1,636 660,027 1,317,996 205,750 1,523,746
Transaction with owners EREAIZS
Capital contribution to a subsidiary ANEARTE - - - - - - 400 400
Profit for the year g = = = - 52,364 52,364 21,310 13,674
Fxchange differences on trandlaion of ~~ A EESN £ R KER 2
financial statements of foreign operations  [E 3 £ % - - - (566) - (566) - (566)
Total comprehensive income for the year  £A2 FHZEE - - - (566) 52,364 51,798 2,310 73,108
Issuance of bonus shares F74R 10542 (10542 - - - - - -
Transfer to statutory reserve BRITTEE - - 5,846 - (5,846) - - -
At 31 March 2017 RZE-t£=f=1-H 20,735 565,212 76,232 1,070 706,545 1,369,794 207460 1,597,254

x The aggregate amount of these balances of RMB1,349,059,000
(2016: RMB1,307,803,000) in surplus is included as reserves in

the consolidated statement of financial position.

*

ZERBEHSA AR 1,849,059,000 7T (—FE—NF : A
R #1,307,803,0007T ) 5T A 47 & B ik R < A

EBEREEERATF
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mMEBRETRER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-—Z—tF=A=1+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—+t5F ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARKETT
Cash flows from operating activities RETEMELERESRE
Profit before income tax KR PSR AL A 122,964 122,848
Adjustments for: BT B EH FEE
Interest income FI 2 A (4,956) (9,382)
Interest expense FERZ 5,888 -
Depreciation of property, plant ME - WEK
and equipment miETE 3,053 2,521
Share of result of an associate NS E 414 408
Share of results of joint ventures EhEEDEEE 500 916
Fair value adjustment on financial assets BRARERERYIEC
at fair value through profit or loss TREEZAABERAE (2,292) N
Fair value adjustment on investment KEYEZ AR EFAE
properties (30,542) (71,953)
Operating profit before working BEEASEBE
capital changes Sl 95,029 45,358
Decrease in properties held under RERYER
development and properties held for sale HEMER D 364,651 286,277
Decrease/(increase) in accounts receivable  FEUREE FOR A (3L 1N0) 1,133 (1,114)
Increase in prepayments and other FEf IR M E A
receivables JE W RIS N (1,581) (58,290)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable FERTBRFRIE b0, CRid) 31,088 (16,485)
Decrease in accruals, receipts in advance JEETFE  FAWFEIE R
and other payables o &S BRI (347,846) (141,593)
Cash generated from operations KETEAERE 142,474 114,153
Interest received LS 4,956 9,382
Income tax paid BAATSH (47,691) (34,759)
Net cash generated from operating activities A8 & E B ff {5585 558 99,739 88,780
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n _\éiﬁﬁﬁé

For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZ=_ZT—tF=A=+—HIEFE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—REF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
s AR¥ET T ARETT

Cash flows from investing activities RETHMELERSHRE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment ~ FEB % - BKE L& (695) (3,136)
Purchase of other financial assets EEEMEREE (8,627) -
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BERALERESEERY

through profit or loss CRVEE = (4,778)
Advances to joint venture MEERFEAR = (1,526)
Acquisition of an associate g N = (6,495)
(Increase)/decrease in structured bank ERBIERITASR L), R

balances (1,500) 154,000
Decrease in pledged deposits BT BB 89,402 108,443
Net cash generated from investing activities — 1% &% B fiEE £ 3 % F 58 78,580 246,508
Cash flows from financing activities REEBHMELERSRE
Proceeds from issuance of shares BT P8 F0E = 40,820
Share issue expenses f&rE1TE R - (2,798)
Capital contribution from non-controlling R ERRMBAREE

interests to a subsidiary 400 -
Proceeds from new borrowings HEERTEHRIE 398,918 478,559
Repayments of borrowings EEEE (381,296) (847,219)
Interest paid BFE (51,886) (69,154)
Net cash used in financing activities BETB T HE S FEE (33,864) (399,792
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRBESESEYEM

cash equivalents (B2) #58 144,455 (64,504)
Effect of foreign exchange rates, net PER 7 2 HE 411 370
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FUREMIREEFEEY

of the year 119,526 183,660
Cash and cash equivalents at end FEREERESZEEY

of the year 25 264,392 119,526
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B B IS R R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-—Z—tF=A=1+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in Bermuda on 5
January 2011 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.
The registered office of the Company is located at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda and the principal place of business of the
Company is located at Room 1215, Tower B,
Hunghom Commercial Centre, 37-39 Ma Tau Wai
Road, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements. The directors of the Company
considered Pan Hong Holdings Group Limited (“Pan
Hong Holdings”), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Singapore Exchange Security Trading
Limited, as the ultimate holding company.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 83 to
188 have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
which collectively includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). The
consolidated financial statements also include the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
and statement of financial position of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2017 were approved for
issue by the board of directors (the “Board”) on 19
June 2017.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P B AR M R

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

In current year, the Group has adopted, for the first
time, the following new and revised standards,
amendments and interpretations (the “new HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants which are relevant to the Group’s
operations and effective for its financial statements for
the annual period beginning on 1 April 2016.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements

2012-2014 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to Clarification of Acceptable Methods
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 of Depreciation and Amortisation
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements
Amendments to Investment Entitles:
HKFRS 10, Applying the Consolidation
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Exception

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests In Joint Operations

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

The adoption of the new HKFRSs has no material
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZ T —+F=A=+—HIFE

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B IS R R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-—Z—tF=A=1+—HILFE

2.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

The following new and amended HKFRSs which are
potentially relevant to the Group’s financial
statements, have been issued, but are not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group:
HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements

2014-2016 Cycle'
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative’
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets

for Unrealised Losses'

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers?
Amendments to Revenue from Contracts
HKFRS 15 with Customers (Clarifications
to HKFRS 15)
HK(FRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration?
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers to Investment Property?
HKFRS 16 Lease®
Amendments to Sale or Contribution of
HKFRS 10 and Assets between an Investor
HKAS 28 and its Associate or Joint Venture*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018

Y Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019

N The amendments were originally intended to be effective

for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The
effective date has now been deferred/removed. Early
application of the amendments of the amendments
continues to be permitted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P B AR M R

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)
Amendments to HKAS 7 — Disclosure Initiative

The amendments introduce an additional disclosure
that will enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities. Other than the disclosure of additional
information, the directors of the Company do not
anticipate the application of these amendments will
have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statement.

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Recognition of
Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments relate to the recognition of deferred
tax assets and clarify some of the necessary
considerations, including how to account for deferred
tax assets related to debt instruments measured of
fair value.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale
or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses
to be recognised when an entity sells or contributes
assets to its associate or joint venture. When the
transaction involves a business the gain or loss is
recognised in full, conversely when the transaction
involves assets that do not constitute a business the
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in the joint venture or
associate.

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows (the business model
test) and that have contractual terms that give rise to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding (the
contractual cash flow characteristics test) are generally
measured at amortised cost. Debt instruments that
meet the contractual cash flow characteristics test are
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI”) if the objective of the entity’s
business model is both to hold and collect the
contractual cash flows and to sell the financial assets.
Entities may make an irrevocable election at initial
recognition to measure equity instruments that are not
held for trading at FVTOCI. All other debt and equity
instruments are measured at fair value through profit
orloss (“FVTPL”).
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-—Z—tF=A=1+—HILFE

2.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)
HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 includes new general hedge accounting
requirements to allow entities to better reflect their risk
management activities in financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial liabilities
from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities
designated at FVTPL, where the amount of change in
fair value attributable to change in credit risk of the
liability is recognised in other comprehensive income
unless that would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains the
requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities.

The Group has commenced its preliminary
assessment of the classification and measurement of
its financial assets and financial liabilities, and does
not expect any significant changes to the classification
and measurement of its financial assets and liabilities
currently measured at amortised cost and fair value
through profit or loss upon adoption of the standard.

The Group currently accounts for its investments in
unlisted equity securities at cost less impairment, if
any, as disclosed in note 18 to the financial
statements. On the adoption of HKFRS 9, the Group
will be required to measure such investments in
unlisted equity securities at fair value, with the
difference between the previous carrying value and
the fair value recognised in the opening balance of
retained earnings.

No financial liabilities are designated at fair value
through profit or loss, therefore the Group also do not
expect the adoption of the standard would result in
any impact to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P B AR M R

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)
HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)
Impairment

HKFRS 9 introduces a new forward-looking
impairment model based on expected credit losses to
replace the incurred loss model in HKAS 39. This
determines the recognition of impairment provisions
as well as interest revenue. For financial assets at
amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, the Group will now always
recognise (at a minimum) 12 months of expected
losses in profit or loss. Lifetime expected losses will
be recognised on these assets when there is a
significant increase in credit risk after initial
recognition.

The new impairment requirements are expected to
result in changes to and likely increases in impairment
loss allowances on accounts receivables and other
receivables, due to earlier recognition of credit losses.
The Group expects to adopt the simplified model for
its accounts receivables and will record an allowance
for lifetime expected losses from initial recognition. For
other receivables, the Group will initially provide for 12
months expected losses under the three-stage model.
The Group is still in the process of determining how it
will estimate expected credit losses and the sources
of forward-looking data.

The Group plans to adopt the standard in the financial
year beginning on 1 April 2018 and will include
additional disclosures in its financial statements for
that financial year. The Group is still assessing the
transition choices available.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-—Z—tF=A=1+—HILFE

2.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services
to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services.
HKFRS 15 supersedes existing revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11
Construction Contracts and related interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5-step
approach to revenue recognition:

° Step 1:  Identify the contract(s) with a
customer

o Step 2:  Identify the performance obligations
in the contract

o Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

o Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligations

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when each

performance obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRS. The standard also
significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative
disclosures related to revenue.

The Group has commenced its preliminary
assessment and does not expect significant changes
to the timing and profile of the Group’s revenue
recognition on adoption of HKFRS 15. With the
adoption of HKFRS 15, the revenue arising from the
sale of properties held for sale would be recognised at
a point in time when the risk and rewards of ownership
of these properties held for sale have been transferred
to purchasers.

The Group plans to adopt the standard in the financial
year beginning on 1 April 2018 and will include the
required additional disclosures in its financial
statements for that financial year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRS 15 — Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications
on identification of performance obligations;
application of principal versus agent; licenses of
intellectual property; and transition requirements.

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will
supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and related
interpretations, introduces a single lessee accounting
model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and
liabilities for all leases with a term of more 12 months,
unless the underlying asset is of low value. Specifically,
under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to recognise a
right-of-use asset representing its right to use the
underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation
of the right-of use asset and interest on the lease
liability, and also classifies cash repayments of the
lease liability into a principal portion and an interest
portion and presents them in the statement of cash
flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease
liability are initially measured on a present value basis.
The measurement includes non-cancellable lease
payments and also includes payments to be made in
optional periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to
exercise an option to extend the lease, or to exercise
an option to terminate the lease. This accounting
treatment is significantly different from the lessee
accounting for leases that are classified as operating
leases under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.

From the perspective of a lessor, the classification and
accounting for operating and finance leases remains
substantially unchanged under HKFRS 16. HKFRS 16
also requires enhanced disclosures by both lessees
and lessors.

On initial adoption of this standard, there may be an
insignificant impact on the accounting treatment for
the Group’s leases, particularly properties, which the
Group, as lessee, currently accounts for as operating
leases. The Group plans to adopt the standard in the
financial year beginning on 1 April 2019 with either full
or modified retrospective effect in accordance with the
transitional provisions, and will include the required
additional disclosures in its financial statements for
that financial years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-—Z—tF=A=1+—HILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated. The adoption of new and revised
HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements, if any, are disclosed in note 2.

3.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost basis,
except for investment properties and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss which
are stated at fair values. The measurement
bases are fully described in the accounting
policies below.

The financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand (“RMB’000”), except
when otherwise indicated.

[t should be noted that the accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparing these
financial statements. Although these estimates
are based on management’s best knowledge
and judgment of current events and actions,
actual results may ultimately differ from those
estimates. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial statements are disclosed in note 4.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZ T —+F=A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHBEHME(HE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.2 Basis of consolidation and business 3.2 SEEEREBEH

combination

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (note 3.3) made up to 31 March
each year.

Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised
in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the
effective dates of acquisition or up to the effective
dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by
other members of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-—Z—tF=A=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2

100 )

Basis of consolidation and business
combination (Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is
accounted for using the acquisition method. The
cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of
assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity
interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer.
The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed are principally measured at acquisition
date fair value. The Group’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains
or losses are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-
transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling
interest that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or
at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by
HKFRS. Acquisition-related costs incurred are
expensed unless they are incurred in issuing
equity instruments in which case the costs are
deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the acquirer is recognised at acquisition date
fair value. Subsequent adjustments to
consideration are recognised against goodwill
only to the extent that they arise from new
information obtained within the measurement
period (a maximum of 12 months from the
acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised
in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZ T —+F=A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHBEHME(HE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.2 Basis of consolidation and business 3.2 SEEEREBEH(E)

combination (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interest and
the non-controlling interest are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interest is
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (i) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interest. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in
the same manner as would be required if the
relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary is
the amount of those interests at initial
recognition plus the non-controlling interest’s
share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to non-
controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interest having a deficit balance.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-—Z—tF=A=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.3

3.4

102 )

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the
Company is able to exercise control. The
Company controls an investee if all three of the
following elements are present: power over the
investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from the investee, and the ability to use its
power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances
indicate that there may be a change in any of
these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less impairment loss, if any. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence and that is neither a
subsidiary nor a joint arrangement. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee but not control or joint control over
those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity
method whereby they are initially recognised at
cost and thereafter, their carrying amount are
adjusted for the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition change in the associates decisions
of except that losses in excess of the Group’s
interest in the associate are not recognised
unless there is an obligation to make good those
losses.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZ T —+F=A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHBEHME(HE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.4 Associates (Continued) 3.4 HENTF(E)

Profits and losses arising on transactions
between the Group and its associates are
recognised only to the extent of unrelated
investors’ interests in the associate. The
investor’s share in the associate’s profits and
losses resulting from these transactions is
eliminated against the carrying value of the
associate. Where unrealised losses provide
evidence of impairment of the asset transferred
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the
fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
acquired is capitalised and included in the
carrying amount of the associate. Where there is
objective evidence that the investment in an
associate has been impaired, the carrying
amount of the investment is tested for
impairment in the same way as other non-
financial assets.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are carried at cost
less impairment losses, if any. The results of
associates are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable
during the year.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #HZ=—%

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.5

104 )

Joint arrangements

The Group is a party to a joint arrangement
where there is a contractual arrangement that
confers joint control over the relevant activities
of the arrangement to the group and at least
one other party. Joint control is assessed under
the same principles as control over subsidiaries.

The Group classifies its interests in joint
arrangements as either:

— Joint ventures: where the Group has rights
to only the net assets of the joint
arrangement; or

— Joint operations: where the Group has
both the rights to assets and obligations
for the liabilities of the joint arrangement.

In assessing the classification of interests in joint
arrangements, the Group considers:

—  The structure of the joint arrangement;

— The legal form of joint arrangements
structured through a separate vehicle;

— The contractual terms of the joint
arrangement agreement; and

— Any other facts and circumstances
(including any other contractual
arrangements).

The Group accounts for its interests in joint
ventures using the equity method whereby they
are initially recognised at cost and thereafter,
their carrying amount are adjusted for the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in
the joint ventures’ net assets except that losses
in excess of the Group’s interest in the joint
ventures are not recognised unless there is an
obligation to make good those losses.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.5

3.6

Joint arrangements (Continued)

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint
venture above the fair value of the Group’s
share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and
included in the carrying amount of the
investment in joint venture. Where there is
objective evidence that the investment in a joint
venture has been impaired the carrying amount
of the investment is tested for impairment in the
same way as other non-financial assets.

The Group accounts for its interests joint
operations by recognising its share of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses in accordance
with its contractually conferred rights and
obligations.

The Company’s interests in joint ventures are
stated at cost less impairment losses, if any.
Results of joint ventures are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends received
and receivable.

Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB, which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency
transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the individual entity using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the reporting date, monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at that date. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
reporting date retranslation of monetary assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #HZ=—%
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.6

106 )

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined and are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Non-monetary items that are measured at
historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all
individual financial statements of foreign
operations, originally presented in a currency
different from the Group’s presentation
currency, have been converted into RMB.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into
RMB at the closing rates at the reporting date.
Income and expenses have been converted into
RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates, or at the average rates over
the reporting period provided that the exchange
rates do not fluctuate significantly. Any
differences arising from this procedure have
been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in the
translation reserve in equity.

When a foreign operation is disposed of, such
exchange differences are reclassified from equity
to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17

3.

TEEHBREE ()

3.6

SN E ()

BARESIRBAINEIEZIFEEIEEB T
REEAAEEABTERENHRE U2
BRAANERAREEZ — D °L‘M7|\T—*"1€<Jf§
SERAFEZIFEBHB T TENRE

REEAMBERERT  RABRIRAKEZS
B2 ER25 2BINEE 2B BRI
BERECABBARE - BERABNEERE
BHiZWREXBE[ARE - WAKRX
TR 5 B 2z 1T I & o fis [ 2 3 8 A8 R
8 AIAREREZ FOERLRBARE -
BMEES 2EMNEEE N A2 H KRR
Wit IR B E 2 B RET ©

EHEBINEBR  BHENZHEHE: /E
FREREREALEREXERZ — 87



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P B AR M R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-Z—tF=A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TEETTBERHIE (H#)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.7 Revenue recognition 3.7 WARER
Revenue comprises the fair value of the IWABEMEHEE 2 B W ERRE - 1=BH
consideration received or receivable for the sale REREMATFEARNEEEERTRFZE R
of properties, rendering of services and the use & Bz A EGNRREI RIFTI) o i1 £ 7 F
by others of the Group’s assets yielding interest HAGTRERAREE - B AR A (niEAa )
and dividends, net of rebates and discounts. BERISERTE - W AIRA T AR

Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, revenue is recognised as follows:

Revenue arising from sale of properties held for HEFEMEEA WA EZSFEME
sale is recognised upon the transfer of the HEEZBREOREEABIERERF
significant risks and rewards of ownership of FER  WARME FEETERLBRL
these properties held for sale to the customers. EHRIEEBINTHESEETKES (KRR
Revenue is recognised upon the transfer of the EAHE)NER ERAERBHARERR
legal title or the passing of possession to the Wz Te RO B - BIst ARBAEE
buyer or a completion certificate by the relevant BIaURFRIE o

government authorities, whichever is the later.
Deposits and instalments received from
customers prior to the date of revenue
recognition are included in current liabilities as
receipts in advance.

Interest income is recognised on a time- T B AFZ EBE R TR SA DA RS ] bE B B XERE R -
proportion basis using the effective interest

method.

Rental income receivable under operating leases BEHERK 2SR ARBLOIERE

is recognised in equal instalments over the Z AR SR A A ER -

periods covered by the lease terms.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #HZ=—%
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.8

108 )

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. The cost of an asset
comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to the
working condition and location for its intended
use. Subsequent costs are included in the
asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of
property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight line
method, at the following rates per annum:

Computers and other equipment 20.0%
Motor vehicles 20.0%
Buildings 2.5%
Leasehold improvement 25.0%

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Fully depreciated property, plant and equipment
are retained in the financial statements until they
are no longer in use.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal
is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.9

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a
currently undetermined future use and property
that is being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property.

On initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at
fair value, unless it is still in the course of
construction or development at the reporting
date and its fair value cannot be reliably
determined at that time.

Fair value is determined by external professional
valuers with sufficient experience with respect to
both the location and the nature of the
investment properties. The carrying amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position reflect the prevailing market
conditions at the reporting date.

Gain or loss arising from either a change in fair
value or the sale of investment properties is
included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year in which it
arises.

For a transfer from properties held under
development and properties held for sale to
investment properties that is carried at fair value,
any difference between fair value of the property
at that date and its previous carrying amount is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-—Z—tF=A=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.9

3.10

110 )

Investment properties (Continued)

Properties under construction or development
for future use as an investment property are
classified as investment property under
construction. If the fair value cannot be reliably
determined, the investment property under
construction will be measured at cost until such
time as fair value can be determined or
construction is completed.

When the Group completes the construction or
development of a self-constructed investment
property, any difference between the fair value
of the property at the completion date and its
previous carrying amount is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment and investments in subsidiaries,
associates and a joint venture to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use)
of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is
increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

3.11

(Continued)

Value in use is based on the estimated future
cash flows expected to be derived from the
asset or cash generating unit, discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset or cash generating unit.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if
the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a
payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

Leases where substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of assets remain within
the lessor are accounted for as operating lease.
Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on a
straight line basis over the lease terms except
where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased assets. Lease incentives received are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rental are charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-—Z—tF=A=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.11 Leases (Continued)

112 )

Leasehold interests in land are up-front
payments to acquire the land use right. The
payments are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on the straight-line
basis over the lease term.

For leasehold interest in land included in
properties held under development and
properties held for sale, the amortisation of
prepaid land lease is capitalised as part of the
building costs during the development period
but charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for completed
properties. Other amortisation of prepaid land
lease is expensed.

Certain properties leased out under operating
leases are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position as investment
properties. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised on a straight-line-basis
over the lease term. The recognition of rental
income is set out in note 3.7.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZ T —+F=A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHBEHME(HE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.12 Financial assets 3.12 SREE

The Group’s accounting policies for financial
assets are set out below.

—  Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

— Financial assets are classified into loans
and receivables

—  Financial assets are classified as available-
for-sales financial assets

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending
on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired and where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at
every reporting date. All financial assets are
recognised when, and only when, the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases and
sales of financial assets are recognised on trade
date. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in
the case of financial assets not at fair value
through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when
the rights to receive cash flows from the
receivables/investments expire or are transferred
and substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-—Z—tF=A=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.12 Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss includes financial assets held for
trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives
are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments or financial guarantee
contracts.

The Group has designated contingent
consideration arising from acquisition of
associate as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss upon initial
recognition.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the
financial assets included in this category
are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.12 Financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less
any impairment losses. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate and transaction
cost.

At each reporting date, loans and
receivables are reviewed to determine
whether there is any objective evidence of
impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of
individual financial assets includes
observable data that come to the attention
of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

(@  significant financial difficulty of the
debtor; a breach of contract, such
as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

(b) it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;

(c) significant changes in the
technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtors; and

(d) a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment in an
equity instrument below its costs.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-—Z—tF=A=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.12 Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Loans and receivables (Continued)

Loss events in respect of a group of
financial assets include observable data
indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from the group of financial assets.
Such observable data includes but not
limited to adverse changes in the payment
status of debtors in the group and,
national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the

group.

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss on loans and receivables
carried at amortised cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). The
amount of the loss is recognised in profit
or loss of the period in which the
impairment occurs. In relation to accounts
and notes receivables, a provision for
impairment is made when there is
objective evidence (such as the probability
of insolvency or significant financial
difficulties of the debtor) that the Group
will not be able to collect all of the
amounts due under the original terms of
the invoice. Except for accounts and other
receivables, the carrying amount of loans
and receivables is directly reduced by any
identified amount of impairment. The
carrying amount of account and other
receivables is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. When any part of
account and other receivables is
determined as uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P B AR M R

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.12 Financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Loans and receivables (Continued)

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed to the extent
that it does not result in a carrying amount
of the financial asset exceeding what the
amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the
date the impairment is reversed. The
amount of the reversal is recognised in
profit or loss of the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are non-derivative financial
assets that are designated as available-
for-sale or are not included in other
categories of financial assets. Subsequent
to initial recognition, these assets are
carried at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for impairment losses and
foreign exchange gains and losses on
monetary instruments, which are
recognised in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments
that do not have a quoted market price in
an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
instruments, they are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses.

Where a decline in the fair value
constitutes objective evidence of
impairment, the amount of the loss is
removed from equity and recognised in
profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-—Z—tF=A=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHBEHME(HE)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.12 Financial assets (Continued) 3.12 SREE (&)

(i) AHRHELHEE (&)

(iiij)  Available-for-sale financial assets

(Continued)

Any impairment losses on available-for-
sale debt investments are subsequently
reversed in profit or loss if an increase in
the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the recognition of the impairment
loss.

For available-for-sale equity investment,
any increase in fair value subsequent to an
impairment loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income.

For available-for-sale equity investment
that is carried at cost, the amount of
impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of
the asset and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss is not reversed.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZ T —+F=A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHBEHME(HE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.13 Properties held under development 3.13 B YE

Properties held under development which are
held for future sale are included in current assets
and comprise land held under operating lease
(note 3.11) and aggregate cost of development,
materials and supplies, wages, and other
expenses (“development costs”). Properties
held under development are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Other expenses
included (a) those costs that are incurred in
bringing the properties held under development
to their present location and condition; and (b) a
systematic allocation of fixed overheads that are
incurred on development of properties. Fixed
overheads are indirect costs which remain
relatively constant regardless of the size or
volume of the development.

On completion, the properties are transferred to
properties held for sale. Cost is calculated using
the weighted average method.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and applicable
selling expenses.

Properties held under development are classified
as current assets unless the construction period
of the relevant property development project is
expected to complete beyond normal operating
cycle.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #HZ=—%

—tFZA=Z+-HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.14

3.15

120 )

Properties held for sale

In case of completed properties developed by
the Group, cost is determined by apportionment
of the total development costs for that
development project, attributable to the unsold
properties. The cost of completed properties
held for sale comprises all costs of purchase,
cost of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less estimated
selling expenses.

Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities
comprise those obligations to, or claims from,
fiscal authorities relating to the current or prior
reporting period, that are unpaid at the reporting
date. They are calculated according to the tax
rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal
periods to which they relate, based on the
taxable profit for the year. All changes to current
tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a
component of tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability
method on temporary differences at the
reporting date between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, tax losses available to be carried
forward as well as other unused tax credits, to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit,
including existing taxable temporary differences,
will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and
unused tax credits can be utilised.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17

3.

TEEHBREE ()

3.14

3.15

HEME

MAREETKAEZYE  RATE RS
DAREVEREFREREB 2HABERANEEM
BE FEHEZERIMEZALHEH
BERA  ABEARSEFEESREAE
b R ARSURREE A 2 EAB B A B K

FEMERIZNA R A ZIFHE(UREE RE)
JIfR - IR FERAEEHBIED 25T
EERAIHERX °

8Bz astiRE
PRS T B IR BN ER TR 1B SR AER IR -

BUEFTSHEER SHBERFEEAIRBE
R B R ) B B B S S sk A SRS
BHMASNcETRRE  HIRBEEAH
BRIz AR E LB EAG - RBAE
B RERBEFE - %ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁ?i
BEZEHNERRERARIBAT 25

BEREFERNRE ARV BRERAEERE
BREEEREEARER I ERER
REBEEFE - — BRI ARRNE R EZHE
MRECHEAR BRERBEEEDNAAE
AIREREZRH  AEENEEEREMKR

BAMER R - EAARRBEN (B
RARRAERZ5) A BIEE AR E

Z8 - APABRBEBBRLRGAHAELR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P B AR M R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZ T —+F=A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHBEHME(HE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.15 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

3.15 FEH 2 a5 EE (8)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises
from initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither taxable nor
accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting,
at tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period the liability is settled or the asset realised,
provided they are enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in
measuring deferred tax amount is when an
investment property is carried at fair value under
HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the
presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax
amounts on these investment properties are
measured using the tax rates that would apply
on sale of these investment properties at their
carrying amounts at the reporting date. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all the economic benefits embodied
in the property over time, rather than through
sale.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BE—ZT—+&=ZA=+—HILtFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.15 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

TEEHBREE ()

3.15 FMEH 2 a5 EE (8)

122 )

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss, or in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity if
they relate to items that are charged or credited
to other comprehensive income or directly to
equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if,

(@  the Group has the legally enforceable right
to set off the recognised amounts;

(b)  current tax assets and current tax liabilities
are presented in net; and

(c) intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities in net if, and only if,

(@  the entity has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred
tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(i)  different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.16

3.17

3.18

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank
and in hand, demand deposits with banks and
short term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, less pledged deposits.

Share capital and share premium

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share
capital is determined using the nominal value of
shares that have been issued.

Share premium includes any premiums received
on the issuance of shares over the par value.
Any transaction costs associated with the
issuance of shares are deducted from share
premium (net of any related income tax benefit)
to the extent they are incremental costs directly
attributable to the equity transaction.

Retirement benefit costs and short-term
employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance which is
available to its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions to the MPF Scheme by the Group
and employees are made based on a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-—Z—tF=A=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHBEHME(HE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.18 Retirement benefit costs and short-term 3.18 ERBRA AR EHESERF ()

124 )

employee benefits (Continued)
Retirement benefit costs (Continued)

Pursuant to the relevant regulations in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the
Group has participated in a local municipal
government retirement benefit scheme (the
“Scheme”), whereby the Group is required to
contribute a certain percentage of basic salaries
of its employees to the Scheme to fund their
retirement benefits. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the
retirement benefits obligations of all existing and
future retired employees in the PRC. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the
Scheme is to pay the ongoing required
contributions under the Scheme mentioned
above. The Group’s contributions to the
Scheme are expensed as incurred.

Short-term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that are
expected to be settled wholly before twelve
months after the end of the annual reporting
period in which the employees render the
related service. Short term employee benefits
are recognised in the year when the employees
render the related service.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such
as sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZ T —+F=A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHBEHME(HE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.19 Financial liabilities 3.19 &8s

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts
and bill and other payables and bank and other
loans.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All interest related
charges are recognised in accordance with the
Group’s policy on borrowing costs (note 3.22).

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability, and the difference
in respective carrying amount is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Bank and other loans

Bank and other loans are recognised initially at
fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Bank and other loans are subsequently stated
at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income over the period of the loans using the
effective interest method.

Bank and other loans are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the reporting date.

Accounts payables and other payables and
accruals

Accounts payables and other payables and
accruals are recognised initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-—Z—tF=A=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.20 Provisions and contingent liabilities

126 )

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of
the amount of the obligation can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future uncertain events not wholly within the
control of the Group, are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the
course of the allocation of purchase price to the
assets and liabilities acquired in a business
combination. They are initially measured at fair
value at the date of acquisition and
subsequently measured at the higher of the
amount that would be recognised in a
comparable provision as described above and
the amount initially recognised less any
accumulated amortisation, if appropriate.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZ T —+F=A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHBEHME(HE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.21 Financial guarantees issued

3.21 BRHZHEER

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer (or guarantor) to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with
the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee,
the fair value of the guarantee is initially
recognised as deferred income within accounts
and other payables. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable
to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit or
loss on initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued.

In addition, provisions are recognised if and
when it becomes probable that the holder of the
guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee and the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the current
carrying amount i.e. the amount initially
recognised less accumulated amortisation,
where appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-—Z—tF=A=1+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.22

3.23

3.24

128 )

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time
that is required to complete and prepare the
asset for its intended use. A qualifying asset is
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale. Other finance costs are expensed.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the
cost of a qualifying asset when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are
being incurred and activities that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
are being undertaken. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying
asset for its intended use or sale are completed.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when
they are approved by the shareholders in a
general meeting. Proposed final dividends are
disclosed in the notes to financial statements.
Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed
and declared and consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Government Grants

Government grants are recognised when there
is reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as revenue in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which
the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of
the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.25 Related parties

@

A person or a close member of that
person’s family is related to the Group if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the
Group; or

(i) is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the
Company’s parent.

Key management personnel are those
persons having authority and responsibility
for planning, directing, and controlling the
activities of the Group or the Company,
directly or indirectly, including any
directors (whether executive or otherwise)
of the Group or the Company.

An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions apply:

(i) The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BE—ZT—+&=ZA=+—HILtFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TEETTBERHIE (H#)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.25 Related parties (Continued) 3.25 BEES (&)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of b) HM—RELBEE THEMIEM - BIER
the following conditions apply: (Continued) EEEHEE: (8)
(v The entity is a post-employment V) ZERAAESENEAEEEH
benefit plan for the benefit of the HrEBREEBNGER L ZEER
employees of the Group or an entity BHIFTE -

related to the Group.

(vii  The entity is controlled or jointly Vi) ZERZ(FTERBIA TS et
controlled by a person identified in Eibz::1I
(@).

(vij A person identified in (a)(i) has Wi) R EOFTEBIATEHZERES A
significant influence over the entity %é;ﬁjjgz%nzg G PAS
or is a member of key management NN ZEE B8 o

personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group (viii) ;A BERFHEMBEE ZEMKE
of which it is a part, provides key AAMAEE S EAEE TR AR
management personnel services to HEIEZETBEABRY -

the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person —BALTZERHE R EIEENEE

are those family members who may be LLTTX%HH%%?@EZ% ATEHZZE

expected to influence, or be influenced by, TRHEZEREKE  WBKE:

that person in their dealings with the entity

and include:

()  that person’s children and spouse or () ZBRALZTLREBIIE:
domestic partner;

(i)  children of that person’s spouse or iy RBAALTZEBIRBZF:
domestic partner; and &

(i)  dependents of that person or that (i) ZBATHZBATZEBIR
person’s spouse or domestic B2ZEAN-
partner.

1 30 Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.26 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported to
the executive directors for their decisions about
resources allocation to the Group’s business
components and for their review of the
performance of those components.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature of
production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of
these criteria.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to the
related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below:
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-—Z—tF=A=1+—HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.1

132 )

Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

Fair value of investment properties and
properties held for sale upon transfer to
investment properties

Properties held for sale upon transfer to
investment properties of the Group were stated
at fair value in accordance with the accounting
policy. The fair value of the investment properties
is determined by a firm of independently
qualified professional surveyors and the fair
value of investment properties as at the
reporting dates and properties held for sale
upon transfer to investment properties are set
out in notes 14 and 21 respectively. Such
valuation was based on certain assumptions,
which are subject to uncertainty and might
materially differ from the actual results.

Impairment of accounts and other
receivables

The Group’s management assesses the
collectability of accounts and other receivables.
This estimate is based on the credit history of its
customers or counterparties and the current
market condition. Management reassesses the
impairment loss at the reporting date.

Net realisable value of properties held for
sale and properties held under
development

Management determines the net realisable value
of properties held for sale and properties held
under development by using prevailing market
data such as most recent sale transactions and
valuation of the projects in its existing partially
completed state of construction taking into
account cost of work done, and cost to
completion from gross development value
assuming satisfactory completion.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.1

4.2

Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

Net realisable value of properties held for
sale and properties held under
development (Continued)

These estimates require judgement as to the
anticipated sale prices by reference to recent
sales transactions in nearby locations, rate of
new property sales, marketing costs (including
price discounts required to stimulate sales) and
the expected costs of completion of properties,
the legal and regulatory framework and general
market conditions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s properties held under development and
properties held for sale as at 31 March 2017
were approximately RMB1,379,470,000 (2016:
RMB1,312,497,000) and RMB360,016,000
(2016: RMB729,576,000) respectively.

Critical judgements in applying the entity’s
accounting policies

Revenue recognition

The Group has recognised revenue from sale of
properties held for sale during the year as
disclosed in note 6 to the financial statements.
The assessment of when an entity has
transferred the significant risks and rewards of
ownership to buyer requires examination of the
circumstances of the transaction. In most cases,
the transfer of risks and rewards of ownership
coincides with the transfer of the legal title or the
passing of possession to the buyer or a
completion certificate is issued by the relevant
government authorities. The Group believes that
its recognition basis of sales as set out in note
3.7 is appropriate and is the current practice in
the PRC.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BE—ZT—+&=ZA=+—HILtFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.2

134 )

Critical judgements in applying the entity’s
accounting policies (Continued)

Estimates of current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to taxation in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the amount of the provision of
taxation and the timing of payment of the related
taxation. Where the final tax outcome is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in periods in which such
determination are made.

The Group is subject to Land Appreciation
Tax (“LAT”) in the PRC. However, the
implementation and settlement of this tax varies
among various tax jurisdictions in cities of the
PRC, and the Group has not finalised its LAT
calculation and payments with any local tax
authorities in the PRC. Accordingly, significant
judgement is required in determining the amount
of the land appreciation and its related LAT. The
Group recognised LAT based on management’s
best estimates according to the understanding
of the tax rules.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

An operating segment is a component of the Group
that is engaged in business activities from which the
Group may earn revenue and incur expenses, and is
identified on the basis of the internal management
reporting information that is provided to and regularly
reviewed by the Group’s executive directors in order
to allocate resources and assess performance of the
segment. For the years presented, executive directors
have determined that the Group has only one single
business component/reportable segment as the
Group is only engaged in the business of sale and
lease of properties which is the basis to allocate
resources and assess performance.

The geographical location of the specified non-current
assets is based on the physical location of the asset,
in the case of property, plant and equipment, the
location of the operation. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the majority of the Group’s
operation and centre of management are sourced
from its subsidiaries in Jiangxi Province, the PRC,
which considered that the operation base of the
Group is domiciled in the PRC, as one geographical
location and therefore, no analysis of geographical
information is presented.

The total revenue from external customers is mainly
sourced from the PRC. The total revenue is disclosed
in note 6.

There is no single customer that contributed to 10%
or more of the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31
March 2017 and 2016.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-—Z—tF=A=1+—HILFE

6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER 6. WA - Htl AR H AWz K B8
GAINS AND LOSSES
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, other FARRA(BIAREE 2 E%E5E) - HURA N RHEA
income and other gains and losses recognised during W R EBIT ¢

the year are as follows:

2017 2016
—E—+tF S ANCS
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTE ARETT

Revenue KA
Sale of properties held for sale HEFEYE 693,512 597,023

Other income and other gains and losses HWW AU R Etii = R EiE

Exchange loss, net b 5 1858 (10,869) -
Government grants* BAT&EBh~ 4,187 -
Net fair value gain on investment properties & &% LG EEELRE
and properties held for sale upon transfer WEYHEZ AR BEWREFEE
to investment properties (note 74) (Hiat14) 30,542 71,953
Net fair value gain on financial assets at fair ~ IZA R BERERIIIKRZ TREE 2
value through profit or loss NABEWRRFE 2,292 =
Interest income L2 A
— from bank deposits — RERITERK 4,876 9,382
— from structured bank balances — REEBMRITE 80 -
4,956 9,382
Rental income HEWA 21,374 19,657
Sundry income I A 1,447 914
53,929 101,906
= The Group received unconditional discretionary grants 5 TN [F K B AHR P B TR BB s E T E D
from the relevant PRC government authorities in support R ENEIEMRELEDS -

of enterprise operating in specified industry.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZ=_ZT—tF=A=+—HIEFE

FINANCE COSTS 7. ®WEHK
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETTT
Interest charges on financial liabilities RBERATIIEzZEHEEZ
stated at amortised cost: FEBEX
Bank loans IRITER 43,195 38,926
Other loans EMEK 8,691 30,228
51,886 69,154
Less: amount capitalised in properties o BEEEBENMEtERRER
held under development Yl k| (45,998) (69,154)
5,888 -

The weighted average capitalisation rate of borrowings

was 5.80% (2016: 5.10%) per annum for the year. ZT—RF :510%) °

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

8. FRATEHIATER

FREBEEZMEFHEREEBEF580% (=

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Profit before income tax is arrived at after BRATE AR R EMEB(GFA)
charging/(crediting): AT &IEBIER
Auditor’s remuneration ZEREN N & 805 748
Cost of properties held for sale R AR 2 HFEMEKRN
recognised as expense 526,658 482,539
Depreciation (note 13(b)) W& (B 13b) 3,053 2,521
Operating lease charge in respect of THREF EERERS
land and buildings 393 341
Outgoings in respect of investment properties B2 NI& B W EFRE £ 2
that generated rental income during the year & WABBZFX 278 304
Employee costs, including EERA(BEEEHS)
directors’ emoluments
— Wages and salaries — ILENFHS 27,028 24,854
— Retirement benefit scheme — BRREFE B K E B HRET S
contributions defined contribution plans 3,076 2,830
Less: amount capitalised in properties W BEREERNMEERFRER
held under development MEZSE (7,129) (7,252)
22,975 20,432
HBEREMARAT
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-—Z—tF=A=1+—HILFE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FEHEAX

2017 2016
—E—+tF S ANCS
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTE ARETT

Current tax — the PRC ENERFiIE —
Current year KEE
— Enterprise income tax (“EIT”) — EMGH ([ REREH]) 34,234 18,529
— LAT — T ER 6,815 6,557
Over-provision in prior years B FEREEE
— LAT — T HbIEER (1,749) (13,332)
39,300 11,754
Deferred income tax (note 28) BB (H17F28) 9,990 17,989
Total income tax expense FriEfiB 4% 49,290 29,743

EIT has been provided on the estimated profits of
subsidiaries operating in the PRC at 25% (2016:
25%).

Under the law of the PRC on EIT, corporate
withholding income tax is levied on the foreign investor
for the dividends distributed out of the profits
generated by the foreign investment enterprises. The
Group’s applicable withholding income tax rate is at
5% (2016: 5%).

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to
60% on the appreciation of land value, being the
proceeds from sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including cost and land use rights,
borrowing costs, business tax and all property
development expenditures. The tax is incurred upon
transfer of property ownership. There are certain
exemptions available for the sales of ordinary
residential properties if the appreciation values do not
exceed 20% of the total deductible items (as defined
in the relevant PRC tax laws). Sales of commercial
properties are not eligible for such an exemption.

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% (2016:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the
year. No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as
the Group had no estimated assessable profits arising
in or derived from Hong Kong for both years.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-Z—tF=A=+—HILFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 9. FriSHiBAxk (&)
Reconciliation between income tax expense and RERARRAEESHAY RS TE M 2 SR
accounting profit at applicable tax rates is as follows: T
2017 2016
—E—+tF S ANCS
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETIT
Profit before income tax METE R ALG A 122,964 122,848
Tax on profit before income tax, R PTAST AD & A B
calculated at the rates applicable RAEBRDEER N2
to profit in the jurisdiction concerned BEAMERAE 30,741 30,712
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARBRA Z BIIRR 2 (2,010) (1,873)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A AS 2 BiIET 2 11,619 4,392
Provision of LAT for the year A+ 3% (E B 6,815 6,557
Over-provision of LAT in prior years BT A I B R R RE R (1,749) (13,332)
Tax effect on EIT of LAT payable FEAS EHIRETR 2 S EFTEH 2
MIBRE (1,266) 1,694
Tax effect of unrecognised tax loss RIET %RIE =l zmlﬁ - 1,974 572
Tax effect of withholding tax TEHH 2 IR & 3,166 1,021
Income tax expense FEHExX 49,290 29,743
DIVIDENDS 10. BE
The Board proposed a final dividend of HK$0.01 per EEgERMEE T —tF A=+ —HLFE
ordinary share, amounting to approximately IREGRR0.01 BT 2 KBRS - & $£4924,640,000
HK$24,640,000 (equivalent to approximately BT (FHERH AR 21,848,0007T) ' WK ==
RMB21,848,000) for the year ended 31 March 2017, —tFEAZTEABTZEERRAFAE LR
and will be submitted for formal approval by the 2 AR IE LA o

shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting to be held on 27 July 2017.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final EFe VTR RNEBEE S —"F=-A=1+—H
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2016. IEFEZREBRE -

EBEREEERATF
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-—Z—tF=A=1+—HILFE

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE FOR PROFIT 11.

ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE OWNERS OF THE

RAREEARGERN 2BREF

COMPANY
2017 2016
—E—+t5F AN S
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Profit for the year attributable to RRATHEE AEEFREFR
the owners of the Company 52,364 94,966
Number of Number of
shares shares
gl 4= & 8B
’000 000
TR Fix
(Restated)
(Fe531))
Weighted average number of ordinary BT EEREERFZ
shares for the purposes of calculating TERMETSE
basic earnings per share
Issued ordinary share at 1 April REA—BZzBETEEAR 1,232,000 1,200,000
Effect of share issue under placing BB ERTRD 2 E - 14,339
Effect of bonus issue AT E 1,232,000 1,232,000
Weighted average number of ordinary RZA=+—HEBRZ
shares at 31 March hniEFEE & 2,464,000 2,446,339
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
(Restated)
(Fe=3%1))
Basic earnings per share for the year BEZE=A=+—HLEE
ended 31 March (in RMB cents) BRELRBR(ARESD) 2.13 3.88

The diluted earnings per share is the same as the
basic earnings per share, as the Group has no dilutive
potential shares during the current and prior years.

On 27 May 2016, the Board resolved to allot and
issue new shares on the basis of one bonus share for
every one ordinary share to the shareholders of the
Company. A total of 1,232,000,000 new ordinary
shares were allotted and issued on 11 August 2016.
The weighted average number of ordinary shares for
the purposes of calculating basic earnings per share
for the year ended 31 March 2017 had been
retrospectively adjusted to 2,464,000,000 shares
(2016: 2,446,338,798 shares) after completion of the
bonus issue on 12 August 2016.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE T —+F=A=+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, FIVE HIGHEST 12. EEFMH  IEESFMALIRESHEEERS
PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENT

(a) Directors’ emoluments (@) EE=Me
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant BIE MR EEBRTHEOIEE Z R EFT
to the Listing Rules and the disclosure WEIZEEMSWT :

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance are as follows:

Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and other Discretionary scheme

Fees benefits bonuses contributions Total
id 2N RIRER

e REMET BT SRR st

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARRTR ARETx

Year ended 31 March 2017 BE-E-—+&
ZR=t-BL%E

Executive directors HiTEZE
Mr. Shi Feng RERAE 328 - 132 19 479
Mr. Wong Lui TEr4E 562 85 146 15 808
Ms. Gao Lan BELT 244 - 99 16 359
Non-executive director FHITEE
Ms. Chan Heung Ling BmL t 750 399 89 - 1,238
Independent non-executive directors B/ IEH7TEE
Mr. Lee Man To FEBLE 156 - - - 156
Mr. Xie Gang FRRI 104 - - - 104
Ms. Zhang Juan RIERT 104 - - - 104

2,248 484 466 50 3,248

EBEREEERATF
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-—Z—tF=A=1+—HILFE

12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, FIVE HIGHEST 12. EEFM - TEESFHRAIRSREEENS

PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR (&)
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENT (CONTINUED)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EE=M<E (&)
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and other  Discretionary scheme
Fees benefits bonuses  contributions Total
¥e 28 RINEF
e RHEAER WigTEa ST @t

RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARRTL  ARETL  ARETR

Year ended 31 March 2016 BE-E-XE
ZA=t-BLEE

Executive directors HiTEZE
Mr. Shi Feng hlgsgs 361 - 132 19 512
Mr. Wong Lui TarE 528 72 143 15 758
Ms. Gao Lan SEXT 265 - 99 16 380
Non-executive director FHTEE
Ms. Chan Heung Ling R L+ 704 216 58 - 978
Independent non-executive directors B/ IEH7TEE
Mr. Lee Man To FEBEE 147 - - - 147
Mr. Xie Gang R 98 - - - 9%
Ms. Zhang Juan RIERT 98 - - - 9%

2,201 288 432 50 2,971
There is no arrangement under which a director FA - BEEENEIRERETAHS 2
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments ZHE(ZE—RE  E) o

during the year (2016: nil).

Mr. Shi Feng is also the Chief Executive Officer FAEEERABERRBZEREBHRNTE  MEX
of the Company and his emolument disclosed FE KRB EEEREERITE AT
above includes those of services rendered by RERBEZME -

him as the Chief Executive Officer.

1 42 Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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e R AR MR

12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENT (CONTINUED)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group include four (2016: three) directors,
whose emoluments are included in the
disclosures above. The emoluments of the
remaining one (2016: two) highest paid
individual, whose emoluments fell within the
salary band of nil to HK$1,000,000, for the year
ended 31 March 2017 were as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZ T —+F=A=+—HIFE

EZFH IEBSFMALRSREEEMNS
(&)

12.

EEBEHFMAL

REEBRERSHFHALTBIENE(ZZT—X
F=ZR)EF EMSERN EXZHE - &
BT +FZA=F+—HILFE & T~—
Z(ZE—RNF: - MB)EETMALZZHE
(£ &8 EN T Z 21,000,000/ T2 ) a0
T

(b)

2017 2016

—E—+tHF —E—XF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETIT

Salaries, allowances and other benefits & -« 285 & H 78 533 598
Discretionary bonuses BIETEAT 46 141
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R i@ FI5T 214 2 16 26
595 765

No emolument was paid by the Group to any of
the directors or the highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group,
or as compensation for loss of office during the

FA AEERERAEANESTHIRSFHIHA
IXNEAMEERMAIMATER LR Z
REBERBE(CT—RF  ®) -

year (2016: Nil).
(c) Senior management emolument (c) SHREEEMWSE
The emoluments paid or payable to members of ENEMNIEEEEIREEBRE S EH
non-director senior management were within the BT
following bands:
2017 2016
—E—+tF S ANCS
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 87T 4 4
EREREEERAA

2016/17 F1R
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-—Z—tF=A=1+—HILFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y%  BEKRRZE
Computers
and other Motor Leasehold
equipment vehicles Buildings improvement Total
EfR HE
HitiktE RE BF MERE st

RVB'O00 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARBTTE AREBTL AREBTT ARBTR ARETR

At 1 April 2015 R-E-REMA—H
Cost B AR 2,835 5,348 8,919 - 17,102
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (1,715) (4,006) 611) = (6,332)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,120 1,342 8,308 - 10,770
Year ended 31 March 2016 BE-Z—XE
ZRA=+-BHLEFE

Opening net carrying amount R RE 1,120 1,342 8,308 - 10,770
Additions INE 2,804 332 - - 3,136
Transferred from properties held BEEMEER (I721)

for sale (note 21) - - 47,515 - 47,515
Depreciation neE (1,626) (370) (756) - (2,752)
Exchange realignment BN R - 27 - - 27
Closing net carrying amount BRREFE 2,298 1,331 55,067 - 58,696

At 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016 R=—Z—-XF=A=1t—H

R=E-REMA—H
Cost AR 5,639 5,707 56,434 - 67,780
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (3,341) (4,376) (1,367) - (9,084)
Net carrying amount REFE 2,298 1,331 55,067 - 58,696
Year ended 31 March 2017 BE-Z2—+F

ZA=tT-BLEFE

Opening net carrying amount HYEEFE 2,298 1,331 55,067 - 58,696
Additions NE 228 320 - 147 695
Depreciation nE (1,319) (497) (1,423) (37) (3,276)
Exchange realignment fE 5 AR - 48 o - 48
Closing net carrying amount HRRERE 1,207 1,202 53,644 110 56,163
At 31 March 2017 n=8—tE=A=1—H
Cost B AN 5,867 6,075 56,434 147 68,523
Accumulated depreciation ZIE (4,660) (4,873) (2,790) (37) (12,360)
Net carrying amount BRE A 1,207 1,202 53,644 110 56,163

1 44 Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZ T —+F=A=+—HIFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. W% - BERRZE (H&)
(CONTINUED)
At 31 March 2017, the Group’s certain buildings of RZE—+FE=ZA=+—"H AEBHARE
approximately RMB53,644,000 (2016: RMB54,774,000) 53,644,000 7T (ZZF—/"F : AR¥54,774,0007T)
were pledged for bank and other loans (note 27) of the ZETEFEDIGAER ZRITREME R (MI:x27)
Group. TEHH o
Notes Htat -
(@) Buildings held by the Group are located in the PRC. () AEEFFZEFLRAE -
() Depreciation charges have been included in: (b) HWEALZEEA -
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREFT
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position A MBARRE
— capitalised in properties held — BR(bIERREEHYE
under development 223 231
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income #4242 E W E &
— selling and distribution expenses —HERDHER 51 69
— administrative expenses — EEEH 3,002 2,452
3,053 2,521
3,276 2,752

EBEREEERATF
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-—Z—tF=A=1+—HILFE

14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REWHE
2017 2016
—E—+tF S ANCS
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
At beginning of the year F1]) 491,934 385,233
Transfer from properties held for sale BEEyEERE 21,405 59,367
Net fair value change credited to the SFAGEEEKERZ
consolidated statement of comprehensive N BEEZEFRE
income 23,415 47,334
At the end of the year FR 536,754 491,934

The investment properties included property interest
in land located in the PRC with lease terms expiring
from 2043 to 2047 (2016: from 2043 to 2047). As at
31 March 2017 and 2016, the building ownership
certificates of certain investment properties of the
Group have not yet been obtained. In the opinion of
the independent PRC legal advisors of the Group, the
Group is entitled to obtain the building ownership
certificates without legal impediment and is entitled to
lawfully and validly use the investment properties
during the year.

At 31 March 2017, investment properties of approximately
RMB484,039,000 (2016: RMB448,326,000) were
pledged against bank and other loans of the Group
(note 27). As at 31 March 2016, building ownership
certificates of the Group’s investment properties of
approximately RMB69,591,000 were placed with the
bank as custody (note 27).

Investment properties are leased to non-related
parties under operating lease (note 32).

ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17
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14.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 March 2017, properties
held for sale and with the carrying value of
approximately RMB14,278,000 (2016:
RMB34,748,000) (note 21) were transferred to
investment properties respectively as these properties
were under operating lease arrangements with third
parties during the year to earn rental, rather than for
sale in the ordinary course of business of the Group.
The fair value of these properties upon transfer to
investment properties was approximately
RMB21,405,000 (2016: RMB59,367,000). The total
net fair value change of investment properties
approximately of RMB30,542,000 (2016:
RMB71,953,000) was credited to profit or loss for the
year.

The fair value of the investment properties at 31 March
2017 and 2016 was revalued by Jones Lang LaSalle
Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited, a firm of
independent qualified professional surveyors who
have the recent experience in the location and
category of property being valued, which was based
on the direct comparison approach, assuming sale of
the property interests in their existing state with the
benefit of immediate vacant possession and by
making reference to comparable sales transactions as
available in the relevant market while appropriate
adjustments and analysis are considered to the
differences in location, size and other characters
between the comparable properties and the subject
properties; and the income approach by taking into
account the net rental income derived from its existing
leases and/or achievable in the existing market with
due allowance for the reversionary income potential of
the leases, which have been then capitalised to
determine the market value at an appropriate
capitalisation rate.

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #HZ=—%

14.

e P B AR M R

—tFZA=t+—ALFE

REME (&)

HE_Z—+tF-A=+—HLFERXN RABEY
¢a&Eﬁ%4mstmL_7 NEFEARE
34,748,00070) (Fizk21) 2 FEMEEBEEIREY
¥ REAZEMETRBEFANEE=FFILIKE
EHETYHRIES  MIERAEERAFEKBR
PHE ZEEREREMEVMELILBHEA
R 21,405,000 T(ZF—/~F + AR 59,367,000
TT) o HEF A AR 30,542,000C (ZFE— /N -
ARME71,953,0007T) 2 IEMHELA R BEE B FEE
TRt ARFE 28Rk A o

REYER _ZE—+LFR_FE—AR"F=ZA=+—8H
ZANBEIHRAEEEBREEMERBLE KER
HR S 2 B A EREERNEMITHER TR
ETERERERABEITENGHE - BENNE
B EERIKE - E“%%%\&Eﬁﬁ#ﬂ%h
REHE  WREHEMHEZAIELRIBEERS
HAIE R MELRG EWEEMNE - ﬁﬁ&ﬁ@%
A Z2EREEABEDN  ARRKRASE
BiRE AR EEREHEMERE SRERET
BEARBZHEERAEE  THHAEZERE
FWAEHBEZE  SHERAKEE Z2E A
L RE AR A EHISEE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-—Z—tF=A=1+—HILFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14. BEYE(E)
The fair value of investment properties is a level 3 REYEZ AABEAFIFREEEARBENE - F
recurring fair value measurement. A reconciliation of MRFERANRBEERERFINAOT -
the opening and closing fair value balance is provided
below.
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Opening balance (level 3 recurring fair value)  F #4568 (5 3RE LN R E) 491,934 385,233
Transfer from properties held for sale BEEyEEE 21,405 59,367
Change in revaluation of investment WEYHEEHEB T AHLMUA
properties included in other income 23,415 47,334
Closing balance (level 3 recurring fair value) — FE R &84 (B I3REHE DA E) 536,754 491,934
Change in unrealised gains or losses for RRZAZ=Z+—HEEETA
the year included in profit or loss for B2 FRAKREIRURZESK
assets held at 31 March (note 6) Eiag e (Hite) 30,542 71,953

1 48 Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

The following table shows the significant unobservable

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #HZ=—%

e P B AR M R

—tFZA=t+—ALFE

14. REYX (&)

TRIREEBRAFHANEATAIBEHAK

inputs used in the valuation model: 5
Significant Range of Relationship of
Fair value Valuation unobservable unobservable unobservable
Properties hierarchy technique inputs inputs inputs to fair value
FAHE FAEEGAE
L/E S DAERER RERMN ATUEEHAZE BWABEBEEE HEARENRE
Commercial offices 3 Direct Discount on quality 12%  The higher the discount,
in the PRC comparison of the property (2016:4.1%) the lower the fair value
approach
TR EERAE R AV MEE R ITE 12%  {riEde  RAEBE
(Z2—RF 1 4.1%)
Shop units 3 Direct (Discount)/ premium on (4.7)%-3.9%  The higher the discount,
in the PRC comparison  quality of the property  (2016: (15.5)%-0.3%) the lower the fair value;
approach the higher the premium,
the higher the fair value
Bl B E R BEEEE  WERBERZ(E) (4.7)%-3.9% hEds AAE
/RE (Z2—R%F: BE : REYS -
(15.5)%-0.3%) DRESR
Shop units 3 Income Term yield 2.0%-4.5%  The higher the term yield,
in the PRC approach (2016: 2.0%-4.5%) the lower the fair value
B B EE L W A% 78 B 2 2.0%-4.5% HEREEES
(ZZ—R~%F: RAEBIE
2.0%-4.5%)
Reversionary yield 2.5%—5.0% The higher
(2016: 2.5%-5%) the reversionary yield,
the lower the fair value
EHERERE 2.5%-5.0% ERkEXER
(ZE—RE: NI R A i
2.5%-5%)
There were no changes to the valuation techniques FRGERTI EE S o
during the year.
The fair value measurement is based on the above AREBEFAENERN LM E s S REERR (R
properties’ highest and best use, which does not differ HERARYEZR)
from their actual use.
EBEREEERAF
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-—Z—tF=A=1+—HILFE

15. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(@)

150 )

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each of
which is a limited liability company, as at 31

March 2017, were as follows:

15. RKE ARz s
@ RZE—+HE=A=+—H FEZWNBERF
(ZFBERERAR) ZFIBHIIMT

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid ordinary
establishment share capital/
Company name and operation registered capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
HMAL/ BAK BRARMEEER
DRER BEE BA/ZHER B# BE TEXH
Sino Harbour Property Holdings Limited  British Virgin United States Dollars 100% - Investment holding
Islands (‘BVI) (“‘US$")1
Sino Harbour Property Holdings Limted ~ ZB R 4 & 1Zn(&Er))  BA2100 - REER
(REEZEE])
Sino Harbour Bio Technology BVI US§1 100% - Investment holding
Holdings Group Limited
Sino Harbour Bio Technology EBELHE 1ZT BESZ100 - REZR
Holdings Group Limited
Sinotech International Holdings Limited ~ BVI US§$1 100% - Investment holding
PREREERRAT ERENES 12T BHZ2100 - RE#SR
Sino Harbour Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding
ERBRAR &E 10,000/ 7 - BHZ100 BEER
Enrich H.K. Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$100 F 100%  Investment holding
BREEREBRAT BE 100787 - BHZ100 BEER
Jiangxi Asia City Real Estate PRC US$25,000,000 - 100%  Property
Development Co., Ltd. development
TEENREHEREERAF it 25,000,000 7 - EAZI00 FEHERE
Fuzhou Pan Hong Kai Xuan Property PRC RMB280,000,000 = 100%  Property
Development Co., Ltd. development
mNNBER ERERRAR it AR 280,000,0007C - EAZI00 FEHERE
Nanchang Liyang Decoration Limited PRC RMB5,000,000 = 100%  Interior and exterior
(‘Nanchang Liyang’) (note (ii)) decoration and
furnish
HEMBLENTIEERAH i AR¥5,000,0007 - BAZI00  ERNEEREN
(IEEBE.) (M)
Nanchang Dingxun Co. Ltd. PRC RMB100,000,000 - 55%  Property
(‘Nanchang Dingxun’) development
HESABXARAR(EERR)) & AR 100,000,0007C - BHZ55 EHERE

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZ T —+F=A=+—HIFE

15. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(@)  Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each of (a)
which is a limited liability company, as at 31

15. RBR A &= (&)
R-ZZE—tF=A=+—H TENBLIA
(ZRERERRE) ZFBEERIIAT - (8)

March 2017, were as follows: (Continued)

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid ordinary
establishment share capital/
Company name and operation registered capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
FMAL/ BAK BRIRMEEER
PGk B BA/ZHER B BE TEXH
Leping City Fenghuang Jincheng PRC RMB24,500,000 - 51%  Property
Industry Co., Ltd. (‘Leping City") development
SEYTRECHBXERAT G AR 24,500,000 - BAZS RHERE
(4YRE))
Sino Harbour Development Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100%  Investment holding
BaERAERLA B4 1B - BAZ100 REAER
Sino Africa Investment and Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Investment holding
Development Group Limited
HERERREEERAR B4 10077T - BHZ100 REAER
Sino Harbour Development and Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Dormant
Investment Limited
ERRRREBRAT 0 1587 - BEAZI00 EEER
Hangzhou Ganglian Real Estate PRC RMB325,734,549 - 100%  Property
Co., Limited development
MMEREXBRAF i AR 325,734,549 70 - BEAZI00 RHERE
Capital Manager Investment Limited BVI 50,000 ordinary - 100%  Investment holding
shares of US$1 each
Capital Manager Investment Limited RERRES 50,000 KGR EE - BAZ100 REAER
1ETMEER
Sino Harbour Bio Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Dormant
EREMRRBRAT BB 1587 - BEAZI00 EEER
Sinotech Digital Company Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
EVHEERNA B4 1B - BAZ100 REAER
Jiangxi Hanyun Incubator Limited PRC RMB4,500,000 - 100%  Corporate and
investment
management
IRESFIRERAR e AR 4,500,000 - BEHZI00 DRERREEE
EBEREEERAF
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-—Z—tF=A=1+—HILFE

15.
(@

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each of
which is a limited liability company, as at 31
March 2017, were as follows: (Continued)

15. RBR A &= (&)
@ RZE—+HE=A=+—H FEZWNBERF
(ZRERERRE) ZFBERIAT : (8)

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid ordinary
establishment share capital/
Company name and operation registered capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
EMAL/ BAK BRIRMEEER
PGk B BA/ZHER E# BE TEXH
Shanghai Han Yun Information PRC RMB5,000,000 - 80%  Information
Technology Limited technology
development
PEREEERMARAR e AR 5,000,0007C - BAZ8 (ERRImFEE
Jiangxi Sino Harbour Technology Limited  PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding
TEEBHRBRRA " AR#10,000,00070 - EAZI00 RAERR
Jiangxi Hanxun Technology Limited PRC RMB2,000,000 80%  Wholesales &
(note i) household
products
TEEARRBRAA " AR %2,000,0007C A5280 FERM#E
(Wisti)
Jiangxi Mengma Makerspace PRC RMB10,000,000 100%  Dormant
Technology Limited (note i)
TEZEREIZRRBRARRA (i) TH AR#10,000,00070 BHZ100 EEER
Guangxi Gangrun Bio Technology PRC RMB10,000,000 60%  Dormant
Limited (note i)
BEABENERMBRRR (ML) e AR#10,000,00070 ANZ60 EEER
Zhejiang IPS Pharmaceutical PRC RMB60,000,000 75%  Dormant
Technology Company Limited (note )
ALE AR BRI ARAR (Hiti) i AR 60,000,0007 BAZTS EERER
Zhejiang Sino Harbour Bio PRC RMB10,000,000 100%  Dormant
Technology Limited (note i)
MDEBEMERMBRRR (ML) e AR#10,000,00070 ANZ80 EEER
Notes: izt -
(i These companies were newly incorporated during U] WERFARBE_E—t+F=A=1T—HIF

(i)

the year ended 31 March 2017.

On 19 June 2014, equity interests in Nanchang
Liyang held by the Group were transferred to
Nanchang Gangrui Trading Company Limited,
which held on behalf of the Group under trust
agreement dated 19 June 2014.

(i)

R -

RZFB-—WFENATNA FEBEFEZEHS
TEGKREERZHSEHESHRAR &
WRIFEAB B —F—WFENA+NHZIEE R
HKEXAEEFF -

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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15. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

e P R AR AT

For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZ=_ZT—tF=A=+—HIEFE

15. RKEA R z#Em ()

Set out below are the summarised financial b)) TX&EHIN-—FREFHAEEMSBERZA

information for Nanchang Dingxun, a subsidiary
that has a non-controlling interests which is BHELE o
material to the Group.

BFERER MBARMERAZHMKE

Summarised statement of financial position B AR R E
As at 31 March
R=A=+—H
2017 2016
—ZE—+tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETIT
Current TRED
Assets BE 830,583 829,790
Liabilities afE (211,480) (389,090)
Total net current assets REBEEFEARE 619,103 440,700
Non-current FEFRED
Assets BE 125 193
Liabilities =L (154,354) (25,000)
Total net non-current liabilities FRBEETEARE (154,229) (24,807)
Net assets EEZFE 464,874 415,893
Accumulated non-controlling interests Z it JEiERiE R 224,935 202,894

Summarised statement of comprehensive 2EKNBEREUE
income

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLEFE

2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Revenue WA 357,265 46,087
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETS R AT S (E18) 48,981 (3,573)
Total comprehensive income 2HWEHAE 48,981 (3,5793)
Profit/(loss) allocated to a DR T IR E RS 2
non-controlling interest wm A (E18) 22,041 (1,608)
Dividends paid to a non-controlling interest %1 T 3E1 iR iz 2 AR B, = =
EREREEBRALF
2016/17 F < 153
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-—Z—tF=A=1+—HILFE

15. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 15. REB QR Z2#ER (&)
(b) Set out below are the summarised financial b)) TXEHIN-—ZFEFHEAEEMEBEBEAZA
information for Nanchang Dingxun, a subsidiary BIFERERZHBAREESAZBEE
that has a non-controlling interests which is BEE - (4)

material to the Group. (Continued)

Summarised statement of cash flows

RERBRUE

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLEFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF S ANCS
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTE ARETT

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations
Interest received

Income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating
activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plants and
equipment

Increase in pledged bank deposits

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from new borrowings
Repayments of borrowings

Net cash generated from/(used in)
financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year

Cash and cash equivalent at end
of the year

1 54 Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17

REFHRELRERNE

CEEFHEARS 152,061 82,784
BUF & 165 914
ERETEH (19,882) (21,779)
AT BT E AL

B HEE 132,344 61,919

REFBHELRSRE

BEYE  BER

B (17) (102)
KRR TIE R (6,916) (7,679)
KEZE AT H 2 FEE (6,933) (7,781)
BMETBHMELERSRE
FEBBHIE 190,000 -
EREE (145,000) (110,000)

BB EBESL () F8E

45,000 (110,000)
ReRBESESEYEM  (RD)
B 170,411 (55,862)
FYREMIRSEEY
26,612 82,474
FRASRESEEY
197,023 26,612
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZ T —+F=A=+—HIFE

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 16. REg¥EER
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Unlisted investment, at cost FELTHIRE » WARK 50,000 50,000
Share of post-acquisition loss DGR B EEE (5,668) (5,168)
44,332 44,832
Amount due from a joint venture B —REEENRE 140,432 140,432
184,764 185,264
Under HKFRS 11, the joint arrangements are classified BEEBHHERELBEI1S  ALELHREAS
as joint ventures and have been included in the BHRENFRERL T AGEUBHRER - RNZF
consolidated financial statements using the equity —tHFZA=Z1+—H REEEUATELLEDE
method. As at 31 March 2017, the Group had interest BRER

in the following joint ventures:

Issued and fully

paid ordinary share Percentage of

Place of Principal activities and capital/registered equity interests

Company name establishment place of operation capital held by the Group

ERITREHR
AEER L2 TEEBREEHH LERRE AMER AEEREREASL
Jiangxi Ganghong PRC Property development, PRC RMB100,000,000 50% (2016: 50%)
Investment Co. Ltd.

(“Jiangxi Ganghong’)

IAARERAR AT i FEHERE P 100,000,000 A R 50%

(BIFER]) (ZZ—"F : 50%)

Sino Grace Holdings Limited Hong Kong General trading, Hong Kong HK$2 50% (2016: 50%)

EREEERAA 00 —RES BE 28T 50%

(ZZ—7RF : 50%)

EBEREEERATF
2016/17 F1R < 155
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-—Z—tF=A=1+—HILFE

16.

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

The aggregate amounts relating to Jiangxi Ganghong,
which is considered as a material joint venture of the
Group, that have been included in the Group’s

16. R

consolidated financial statements as extracted from
relating financial statements of Jiangxi Ganghong are

set out below:

XS ()

UTHEERIASA(RAR/RARENERSE
EERBENAEENGE MBHRE) VAT -
TifEsk BT B8 KA R Bk o

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETTT
Results for the year ended 31 March BE=A=1t—BHLEEZE
Income WA = -
Expenses fl sz (1,000) (1,832)
Loss for the year FREIE (1,000) (1,832
Group’s share of result of a joint venture AFEEREBELGEELEXES
for the year (500) (916)
Group’s accumulated share of result of AEBRERENGEEEE
a joint venture (5,668) (5,168)
Assets and liabilities as at 31 March R=A=+—HHWEEREE
Non-current assets FEMENEE - -
Current assets BB E 278,693 278,693
Current liabilities mEaE (190,029) (189,029)
Net assets BEFE 88,664 89,664
Group’s share of net assets of a joint venture  AREEJE(H A LD ENEEFE 44,332 44,832
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade mET e E (ERR A EM
and other payables and provisions) JE - 3R R A BR ) (190,029) (189,029)

ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #HZ=—%

e P B AR M R

—tFZA=t+—ALFE

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 16. REELFE 2 ER (B
(CONTINUED)
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TRETMEBRVESEHAEAFZENSELERN
information of the Group’s joint venture that is not I ERE -
individually material:
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Share of loss and total comprehensive FARGEELENEIEBR
income of a joint venture for the year FHEWABEE = l
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s ~ ANEBRAZE D ERERH
interest in a joint venture REMAE =* =
* Represented the amount less than RMB1,000 * HELRA R 1,0007T2 %58 °
At 31 March 2017, certain properties held under RZE—+tF=A=+—RH TIABHEHARE

development of Jiangxi Ganghong amounting to
approximately RMB146,253,000 (2016: RMB146,253,000)
were pledged against bank loans of the ultimate
holding company and a fellow subsidiary of Jiangxi
HongKeLong Industrial Limited (IPEtEEE£ABR
A 7)) (“Jiangxi HongKeLong”) which held the
remaining 50% equity interest in Jiangxi Ganghong.

Except for above, at 31 March 2017 and 2016, neither
contingent liabilities nor capital commitments are
shared by the Group.

Amount due from Jiangxi Ganghong was unsecured,
interest free and not repayable within 12 months from
the reporting date.

146,253,000 7T ( = Z — /5N F : AR % 146,253,000
BL)Z2ETEBRTRMEDRFE IAELERG 2
Ao A +RENTARREEERAR([IA
BRER ) ZCEEEBRAFE—ZRRAZMB AR ZIE
ITEREHR -

BRElEN R FR_T-RF=H
=t+—8" $%II?§H§(E&%QE&§$7¥G§ 2

FEHK/I@/E//\TAIEEEﬁTETEﬁ : %Ex&ﬁ%ﬁﬁ/\\\i&%
HHEfR+— (A A AEE -

EBEREEERATF
2016/17 F1R
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-—Z—tF=A=1+—HILFE

17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 17. REBFERT 2R

2017 2016
—E—+tF S ANCS
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Share of net assets PMEBEFE 5,515 5,929
Goodwill on acquisition WHEFTEA 2 98 158 158
5,673 6,087
Detalil of the associate is as follows: N RIFBAT ¢
Percentage of
Place of Principal activities and Paid-up registered equity interest
Name establishment place of operation capital held by the Group
B L2 TEEPREEE AR EMEEX AEEREREBSL
Zhejiang Davi Pharmaceutical ~ PRC Research and development, US$ 6,189,104 30%
Co., Ltd. (“Zhejiang Davi’) manufacturing and sale of
pharmaceutical products, PRC
MIKRERER AR HE HRERER ZERHEE 6,189,104 & T 30%
(IHIKRB)) BEED P

In November 2015, the Group entered into a R-FE—FFE+—H AEFFTT—HREWS

subscription agreement (“Subscription Agreement”)
to subscribe for 30% equity interests of the enlarged
registered capital of Zhejiang Davi. Zhejiang Davi was
wholly owned by a third party, Smartway Trading
Limited (“Smartway”).

The Group had paid up 30% equity interests of
Zhejiang Davi with a consideration of RMB11,273,000
in accordance with the Subscription Agreement by
cash for the year ended 31 March 2016.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016/17
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(IR ARBINTRAREBAZEMBRAZ
0% - MIARAE=STERESERLQA
(2R 2EHE -

BE-T-AF=A=+—HLFE FEEER
EREBREBRSARE AR 11,273,000 TH
AT K A2 30% AHE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)

Under the Subscription Agreement, Smartway would
irrevocably guarantee the Group that the net profit
after income tax expense per annum from Zhejiang
Davi should not be less than RMB7,000,000,
RMB9,000,000, or RMB11,000,000 for each of the
year ended 31 December 2016 and the two years
ending 31 December 2017 and 2018 (collectively
“Guaranteed Periods”) respectively; or the total net
profit after income tax expense should not be less
than RMB27,000,000 for the Guaranteed Periods
(collectively “Guaranteed Profit”). Contingent
consideration represented amount to be received by
the Group if Zhejiang Davi fails to met the Guaranteed
Profit and were recognised at financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss during the year.

The fair value of the contingent consideration as at 31
March 2017 was estimated by an independent valuer
and was approximately RMB6,625,000 (2016:
RMB3,483,000) (note 19).

The Group was also granted the right to resell entire
equity interests to Smartway at a consideration
equivalent to the net of investment cost paid by the
Group plus a 13% premium amount per annum and
net of any dividend received during the Guaranteed
Periods. The fair value of the right to resell as at 31
March 2017 was estimated by an independent valuer
as approximately RMB445,000 (2016: RMB1,295,000)
(note 19).

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had a commitment of
approximately RMB9,127,000 (2016: RMB9,127,000)
in relation to capital injection to Zhejiang Davi.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group provided corporate
guarantees for bank borrowings amounted to for
RMBS3,500,000 (2016: RMB3,500,000) of a related
party for Zhejiang Davi.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group provided corporate
guarantees for bank borrowings amounted to
RMB10,000,000 for Zhejiang Davi.

The borrowings are also guaranteed by a director of
the Company and a director of Zhejiang Davi. As at 31
March 2017 and 20186, the fair value of corporate
guarantees provided by the Group are not material.

17.

e P B AR M R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZ T —+F=A=+—HIFE

REE QR 2 &R (5

RIERBEWZ SRS TR RHEREREE-Z
—ANFFT A=+ —HILEFERBEE-T—tFK
T ) \FF+ A=t BHIMEFESF (LHE
[REH ) AEBBFRAATT K BESKRITETH
T &2 D R E LR ARE 7,000,000 © A
K 9,000,000 7T =k A R # 11,000,000 7T : sk AR
BHZBRAAESHASBATRETSLRARK
27,000,000 7t (#8718 [RFEF 1) - SKAREEWHT
TIRAERERREZ NGB AREBRZ R 2 FIEIH
REERBAZANBERERIEREZEREE - 1B
WHEAE - SKARELZH 2 AR ERB L GHEME
FHSH -

KARBR-_ZE—+E=A=+—B2ZARETH
BYHEMEE A ARES,62500T(ZF
— NI ARBER,483,0007T) (FHEE19) ©

REBENEREUESERIIBRAEBMSI S 2KE
FRZS I 13% (R B & BN OB R 75 2 B R AT A%
B7REFEMRETER - BEEN_T—+
FZAZ+—BZARBEEBYAEMGEE 4
BANREE445,00070( ZZF—RF + ARKE1,295,000
7o) (MF5E19) °

R-B—+F=A=+—8  AXEEHEEE@AMN
TIREBITEZEAENBAREQ127,000T(ZF
—7NF  AR¥9,127,0007T) °

R-ZE—+F=A=+—8 AEERINIKE—
HAE T 2 R1TIEE ARE 3,500,000 (ZF—7X
F . AR¥ 3,500,000 70) IR A BIER -

MNZB—REFE=A=1+—8 A&EERIIAAEZ
RITEE AR 10,000,000 TTIR A BIHER ©

BEETMARA—REERNIAA—RESE
ReM-E—tFER-FB—AF=A=F—B &
& B A TR AR BLTERX -

EBEREEERATF
2016/17 F1R
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-—Z—tF=A=1+—HILFE

17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED) 17.

The aggregate amounts relating to Zhejiang Davi,
which is considered as a material associate of the
Group, that have been included in the Group’s

consolidated financial statements as extracted from
relating financial statements of the Zhejiang Davi are

set out below:

REE QR 2 &R (5

MEREM TR B2 BRAM B HRE B HNAEELR
BUBHRRZBAINIAS(RESAKEZEX
BrE N R]) 2 IRARERE ST

2017 2016
—E—+tF S ANCS
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETT
Assets and liabilities as at 31 March R=ZA=+t—HZEERERE
Current assets RENEE 57,131 68,339
Non-current assets IEREEE 28,752 31,724
Current liabilities mEBE (67,501) (80,300)
Non-current liabilities EREEE = -
Net assets BEFE 18,382 19,763
Reconciliation to the Group’s interestin  ZREBEREE N T EZNWEER :
an associate:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership INEE B A RELL 30% 30%
Group’s share of net assets of an associate 7<= [E| fE (5 — Bt & A 51 & )% E 5,515 5,929
Goodwill on acquisition WHEFTE A 2 8 158 158
Carrying amount of the investment HERMEAE 5,673 6,087
Other disclosures HitigEEE
For period from date of acquisition WA E=A=+—H
to 31 March ZHE
Revenue A 20,607 8,292
Loss and total comprehensive income BEE 2N SEEE (1,381) (1,360)

1 60 Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZ T —+F=A=+—HIFE

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 18. Htt&mEE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE
Unlisted equity investments, R EMRIERE
— at cost — FEETMRRAIRE LA 8,627 =

The unlisted investments of the Group are designated
as available-for-sale financial assets and have no fixed
maturity date or coupon rate.

These investments do not have a quoted market price
in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured.

The directors have assessed the financial assets for
objective evidence of impairment and concluded that
no impairment loss needs to be made.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

19.

REEE L HRAREEATHRHESREAER
R 5 2 A K -

HERAEERTHLETH
ETER

wE BRRETHE

EXxCHAEREEZREZREREARREA
TEHIBERE -

BARERBRIRZERMEE

2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT

Contingent consideration in relation to BRWE—HEBE AR

acquisition of an associate SARE
— at fair value (note 17) — AnE(MEE17) 6,625 3,483
Derivative financial instruments PTESmIA

— unlisted put option (note 17) — FEETRSHEIRE (A 17) 445 1,295
7,070 4,778

For more detailed information in relation to the fair
value measurement of the items above, please refer to
note 35(f).

BN LEEAREAEZEZHIBEER  E2H
MEsE35(f) °

EBEREEERATF
2016/17 F1R
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #HZ=—%

—tFZA=Z+-HILFE

20. PROPERTIES HELD UNDER DEVELOPMENT 20. MBPYE
2017 2016
—E—+tF S ANCS
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Leasehold interests in land T EERS 918,712 939,514
Development costs FA B AR 332,600 254,855
Finance costs capitalised B AR A& AN 128,158 118,128
1,379,470 1,312,497
Leasehold interests in land are located in the PRC and T ERRUNFE  HERR _EHEEE_
have lease terms expiring from 2044 to 2077 (2016: THEF 2 EER(ZE—RF ZEMONFEZ
2044 to 2077). At 31 March 2017, certain properties T+ F)  RZE—+F=ZA=+—B AR
held under development of approximately #809,791,000L( = T — X F: A R &
RMB809,791,000 (2016: RMB115,286,000) were 115,286,0007T) 2 & THRZEFR YD THIF - D&
pledged against bank and other loans of the Group RS E 2 RIT RAMER (MizE27) »
(note 27).
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 21. FEWE

21.

Properties held for sale included property interests in
land located in the PRC with lease terms expiring from
2043 to 2080 (2016: 2043 to 2080). As at 31 March
2017, the carrying value of the operating lease up-
front payments on the leasehold interests in land
amounted to approximately RMB97,852,000 (2016:
RMB101,321,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2017, properties
held for sale with a carrying value of approximately
RMB14,278,000 (2016: RMB34,748,000) were
transferred to investment properties as these
properties were under operating lease arrangements
with third parties during the year to earn rental, rather
than for sale in the ordinary course of business of the
Group (note 14).

During the year ended 31 March 2017, no properties
held for sale was transferred to property, plant and
equipment as their permanent offices for
administrative use (2016: RMB47,515,000) (note 13).

At 31 March 2017, certain properties held for sale of
approximately RMB162,556,000 (2016: RMB437,563,000)
were pledged against bank and other loans of the
Group (note 27). As at 31 March 2016, the building
ownership certificates of the Group’s properties held
for sale of approximately RMB17,917,000 were
placed with the bank as custody (note 27).

162 )

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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FEVERREETR L2 MERELS  HESN -
TM=F2_"F)N\ETF2AEMZT—X"F: =
EN=ZFE_FENZEF) - RZE—tF=A
=+—B eSS LSRN REEEE
H B ANREI7,852,000L( T —NF: AR
101,321,0007T) ©

HE-T—+tHFZA=Z+—HILFERN  REEY
AR 814278000t ( Z T — SN F: AR K
34,748,00070) 2 EMEE R EZREME - RHE
AZEWEDRBFANEE=-FIIUZREHREY
BEREES  MIENAEBABERKBREHHE R
FE14) °

HE-_Z—tFZA=+—HLLFERN  BESFE
MEEREYE BELEE RRABETAET
BABZKABRE(ZE—XRNF: ARKE
47,515,000 70) (H5E13) °

RZBE—+HE=A=+—HB' HAREK
162,556,000 7T ( = F — /5 F : AR ¥ 437,563,000
TLMETHEELEMEREREERITREA
BERHER(HE27) RZEBE—R"F=ZA=+—
H AEEFEMENEEMEEZFOARK
17,917,0007T * WiF BRIRITEE (FIsE27) °
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ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 22, EWERF
The aging analysis of accounts receivable that were I 42 (8 5l Sk BE B8 L # AR AR R(E < 18 B R M AR SR 2 R
past due but neither individually nor collectively BN -
considered to be impaired is as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETIT
Based on invoice date REZREHHTE
Less than 3 months past due BE VR =1EH 1,524 2,657

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent buyers. Based on
past experience, the Directors considered that no
impairment allowance is required as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

EAMERREZREGREETBEVET AR -
REBERR EERAENEEERYEERE
B RAERDER R 28KE - Bt EAELRE
B

23. ENREREMERFIE

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—XF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T AREFT

Prepayments SEENE S 72,382 89,236
Other receivables (note) o e UREIE (M 7F) 34,282 45,654
106,664 134,890

Note:

As at 31 March 2017, other receivables included amounts of
approximately RMB1,280,000 (2016: RMB1,280,000) due from
Zhejiang Davi. The amount was unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

None of the other receivables is either past due or impaired. The
other receivables related to counterparties for which there was
no recent history of default.

The carrying amounts of other receivables approximate their fair
values as these financial assets which were measured at
amortised cost, are expected to be repaid within a short time
scale, such that the time value of money is not significant.

Hiat -

R-ZF—+F=ZA=1+—H  EMERFIBEEEKATAK
BZHBEHARE128,000T( = FE—NF: ARK
1,280,0007T) ° ZE N HELIF - BB REBZEKIERE -

B R b JEY S TR B 3 R 1E » B 531 F A B H E A e
YK E R AT I AEIE HIFOER

HREE S M EEL BT E 2o R AT
EARENTE - EEHREEIAER - AR A
TEA -

EBEREEERATF
2016/17 F1R
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-—Z—tF=A=1+—HILFE

24,

STRUCTURED BANK BALANCES

As at 31 March 2017, the structured bank balances,
denominated in RMB, were interest-bearing and not
quoted in an active market. The principal and interests
earned are linked to the investments associated with
equity instruments, debt instruments including
corporate bonds, and money market instruments of
certain banks in the PRC. The principal amount

24. ERMBITERK

BE_ZT—tF-A=1T—H EBMUERITEIN
AREFE  SHERRBERMSRE - AT R
REA S EpEETRTNERETA BEBTA
(BREARES) REM ™S TAER 2 IRE# S -
A RERMEMZBRERFRETAKE - &1
HRITFRERN X REF3656%  BEREZER
HE R E 2 AHRRACEIRE -

together with the interest would be returned to the
Group anytime upon request. The structured bank
balances carried an effective interest rate of 3.65%
per annum and all of the balances were subsequently
withdrawn up to the date of this report.

25. PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND CASH AND BANK 25, BEAREFURREREBITEE

BALANCES
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
{iFs AR¥T T AREFT
Cash and bank deposits He MIRITIER 485,950 430,486
Less: S
Deposit pledged against banking HERAERRITHEM
facilities granted to the mortgages HIRETE 0 (a) (65,344) (60,960)
Deposit pledged for bank and FERIT R H M BRI IR
other loans T (b) & (¢) (156,214) (250,000)
Cash and cash equivalents for the MEEEREeRERMEN
purpose of the consolidated RWENRIREEBY
statement of cash flows 264,392 119,526

1 64 Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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25. PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND CASH AND BANK

BALANCES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@) The deposits were pledged to certain banks as security in
the PRC as detailed in note 33. These banks provided
mortgage loans to purchasers for acquisition of properties
from the Group. The pledge will last for the period from
the date of draw-down of mortgage loans to the date
when the certificates for housing ownership are granted
to the property purchasers. Such charges will be released
upon the certificates are granted to the property
purchasers.

(b) The bank deposits of approximately RMB150,714,000
(2016: nil) and RMB5,500,000 (2016: RMB150,000,000)
were pledged against bank loans due to be settled within
twelve months and over twelve months respectively after
the reporting period (note 27) as at 31 March 2017. The
effective interest rates of these deposits were ranging
from 0.01% to 3.1% (2016: three month LIBOR plus 107
basis point).

) The bank deposits of approximately RMB100,000,000
with interest rates 3.10% were pledged against other
loans due to be settled over twelve months and within
twelve months after the reporting period respectively (note
27) as at 31 March 2016.

At 31 March 2017, approximately RMB484,868,000
(2016: RMB427,706,000) were cash deposited with
banks or other financial institutions in the PRC. These
balances were denominated in RMB. RMB is not
freely convertible into foreign currencies. Under the
PRC Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sales and Payment of
Foreign Exchange regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for foreign currencies through
banks in the PRC that are authorised to conduct
foreign exchange businesses.

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZ T —+F=A=+—HIFE

25. EEARERUARRESRBITERR(E)

Mt

@  ZOMGEES3ATE AL - FAAE TIRTTE AR ERR A B
HHG o ZFIRIT AR EBY E DB KR IZIE
Bl - BRI IEIE RN AN EY X ERERT
FEEFRBEREABLN - GRABHERYEETER
TEEATE#:E A AR -

b)) R-F—+tFZA=+—H HAREH 150,714,000
(ZF—NF : ) RARK5,600,0007C(=F—7N4F :
A R #150,000,0007T ) #) R 77 77 50 52 Bl 4 3 & B 14
+-EAAK+—EA#EEREE 2 RITEZ (KT
D7) IERIF - ZE R EBRFIENF0.01 EZ3.1/E
(ZF—NF . A B e iR7TRIFEIREMI07EZF)

© RZF-—NF=ZA=+—H #HARH 1000000007
BRI E3.10% 8 8R 17 17 #4525 B A R 38 & H 14 48 1
T AR EA R (HaE27) #)5 FIERTT BB 1
A

R_E—+HF=ZA=Z=+—H H AR
484,868,000 L (= F — /< F : AR 427,706,000
T ATERFEMNRITREMSREENIES -
ZEEBAARBTHE - AR B ALK
B o IRIE P BRINEE HHERDI KA TE - EERTEE
HRE AEERB BT EMNEREETINESE
BEIRITIS A RS HHNE o
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-—Z—tF=A=1+—HILFE

26. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS, RECEIPTS

IN ADVANCE AND OTHER PAYABLES

26. BERRM - BRTROR - BRRKIAR LB TR

2017 2016
—E—+tF S ANCS
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B =E AR¥ T ARETIT
Accounts payable ERERRRERE (@) 79,897 48,809
Accruals, receipts in advance and FEFtFIE - FEWEER Hit
other payables FEfFFRIE
Receipts in advance TEURIR 267,839 550,745
Accruals and other payables FERTRRIE N E At FE (T RRIR (b) 198,934 262,536
466,773 813,281
Notes: Htax -
(a)  The aging analysis of accounts payable, based on invoice @) ETERAEEZEARGEZRES AT
date, is as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTT ARETT
Less than 3 months PR=1EA 1,687 39,242
3-6 months =EA=ENMEA 1,363 2,069
6 months—1 year NERAE—F 50,263 2,076
More than 1 year —FE 26,584 5,422
79,897 48,809
(b)  Accrued construction cost and other project-related b)) R-F—+F=A=+—H FAEFHEREME

166 )

expenses were included in accruals and other payables
amounted to approximately RMB122,182,000 as at 31
March 2017 (2016: RMB160,656,000). The amount was
accrued based on the terms of the relevant agreements
and project progress and was not due for payment as at
the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 March 2017, other payables included an amount
of approximately RMB490,000 (2016: RMB490,000),
which was payable to Jiangxi Dongjing Property
Development Limited (T A R =SS EFZEHR A Al)
which held 49% equity interest in the Group’s subsidiary,
Leping City. These payable balances were unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand in cash.

As at 31 March 2017, other payables included an amount
of approximately RMB3,661,000 (2016: RMBS3,661,000),
which was payable to Jiangxi HongKelLong, which held
the remaining 50% equity interest in Jiangxi Ganghong
(note 16). These payable balances were unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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R-ZFE—+FE=ZA=+—H HMEMZBEEZHA
R#490,0007T (= F—NF : AR 490,0007T) FETT
TREEEMEMEERARINSE HiEEAER
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27. BANK AND OTHER LOANS

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #HZ=—%

27. SBRITREMER

—tFZA=+—ALFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF S ANCS
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B =E AR¥ T ARETTT
Bank loans — secured RITER — HEA (@) 832,823 625,201
Other financial institution loans HEmorgEER
— secured — B (o) - 190,000
Total borrowings BaEsg 832,823 815,201
The analysis of the carrying amount of the bank and BITREMER ZEEES AT
other loans is as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+F —T—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARETIT
Current i
Portion of bank loans due for repayment AR—FANEIEERIZEREE
within one year or on demand ZIRITERERD 228,258 201,692
Portion of other financial institution loans AR—FRNEEERIZEREER
due for repayment within one year or on ZEHM G mEIEE RIS
demand - 165,000
228,258 366,692
Non-current ¥R
Portion of bank loans due for repayment HAR—FRIBEEZRITER
after one year B 604,565 423,509
Portion of other financial institution loans AR—FRINGERE HttE e
due for repayment after one year BB EFE S - 25,000
604,565 448,509
Total borrowings HmEE 832,823 815,201

2016/17 F1R
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-—Z—tF=A=1+—HILFE

27. BANK AND OTHER LOANS (CONTINUED) 27. R|ITREMER(E)
The Group’s bank and other loans are repayable as AEFEEEZRITAEMEZTWOT ¢
follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTE ARETT

Within one year or on demand —FRHIREK 228,258 366,692
In the second year RE_FR 98,849 190,309
In the third to fifth year RE=ZFFRFA 505,716 258,200
604,565 448,509
Total borrowings HEE 832,823 815,201
Notes: ez
(a)  As at 31 March 2017, the effective interest rates of the @ RZF—tF=H=+—H FXEBFEHFRITEL
Group’s secured bank loans were ranging from 1.92% to FERFEEN FEF192%ZE7.60% (= F—NF :
7.50% (2016: 2.08% to 8.61%) per annum. 2.08% £8.61%) °
(b)  As at 31 March 2016, the effective interest rates of the b)) RZF-—NF=ZA=+—H FEFEHEHFAMEGH
Group’s secured other financial institution loans were BIEENEBRFIR BN FEF6.15% F 10.25% °
ranging from 6.15% to 10.25% per annum.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank and other REBFRTREMEREMERNUTEKEE
loans are denominated in the following currencies:
2017 2016
—E—+tF S ANCS
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARETIT
RMB AR 663,394 622,000
HK$ BT - 34,642
us$ ET 169,429 158,559
832,823 815,201
As at 31 March 2017, the outstanding balances of RZZE—+tF=A=+—0  ROEHMAERZK
bank and other loans in US$ was US$24,880,000 S RIBLAZETTEHE £ 24,880,000 ETL( ZF — N F -
(2016: US$24,880,000). As at 31 March 2016, the 24,880,000%( L) c R—_E—X"F=A=+—8"
outstanding balances of bank and other loans in HK$ REBERITREMER AN RKBAETHES
was HK$41,667,000. 41,667,000 7T °

1 68 Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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27. BANK AND OTHER LOANS (CONTINUED)

As at 31 March 2017, bank and other loans were:

(i) secured by the Group’s property, plant and
equipment of approximately RMB53,644,000
(2016: RMB54,774,000) (note 13);

(i) secured by the Group’s investment properties of
approximately RMB484,039,000 (2016:
RMB448,326,000) (note 14);

(i) secured by the Group’s properties held under
development of approximately RMB809,791,000
(2016: RMB115,286,000) (note 20);

(iv)  secured by the Group’s properties held for sale
of approximately RMB162,556,000 (2016:
RMB437,563,000) (note 21);

(v) secured by the Group’s bank deposits of
approximately RMB156,214,000 (2016:
RMB250,000,000) (note 25(b) and 25(c)); and

(v guaranteed by the Company and certain
subsidiaries of the Group, a non-controlling
shareholder of Nanchang Dingxun, Mr. Wong
Lam Ping, the controlling shareholder and
director of the Company and an independent
third party.

Other than above, as at 31 March 2016, bank and
other loans of the Group were placed with the building
ownership certificates of the Group’s investment
properties and properties held for sale of
approximately RMB69,591,000 (note 14) and
RMB17,917,000 (note 21) respectively as custody,
and secured by entire present and future issued share
capital of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZ T —+F=A=+—HIFE

27. |ITREMER (E)

RZB—tF=A=+—0  RITREMERR :

) BAEEYVE BEARBOHARE
53,644,0007t( — & — X F: AR &
54,774,000 70) 1E4E R (FI5E13)

(iy AAEEEREMEL AREEA84,039,0007T(=
T—RF - ARME 448,326,000 7T ) fEIE 3 (M
TE14)

(i) AAREEFREFYELHARE809,791,0007T
(ZZ—R"F : AR¥115,286,0007T) {EHK I
(Ff5E20)

(v) HBAREEFEMELHARE162,5656,0007T(=
T—XF « ARM 437,563,000 7T ) 1EE I (Bt
#21)

V) AAEERITERLARE156,214,00070(=
T— N4 ARB 250,000,000 7T ) VEE R (B
¥ 25(b) X 25(c)) : &

V) BAARBRETHEARAR  —E@ERAKk
PERBR - AR EERBRRRERENIKE
HER—RBIUE=TTHERER ©

BEmiEN R-E—RNEZA=+—0 X&EH
ZRITREMBEREENEEREMERFENE
ZEEEH#EEHAREE9,591,000 7T (HisE14)
M AR®A17,917,000 T 5 AIEREE (MisE21) « I
HAEEETHBRARMAERA RAKDEITHR
AVEHEAR -
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #HZ=—%

—tFZA=Z+-HILFE

28. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 28. EEMEBELEE (AE)

At 31 March 2017, deferred tax assets/(liabilities) are RZE—+HE=A=+—8 " BEEHBEEE (8
provided at the tax rate 25% (2016: 25%). The B) AR 25% (ZF —/RF : 25%) 5T 1R - B

movement in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) arising
from temporary differences are as follows:

EREZHELZECEHEEE(AF) 22F 10

T

Deferred tax

Deferred tax
liabilities in

assets in respect of fair
respect value change
of provision of investment
for LAT properties Total
BT EYE
B+ i IR E R AREES
BEEEZ BEZIEL
BEEBBEEE HEAE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETT ARETT
At 1 April 2015 KR-ZE—HEMA—R 15,012 (54,411) (39,399)
Deferred tax charged to the profit ~ FMEz BRI Z BT 1A
or loss (note 9) (K17£9) N (17,989) (17,989)
At 31 March 2016 B’\:; /\$ A=+—H
and 1 April 2016 F=—ZF—XREMA—H 15,012 (72,400) (57,388)
Deferred tax charged to the profit 74825 @EW B 2 EERTE
or loss (note 9) (Htat9) (2,354) (7,636) (9,990)
At 31 March 2017 R-ZE—tHE=HA=+—H 12,658 (80,036) (67,378)
Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carried @L%)ﬂélﬁ BERFEE 2 FHIBEE T AR - I

forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax
benefit through the future taxable profits is probable.
The Group has no material unrecognised tax losses to

5&

A BESE B R R FE R B A B3R 2 B R A M 25
TREB—LFR_B-AFEHA=+—-HA . K
55 1830 8 E AOR RE RO TR 85 18 PR (R AE B8 4K 3 R 21 B

carry forward against future taxable income at 31 RTUA o
March 2017 and 2016.
Withholding rate of 5% is imposed on dividends DR TN E E 2R BTV IRTEINH R 5% BT

distributed to foreign investors. As at 31 March 2017,
deferred tax liabilities amounted to approximately
RMB28,424,000 (2016: RMB28,783,000) in respect of
aggregate amount of temporary difference of
approximately RMB568,483,000 (2016:
RMB575,663,000) associated with undistributed
earnings of subsidiaries have not been recognised. No
deferred tax liabilities have been recognised in respect of
these differences because the Group is in a position to
control the dividend policies of these subsidiaries and it
is probable that such differences will not be reversed in
the foreseeable future.

170 )
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-Z—tF=A=+—HILFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. BAR
Number
Notes of shares RMB’000
B =E BB A AR¥ TR
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each EFRMEE1 BT il
At 1 April 2015, 31 March 2016 R-ZZE—RFMA—H -
and 2017 B RNENZT—+F
=A=+—H 4,500,000,000 37,401
Issued and fully paid: ERTREE :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each EREEO0.01 Tz EiRmAR
At 1 April 2015 RZZE—RHFMA—H 1,200,000,000 9,931
Issue of new shares BITHI (a) 32,000,000 262
At 31 March 2016 RZE—A"F=A=1+—AH
and 1 April 2016 MZZE—XRFEMNA—H 1,232,000,000 10,193
Bonus issue AR EETT (b) 1,232,000,000 10,542
At 31 March 2017 R-E—+F=A=+—H 2,464,000,000 20,735
Notes: Hfet
(a  On 19 October 2015, the Company undertook a @ RZFE—AFTHATAA EREUER1.66ETTF

placement and issued 32,000,000 new shares at
HK$1.56 per share to the independent third parties with
proceeds of approximately HK$49,920,000 (equivalent to
RMB40,820,000). Accordingly, the Company’s issued
share capital was increased by HK$320,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB262,000) and the balance of the
proceeds, net of direct costs incurred of approximately
RMB37,760,000 was credited to the share premium
account.

(b) On 26 July 2016, the Company undertook a bonus issue
of one new share credited as fully paid, by way of
capitalisation of an amount equal to the aggregate par
value of the new shares from share premium account, for
every one existing share held by the shareholders of the
Company (the “Bonus Issue”). Upon the completion of
Bonus Issue, a total of 1,232,000,000 new shares were
allotted and issued and the issued share capital was
increased by applying HK$12,320,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB10,542,000) charged to the share
premium account at par of HK$0.01 each.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

(®)

B E = BB R #77382,000,000 RATHE  BEAZ
FIE #9435 49,920,000% 7T (18 F K A & 140,820,000
JT) o Bt - AR F]B #7TIR A 1 320,000 T (5%
REANBR#262,0005T) @ I HAT1S30FEE: - HIBRAT
LB E KR HIA K ¥ 37,760,000 T # 5+ A BR 17 %
AR -

RZFE—NFLHAZ+NH  KRGJETARET
BB ERR G B ERPHIRBEET 2 FEELXE
BH R ERFE —REBERGZBREET—BRAR
SWIEREZ TR ([ALIR BT ) ° ERRATRETH - &
#1,232,000,000 5% 37 AR 17 #E B % 2 %77 + A @B
12,320,000 ¢ (1HE RAIA R 10,642,000 7T ) 12 47
fR0.01 870 B RR17 )5 (BER P B IE 12 BATHRA »

KBE-T—LF=A=+—HILEE ARTR
HEAMBA M E 1R WE AR AT
S -
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #HZ=—%

—tFZA=Z+-HILFE

30. RESERVES 30. #E
Details of the movements on the Group’s reserves are REBREBEESFBTINGEEERETHK - HE
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in ZHEERERET
equity. The nature and purpose of the reserves are as
follows:
() Share premium (i) KOEE
The share premium account of the Group REBZ R BEREAR IR GEEZEITR
represents the premium arising from the issue of MFTEAZ&E °
shares of the Company at premium.
(i) Statutory reserves i) EERE
According to the relevant PRC laws, the RIZHEPEARE  MBAREBRIES
subsidiaries are required to transfer at least 10% SIERITEE 2B RE DRI = D 10% 85 15
of its net profit after tax, as determined under ZERTERE  EEFHES ﬁ%‘i@lﬁﬁ%@ﬁ?ﬁ
the PRC accounting regulation, to a statutory MEARZ250% > BRFEBERERD RS
reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% FHB AT ER AZBIETT - /imfu%ﬁ
of the subsidiaries’ registered capital. The AR+ MM B A BB BRI ©
transfer of this reserve must be made before the
distribution of dividend to the subsidiaries’ equity
owners. The statutory reserve is non-
distributable other than upon the liquidation of
the subsidiaries.
The Company ¥ NN
Share Accumulated
premium profit/(losses) Total
RitaF,
B3 RE (E#B) &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFIT ARETT
At 1 April 2015 R-ZE—HFMA—H 537,994 (2,373) 535,621
Issue of shares (note 29) BT (BY7E29) 37,760 - 37,760
Loss for the year and total FABERFAZE
comprehensive income for the year i z548%8 - (2,004) (2,004)
At 31 March 2016 R e St e |
and 1 April 2016 R-ZT—AEMA—H 575,754 (4,377) 571,377
Issue of bonus shares (note 29) BITHIIR (M5 29) (10,542) - (10,542)
Profit for the year and total FNRAMEEAZE
comprehensive income for the year — UYiz8 42 %8 - 27,246 27,246
At 31 March 2017 R=—ZB—-+F=H=+—8” 565,212 22,869 588,081

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZ T —+F=A=+—HIFE

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 31. EXREIE
Except as disclosed elsewhere in these financial MRZEMBBREREMITDPTEEIN » KREBERIA
statements, the Group had the following outstanding TARITEE ANEE -

capital commitments:

2017 2016
—E—+F NS
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBRTE ARBTT

Contracted but not provided for EHCFINEREE
in respect of
— properties held under development — RNEBZHEH
of the Group ES 152,803 37,539
OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 32, REHERIE
(@  The Group had future aggregate minimum lease @ AEEBEMERBEICURBELCEHEMR
receipts under non-cancellable operating leases RRWE 7 KA EEZE N T -

in respect of its properties as follows:

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTE | ARETT

Not later than one year —FR 3,870 7,429
Later than one year and not later —FEP B
than five years TEBBRF 7,946 18,927
Later than five years RELF 1,083 1,391
12,899 27,747
The Group leases out certain properties which AREBLEEETYE  VMSEHE—F+5
run for initial periods of one to sixteen years, o TLABREEE - AENESAREAS -

without option to renew the lease terms at the
respective expiry dates. None of the leases
includes contingent rentals.

EBEREEERATF
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-—Z—tF=A=1+—HILFE

32. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b)  The Group had future aggregate minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of properties as follows:

32, KEHEAIE(H)

b)) AKERDEREBETAMBELEHEMN K
Kz &ERERBEMNT

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E-REF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETTT

Not later than one year —FR 130 328
Later than one year and not later than —FERE

five years THBRF 20 73

150 401

The Group leases properties under operating
lease arrangements which run for initial period of
one to two years, with an option to renew the
lease terms at the expiry date. None of the
leases includes contingent rentals.

33. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

The Group has arranged mortgage loan facilities for
certain purchasers of property units and provided
guarantees to secure obligations of repayments. As at
31 March 2017, the outstanding guarantees
amounted to approximately RMB871,976,000 (2016:
RMB665,749,000). Such guarantees terminate upon
earlier of (i) issuance of the real estate ownership
certificate which will generally be available within one
or two years after the purchasers take possession of
the relevant properties; or (ii) the satisfaction of
mortgaged loans by the purchasers of properties. No
provision for the Group’s obligation under the
guarantees has been made as the directors
considered that it was not probable that the
repayments of the loans would be default.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a)

In addition to the transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group had the following material

related party transactions:

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZ T —+F=A=+—HIFE

34. BEIRZ

(@) BRFUHBHMREMBOMBE RS RME
o AEBERETATERBETRS ¢

2017 2016

—E—+tF S ANCS

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARKET T

Rent paid to a fellow subsidiary BENRRNBARZHE 312 321
Car park rent paid to a non-executive EfERITES 2 IFE5

director e 50 42

Rent paid to Pan Hong Investment Limited (“Pan
Hong Investment”), a fellow subsidiary of the
Group, for rental of an unit of office premises
which is held by Pan Hong Investment, based
on the terms agreed and signed on a tenancy
agreement. Car park rent paid to Ms. Chan
Heung Ling, a non-executive director of the
Company, for rental of a car park based on the
terms agreed and signed on a tenancy
agreement. As the annual amount of the rents
payables under the tenancy agreements are less
than HK$3,000,000, the continuing connected
transaction contemplated thereunder will qualify
as de minimus transaction under Rule 14A.33(3)
of the Listing Rules, that is exempt from the
reporting, annual review, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements.
(b) Compensation of key management
personnel of the Group

Remuneration for key management personnel of
the Group, including amounts paid to the
Company’s directors and certain highest paid
employees, are disclosed in note 12.

MAEBEREKMBARNBIREGRAF (A
BRE|DEBEAZHAESMEEM AL M
5 EBABREZHS IREBESHTELE
BUZHERRETET REEFEEND
NARABFERITEZMMB L 2 EHIBHE
S IR TN O 2 FE RS IETUETT »
ARREHERRENCFERESBIR
3,000,000/ 7T « MEIA T #ETT 2 HE R E
RS #EEERBRE EMRAIE 14A.3303) RA
TEREREKERS  EERSERCRE
THE - FEER AMMESRBEILREL
HEZIRE o

(b) FAEEEZEEBASHH

AEBEZEBABZFM(BRENARATR
EERETEREHMER ZFHFH) BERHE
i, 20K
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BE—ZT—+&=ZA=+—HILtFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 35. MEEREEREREE

AND POLICIES

The Group’s activities expose the Group to a variety $'§§ BEBSAEBR AT ZEBHERRE - BFEME
of financial risks which comprise market risk (including o (BIEINERS R ERER) - ZERE KRE
foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk éf%ﬂ c REB v EERREERENENSR™
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management B AR TERM - WEKIgEANEFBTBRIRZE
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets ERRZERERE - NEBRB Y ETMAXZ
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the B BB ERIES - A EFLEHERE
Group’s financial performance. The Group currently o WHETEFE %I@}\E\%&* S5 LAOTREITESR
does not have any written risk management policies & DA S 38 N BE 2 B 745 o [

and guidelines. However, the board of directors meets
periodically and cooperates closely with key
management to analyse and formulate strategies to
manage and monitor financial risks.

The Group is not engaged in trading of financial assets REBUVENREURKSBEZC CMEEES - K

for speculative purposes. The most significant financial SEES 2 xEEZPBERLB@RNOT

risks to which the Group is exposed to be described

below.

(@) Interest rate risk (@) FIRER
Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair FMEREBIEsRIAZAAEXIRE RERA
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will TSN EREYMER RS AR KEEZ
fluctuate because of changes in market interest WARZEREREERN E NI TIGFIRE
rate. The Group’s income and operating cash o E - AEBZHMEREB ETERH ?;zl
flows are substantially independent of changes EFERFBFEFTEZRITERRIBITR
in market interest rates. The Group’s interest HEMER - LWEBFIEREEFEFT B ZIR
rate risk mainly arises from deposits at banks TRHEMERSARERSFEERESREF
and bank and other loans which bore interests ZRABEALBEFNERR - RERERE AR
at fixed and floating interest rates. Bank and giEs BB MR RESEIEERIE2T

other loans arranged at variable rates and fixed
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk
respectively. The interest rate and repayment
terms of the borrowing outstanding at the end
of the reporting period are disclosed in note 27.

1 76 Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Interest rate sensitivity

If the interest rates had been increased/
decreased by 100 basis points at the beginning
of the year and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s profit after tax for the year
and retained profits would increase/decrease by
approximately RMB2,520,000 (2016: RMB1,353,000)
respectively.

The 100 basis point increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rate over
the period until the next annual reporting date.
Changes in saving interest rates have no impact
on the Group’s other components of equity. The
assumed changes in interest rates are
considered to be reasonably possible based on
observation of current market conditions and
represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rate over
the next twelve month period.

The sensitivity analysis included in the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2016
has been prepared on the same basis.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the
Group. The Group’s exposure to credit risk
mainly arises from granting credit to customers
in the ordinary course of its operations. The
Group is also exposed to credit risk arising from
the provision of financial guarantees and the
amounts of which are disclosed in note 33.

The Group continuously monitors defaults of
customers and other counterparties, identified
either individually or by group, and incorporate
this information into its credit risk controls. The
Group’s policy is to deal only with creditworthy
counterparties.

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZ T —+F=A=+—HIFE

35. MEERERE B EREEEK (&)

(a)

(b)

MREb (&)

FIEHBE

i 25 ) 2 R #7038 0, R 4> 100 B B T P
BEMEERFIE  NEEFARK ST
RRE®EMDBIEM B HARE
2,520,0007C (ZZF— /R4 : AKR%¥ 1,353,000
JT) °

100 fEIEF HO I8 pn s DR R EFEEH M X R
HAEZ TEFERS A MH N KRS58
BB  HENTEPUASEEBE
BRDUEZE - WREBERAKFHIHNN -
MEBREBWR /AR RMAKRERE
B ERNARE+ —ER AR KRG IE AL
HERFHE

HE_Z-—RF=ZA=+—BHLEFEHKR
RATENGURED T IRERELERE -

FERR
EERARESBTAZHFIRERES R
TRZIGRBEITHEE(E R Y AN R EER I
BiRZAR AKBEHCEERREER
KEREAREKBETATFELEE -
ARETEYREREVBERAELEZ(E
EEk  SREENMESS-

AEBEBERERHARNER TP RE
HFHZHERER  LHERERFAR
EERREH - ARERRRBEREER
BRUZHF IR °

EBEREEERATF
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #HZ=—%

—tFZA=Z+-HILFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

178 )

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s management considers that all the
above financial assets that are not impaired for
at the end of reporting period are of good credit
quality, including those that are past due.

None of the Group’s financial assets are secured
by collateral or other credit enhancements.

In respect of accounts and other receivables,
the Group is not exposed to any significant
credit risk exposure to any single counterparty
or any group of counterparties having similar
characteristics. The credit risk for cash at bank
is considered negligible, since the counterparties
are reputable banks with high quality external
credit ratings.

Foreign currency risk

Most of the Group’s transactions are carried out
in RMB which is the functional currency of most
of the group entities. Exposures to currency
exchange rates arise from certain of the Group’s
cash and bank balances and bank loans which
are denominated in HK$, and US$. The Group
does not use derivative financial instruments to
hedge its foreign currency risk. The Group
reviews its foreign currency exposures regularly
and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arises.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)
Foreign currency risk exposure

The following table details the Group’s exposure
at the reporting date to foreign currency risk from
bank balances and bank loans denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZ T —+F=A=+—HIFE

MEEREEBRRBR (H)

SRR
SHE 7

TRV TR®wE AR B RNEEAINE (Br
ARAREMB AT 2EEEIN FIEZ R
TTRBRIRITERZ IMNERR

2017 2016
=5
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETRE ARBTT
Bank deposits denominated in ATBIEHIME 7 SRITFER
— HKS — BT 1,046 47
— USs$ — X7t 76 35
Bank loans denominated in ATHEBREZIRITER
— Us$ = SETT, (169,429) (158,559)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the approximate
change in the Group’s profit for the year in
response to a 5% appreciation in respective
foreign currencies against the Group’s functional
currencies. There is no impact on other
components of consolidated equity in response
to the general increase in the following foreign
currency rates.

IEBBE AT

TRETRAEE  BRAMNEAAKREZY
BEEBTHES% - REBEN 2 BOES -
PATSNESBE 3 | 7+ 4R A& #E 2 2 EL A AR B BD

=2/

AN B2 488
DR E o

2017 2016
—® e _—T X
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE ARETT

Effect on profit for the year and HENRBFRRE

retained profits R 7 A

— USs$ — XL (8,468) (7,926)
— HK$ — BT 52 -

EEMAEANEZRZRFIENERLT K
REERSBMULINELARBES &
HU LR ERELBBARNRAFE -

A weakening of the above foreign currencies
against RMB at each reporting date would have
had the equal but opposite effect to the amounts
shown above, on the basis that all other variables
remain constant.

EBEREEERATF
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-—Z—tF=A=1+—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)

180 )

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated
with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The
Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of
settlement of financial liabilities, including trade
and other payables and bank and other loans,
and its financial obligations, and also in respect
of its cash flow management.

The cash management of all operating entities is
centralised, including the raising of funds to
cover expected cash demands. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer terms.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities based on the remaining contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows.

Specifically, for term loans which contain a
repayment on demand clause which can be
exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the
analysis shows the cash outflow based on the
earliest period in which the entity can be
required to pay, that is if the lenders were to
invoke their unconditional rights to call the loans
with immediate effect. The maturity analysis for
other bank borrowings is prepared based on the
scheduled repayment dates.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZ=_ZT—tF=A=+—HIEFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 35.
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

MEEREEBRRBR (H)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d #REBELERE(E)

On demand Total Total
or within More than undiscounted carrying
one year one year amount amount
EER
R—FR —FpE AR REAE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 31 March 2017 R-ZB—+tH&=ZA=+—-H
Accounts payable [ BE TR 79,897 - 79,897 79,897
Accruals and other payables FEEHRUIE M E b B TRIB 198,934 - 198,934 198,934
Bank and other loans RITREME 277,632 825,569 1,103,201 832,823
556,463 825,569 1,382,032 1,111,654
Financial guarantee issued: BAER 2 R -
Maximum amount guaranteed S £ 4 %8 (Fif5533)
(note 33) 871,976 - 871,976 -
At 31 March 2016 R-B-RE=HA=1+—-H
Accounts payable JERERA 48,809 = 48,809 48,809
Accruals and other payables e FOE M E b N FE 262,536 - 262,536 262,536
Bank and other loans RITREME 410,676 624,322 1,034,998 815,201
722,021 624,322 1,346,343 1,126,546
Financial guarantee issued: BER 2 SR -
Maximum amount guaranteed S &4 %8 (Fif5£33)
(note 33) 665,749 s 665,749 i

At 31 March 2017 and 2016, the Company’s
held no material financial liabilities and the
Company ensure that it maintains sufficient
financial support from Group’s subsidiaries to
meet its liquidity requirements.

The management has built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the
management of the Group’s short, medium and
long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk
by maintaining adequate reserves, banking
facilities and reserve banking facilities, and by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual
cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of
financial assets and liabilities.

R Lo el e S SR e S
ARBYERFEERSHBEE  AAAARE
SEMERREASEMN B AR MR
HEAENERBESHFER -

EEECEVEEZADESRBRERER
NEBAREEH  FHEERMES AW
ERBESZEEFTR  AEEBBERFR
REE ROGEEMEBRROTEERE &
FEERFREARERRERE  YERHER

BENAEIHEREERBDESER

EBEREEERATF
2016/17 F1R
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-—Z—tF=A=1+—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 35. BIRERERE R ZERECK ()
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(e) Fair value (e) ARE
The fair value of the Group’s current financial ARASEE 2 REemEERBEINFRRY
assets and liabilities are not materially different THRIE EzEem T Az ANER
from their carrying amounts because of EFEAABEYEEAER - ARBEHECE
immediate or short term maturity of these EEEAABIEEANER @ W AKIFEIE
financial instruments. The fair value of non- mBeRMEERAGBIANE-
current financial assets and liabilities is not
disclosed because the carrying values are not
materially different from the fair values at the
reporting date.

()  Fair value measurements recognised in the (l REBRRREBRZOAETE

182 )

statement of financial position

The following table presents financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value in the statement
of financial position in accordance with the fair
value hierarchy. The hierarchy groups financial
assets and liabilities into three levels based on
the relative reliability of significant inputs used in
measuring the fair value of these financial assets
and liabilities. The fair value hierarchy has the
following levels:

TRENREAABEANMBRARKRZRA
REFENEHEENREE ERANKS
REELABRGIERSEMEENRBER
RANEZHABBNOEEISEREN /= °
RIEBRDBAT =M

e Level1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in e F1f: HARABEREBENERMISZN
active markets for identical B CREAR) -
assets and liabilities;

e level2: inputs other than quoted prices o FoM: BFEALBEMREIN  ZE
included within Level 1 that are EXBENESE (FIERE) sk
observable for the asset or A (PR EER) TBR
liability, either directly (i.e. as WARIE &
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices); and

e Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability o ZE3W: EBEEXABWIHKEBRAIBRET

that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable

SEIRN R ARE (BT A &
R ABIER) °

inputs).
The level in the fair value hierarchy within which TREEETERBIENAABEERARER
the financial asset or liability is categorised in its HARBFEBERNRER ABIBKEE
entirety is based on the lowest level of input that TE °

is significant to the fair value measurement.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BZ=_ZT—tF=A=+—HIEFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

()  Fair value measurements recognised in the )
statement of financial position (Continued)

35. MEERERE B EREEEK (&)
REBERRZER 2D AEE )

The financial assets measured at fair value in the

REBHRRKRBRAREFENEHEEDE

statement of financial position are grouped into BRINTNAAERER
the fair value hierarchy as follows:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£-R £-R F=H st
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
it AR¥Tr AR%Tn ARETR AR%®TrR
Year ended 31 March 2017 BE-E—+5F
ZA=+-HLFE
Assets BE
Contingent consideration HARE (i - - 6,625 6,625
Unlisted put option FE TR HARE (i) o - 445 445
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—1 F— E=R Feb
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB’000
iz  ARBTT AR®TT ARBTT AR%TR
Year ended 31 March 2016 BE-_Z-—AE
ZA=T-HLEE
Assets BE
Contingent consideration FIARIE (i = - 3,483 3,483
Unlisted put option I TR B (i - - 1,295 1,295
There were no transfers between levels during FERNBR 2 B i o
the year.
The movements in fair measurements within UTNABFRNE=ZMRATEFEE
Level 3 during the year are as follows:
Group
rE
2017 2016
—ZE—+tF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETFT
Financial assets at fair value through FRERERAALBETENS R
profit or loss — non-current BE — RS
Opening balance FEER 4,778 -
Purchases A _ 4,778
Total gains recognised in the consolidated 7474 2 E WA R ER AU ES
statement of comprehensive income 1A% 2,292 =
Closing balance FIREER 7,070 4,778
EREREMERAR

2016/17 F1R
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 BE—ZT—+&=ZA=+—HILtFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 35. BIRERERE R ZERECK ()
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(f)

184 )

Fair value measurements recognised in the )

statement of financial position (Continued)

The methods and valuation techniques used for
the purpose of measuring fair value are
unchanged compared to the previous reporting
periods.

(i)  Contingent consideration

The fair value of contingent consideration
has been determined by a firm of
independent professional valuer. Details
please see note 19 for disclosures of the
measurement of contingent consideration.

The fair value of the contingent consideration
arrangement of RMB6,625,000 (2016:
RMB3,483,000) was estimated by applying
the discounted cash flow method. The fair
value estimates are based on a discount
rate of 15.8% (2016: 15.4%) and assumed
probability adjusted results in Zhejiang Davi
ranging from loss of approximately
RMB5,187,000 to profit of approximately
RMB2,753,000 (2016: profit of approximately
RMB4,262,000 to RMB16,248,000). This is
a level 3 fair value measurement. The key
unobservable assumptions in calculating
this profit are as follows:

REBERRZER 2D AEE ()

PR B AR S 7% R R AT S 3R
25 HARI AR L 3 S -

(i)

HARE

HAREBZARNER KB LEEGE
BIfTET - kAR EBAE 2 REFIES
2HMIFE19 ©

FARELE 2 AR BEARG6,625,000
T(ZE—RF: AR¥3,483,0007T)
TERRESRET A GHTFIESE -
NABEMEERMIRE158%(ZF
—NF 1 15.4%)FTE KRNI KA
AREAEXENTEBEBHOARE
5,187,0007Ei/mﬂ%’7AE?§52,753,000
T(ZE—XNF: GAHARE
4,262,000 E A R #16,248,0007T) °
ZERBEZQRANEFE  FTEZ =
ZEERAEBRBERAT

Range
&=
2017 2016
it B —T—XEF

Assumptions: (CE3
Revenue (RMB’000) WA (ARBFT)
Gross margin (%) FEFNE (%)

Assuming all other variables is held
constant; an increase in revenue by
RMB5,000,000 each year would decrease
the contingent consideration by a further
RMB538,000 (2016: RMB181,000), an
increase in gross margin by 1% each year
would decrease the contingent
consideration by RMB175,000 (2016:
RMB220,000).

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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20%-28% 32%-33%

BEFMBHEMERRIFITE  SFKRA
2 hn A B # 5,000,000 7T #5354 3k AR 4K
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(f)  Fair value measurements recognised in the
statement of financial position (Continued)
(i)  Unlisted put option

The fair value of the unlisted put option
has been determined by a firm of
independent professional valuer by using
a binomial option pricing model.

Significant unobservable inputs included:

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZ T —+F=A=+—HIFE

35.

MEEREEBRRBR (H)
(H REBRRRERZDAEEGE
(i) FLEHBRRE
FLTREREZ ANERA—RELE

EEEMTEBER _BAREEER

METF -

FTETAEEZBABBEE

Equity value IREEE
Expected Dividend yield B HRR% B

Annual risk free rate
Average expected volatility
Expected term

Increase in the average expected volatility,
expected terms and expected dividend
yield would increase the fair value of the
unlisted put option.

Increase in the equity value and annual
risk-free rate would decrease the fair value
of the unlisted put option.

4 4 B K
AT IR
TEEEIR

2017 2016
—E—t5F S ANCS
RMB21,473,000 RMB23,147,000
ARYE AR
21,473,000 JT 23,147,0007T
Nil Nil

& i

2.99% 2.49%

46% 48%

2.75 years 3.75 years
2.75%F 3.75%F

i Ao TR AR R 8 A0 - TR HARR M TR AR
BB EFIBINFE EHREEIREZ AR(E -

P i B 1A & B R & B R KR A JF
EHREREZASE

EBEREEERATF
2016/17 F1R
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-—Z—tF=A=1+—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 35.

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(9)

186 )

Summary of financial assets and liabilities (9)

by category

The categories of financial assets and liabilities
included in the consolidated statements of

financial position and the headings in which they

are included are as follows:

EEREEBRRBR (H)

TRMEEREERERNE D 2HE

AT BREGAMBRARZERMEER
BEERAREMAZIAR :

2017 2016
—E—+tHF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETIT
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets measured at fair value IR AR B EC S REE
Financial assets at fair value through BARERERSIERZ
profit or loss STREE 7,070 4,778
Loans and receivables B W GRIE
Accounts receivable U AR 3K 1,524 2,657
Other receivables E b jE W GRIE 34,282 45,654
Structured bank balances EEEIRITER 1,500 =
Pledged deposits SRR EESN 221,558 310,960
Cash and bank balances IREe NMIRITHER 264,392 119,526
523,256 478,797
Available-for-sale investments at cost BRI ERO AT HERE 8,627 -
538,953 483,575
Financial liabilities cRas
Financial liabilities measured at REHEN AT ECSRAE
amortised cost
Accounts payable FETBR K 79,897 48,809
Other payables and accruals B FE A BB K FE T RUR 198,934 262,536
Bank and other loans RITMEMER 832,823 815,201
1,111,654 1,126,546

At the end of reporting period, the carrying
values of loans and receivables, available-for-
sale investments and financial liabilities

HASERE -

measured at amortised costs are approximate

their fair value.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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36.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

(i) To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, so that it continues to provide
returns and benefits for stakeholders;

(i)  To support the Group’s stability and growth;
and

(i)  To provide capital for the purpose of strengthening
the Group’s risk management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure
and shareholder returns, taking into consideration the
future capital requirements of the Group and capital
efficiency, prevailing and projected profitability,
projected operating cash flows, projected capital
expenditures and projected strategic investment
opportunities. The Group currently does not adopt
any formal dividend policy.

Management regards total equity as capital. The amount
of capital as at 31 March 2017 amounted to approximately
RMB1,597,254,000 (2016: RMB1,523,746,000), which
the management considers as optimal having
considered the projected capital expenditures and the
projected strategic investment opportunities. The net
debts-to-equity ratio at 31 March 2017 and 2016
were as follows:

e P B AR M R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZ T —+F=A=+—HIFE

EXEE
AEEEREACZARRS

() HFAKREREQLL 28N NEELER
Fr A AT REH LM

(i) XEAEEZBEMER: X

(i) FREBEAIBRAEE 2 RREIEES -

REEBET P REREERNERE - URRE
BREEARBIIEHFKERRD®R  TEBAE
BARAKESFBREAKK - B RFAR 2T 8
N BRKERESRE - FRREARR N TR SRS
MREWS - NEE B AT B R AT E RS
% o

EEESERBAERRERN RZZE—+tF=H
=+—H ' EXeENRARKE1,597,254,000 T
ZE—NF: AR¥1,523,746,0007T) c BIEE
KEBBTEAAZT RFEFRBEERE#KESE R
AZESEBERE RN _Z—tFR_T—RF=
A=1T—B &R FEEESLLENT -

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETT
Accounts payable FEBRE R 79,897 48,809
Accruals, receipts in advance and FEETHUIA ~ TRUMGRIE R H A
other payables FERT ZRIB 466,773 813,281
Bank and other loans RITREAME K 832,823 815,201
1,379,493 1,677,291
Less: Cash and bank balances B Be RIBTTES (264,392) (119,526)
Pledged deposits EHEBER (221,558) (310,960)
Structured bank balances EEMIRITAER (1,500) =
Net debts B 55 892,043 1,246,805
Equity s 1,597,254 1,523,746
Net debts to equity ratio B FEEERE X 56% 82%

2016/17 F1R
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HEZE-—Z—tF=A=1+—HILFE

37. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF 37. ERATFBEMRRE

FINANCIAL POSITION

2017 2016
—E—+F —E-REF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T ARET T ARET T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NG 15 285,452 285,452
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables TE A FRIE & H Ath fE YRR 248 875
Amounts due from subsidiaries N NGIE /S 499,884 461,867
Pledged deposits BEIRFR 714 -
Cash and bank balances Re RIRIT4 94 82
500,940 462,824
Current liabilities REBAE
Accruals and other payables FEFT I8 & B Ath FE AT 3R 64 64
Amounts due to subsidiaries B AR RIE 8,083 8,083
Bank loans RITER 169,429 N
177,576 8,147
Net current assets REBEEFE 323,364 454,677
Total assets less current liabilities BEERARBAR 608,816 740,129
Non-current liabilities FRBEMF
Bank loans RITER - 158,559
Net assets EEFE 608,816 581,570
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to the Company’s 72 T#EH A
owners LR
Share capital RE 2R 29 20,735 10,193
Reserves & 30 588,081 571,377
Total equity ERBE 608,816 581,570
Chan Heung Ling Shi Feng
3R e 22 Ak
Director Director
EE =
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Financial Summa

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS me¥EE

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
—E-=F ZZE-NF —ZT-—I1F T—RF =FT—tF
RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 | RMB’000
ARBTIT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTR

Revenue WA 559,918 476,339 500,874 597,023 693,512
Profit before income tax % FT15% BR 198,180 214,363 144,447 122,848 122,964
Income tax expense FIS iR (72,960) (73,400) (54,574) (29,743) (49,290)
Profit for the year FRBEF 125,220 140,963 89,873 93,105 73,674
Attributable to: AT AL
Owners of the Company ZIN/NCIEZ PN 126,444 143,768 92,926 94,966 52,364
Non-controlling interests FEFE IS RE RS (1,224) (2,805) (3,053) (1,861) 21,310
125,220 140,963 89,873 93,105 73,674

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, EQUITY AND LIABILITIES REEE - RzRAE

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
ZE—=F ZZT—NOF ZT—HF ZT—RF ZEB—tF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’000 ' RMB’000
ARETFTT AREFTT ARETRT ARETT AR®TR

ASSETS BE

Non-current assets EREEE 518,545 870,471 695,669 911,771 817,209
Current assets MBEE 1,802,687 2,388,071 3,076,132 2,484,435 = 2,350,437
Total assets wEE 2,321,232 3,258,542 3,771,801 3,396,206 3,167,646
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES #E&ZRERE

Total equity TS AREE 1,191,064 1,306,542 1,397,949 1,523,746 = 1,597,254
Non-current liabilities ERHasE 436,478 793,566 534,411 520,909 684,601
Current liabilities mBBE 693,690 1,158,434 1,839,441 1,351,551 885,791
Total liabilities FES=r= 1,130,168 1,952,000 2,373,852 1,872,460 | 1,570,392
Total equity and liabilities R LB ERE 2,321,232 3,258,542 3,771,801 3,396,206 = 3,167,646

EBEREEERATF
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Financial Summary

MBHE

Key Financial Ratio FEU B E 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
—T-=F ZT—NF —T-HF ZT—F =B tF
Gross profit margin (%) FFIE (%) 34.1 31.9 271 13.4 19.3
Net profit margin (%) 4 FI 2R (%) 22.4 29.6 17.9 15.6 10.6
Gearing ratio (%) BAREE EE (%)
(Note 1) (Kiat 1) 25.5 48.0 48.2 37.1 42.4
Current ratio (times) BN (1)
(Note 2) (Kizz2) 2.60 2.06 1.67 1.84 2.65
Earnings per share BREF(ARES)
(RMB cents) (Note 3) (H1#£3) 10.54 11.98 7.74 3.88 2.13
(Restated)
€ =)
Net asset value per share  ANATIARHERS B AFES
attributable to owner of FRFEE(ARE)
the Company (RMB) (Kizt4)
(Note 4) 0.83 0.91 0.99 1.07 0.56
Note 1: Gearing ratio is measured by borrowings (total amount of bank Hiat1: BREEGEH RUEE(RITRAMEZEEE) B G
and other loans) less related deposit collateral over total equity. TRl A AR BT E -
Note 2: Current ratio represents total current assets divided by total Hiato : B RIS B EEEERAB ERNEEFE R EEE B4
current liabilities as at the end of the Year. 5H o
Note 3: The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the Kt 3 : R E R BFIIZ K EE KN G JRIEIEE A ML T G K E
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company and B E 7T EER I F R S5 E -
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during
the Year.
After the ordinary resolution had been approved by the BEEAZER - E—NEFLtA -+ NNAETZREA
Shareholders at the AGM held on 26 July 2016, a total of FERXDIEREH EE  RIBAIRSETT R=ZZF—XNE/NH
1,232,000,000 new Shares were allotted and issued pursuant +—HA& #1,232,000,000 A% %7 AR FE AL 55 e Z 7T  ATHRZ¥7T
to the Bonus Issue on 11 August 2016. The weighted average R-ZFE—NFNA+—HZHK# Bt E—_T—tHFER
number of ordinary Shares for the purposes of calculating basic HIREFI 2 & 38 A 0 HE - 15 2 76 FE 1 58 2 = 2,464,000,000
earnings per share for FY2017 had been retrospectively R (ZZF—NFHIF : 2,446,338,798 %) °
adjusted to 2,464,000,000 Shares (FY2016: 2,446,338,798
Shares) after completion of the Bonus Issue on 12 August
2016.
Note 4: Net asset value per share attributable to owners of the izt 4 « R GIHEEN B IR FEEE NG EE AL L
Company represents equity attributable to the Company’s REFERE BT EBERE -
owners divided by number of ordinary shares in issue as at the
end of the Year.
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Property Portfolio

MEAS

Approximate
Site Areain  Planned/Actual Percentage  Expected
Respect of Entire Gross Floor Effective Group Soldand  Completion
Location Type Project (sq.m.) Area(sqm,)  Tenure Interest Delivered  Date
R8/8R BER
EEERM BEER FEREEER REH  BRAI
% £ FHER(TAR) (FHK) #8 Bi Bttt  AE
COMPLETED PROPERTIES
BRINE
Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan N 0. 1568 Honggu Avenue, RC 80,621 R: 116214 R Expiring on 100% R 98%  Completed
Phase 2 Honggu Tan Central District, (: 32,490 16 September 2073 G:97%
Nanchang City, Jiangxi C: Expiring on
Province, the PRC 16 September 2043
(BEMATNR-H) HEIEEBET RAZZLZE BRI
g Sl AATARER
TAKE 15685 C:AZZM=%
NATRBER
Various retai units and No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, C 80,621 C: 442 Bxpiring on 100% C:—  Completed
various office units of Sino Honggu Tan Central District, 16 September 2043
Harbour Kaixuan Center, Nanchang City, Jiangxi
Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan Province, the PRC
(REMASIEERS D FEIREEET RZEM=F BRI
ETREESR gy Sl NATRBER
ETETRE(N) HAKE 15685
Nanchang Sino Harbour No. 888 Huang Jia Hu West RC 719,548 C:6,174  C:Expiring on 55% C:—  Completed
Kaixuan City Zone 1 Road, Nanchang 18 May 2052
— Low rise residential Economic and Technology
annexed with commercial Development Zone,
Nanchang City, Jiangxi
Province, the PRC
(BEEANES 1 5 TATEERET GRZFRzE BRI
-BELTERER) BEEERIRER TATNRER
EM5A 6883
Nanchang Sino Harbour No. 888 Huang Jia Hu West RC 719,548 R:3409%  R:Expringon 55% R10%  Completed
Kaixuan City Zone 2 Road, Nanchang C: 676 18 May 2072 G-
— Town house Economic and Technology C: Expiring on
Development Zone, 18 May 2062
Nanchang City, Jiangxi
Province, the PRC
(REEEdiEie s HEIEABEM RAZZLZE BRI
-ERNE) BEEERITRER TATNBER
BRI 6885 CRZZRZE
TATNBER

EBEREEERATF
2016/17 F1R < 191




Property Portfolio

MEES

Approximate
Site Areain  Planned/Actual Percentage  Expected
Respect of Entire Gross Floor Effective Group Soldand  Completion
Location Type Project (sq.m.) Area(sqm.,)  Tenure Interest Delivered  Date
R8/8% 2ER
EEERM BEER FEREEER RMEH  BRAI
1% £l EHER(THR) (FHK) #8 Bi BEfitt BH
COMPLETED PROPERTIES (continued)
BRINES)
Nanchang Sino Harbour No. 888 Huang Jia Hu West RC 719,548 C:1,844  C:Expiring on 55% C:—  Completed
Kaixuan City Zone 3 Road, Nanchang 18 May 2052
— High rise residential annex Economic and Technology
with commercial Development Zone,
Nanchang City, Jiangxi
Province, the PRC
(BRI H HEIRERET CRZZnZE BRI
-REfTERES) BEEERIRER EATNBER
BRI 6885
Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting No. 766 Jinchao Avenue, RC 190,753 R89,115  R: Expiing on 100% R 98%  Completed
Yuan Phase 1 Fuzhou City, Jiangxi C: 4,664 31 January 2080 C: 48%
Province, the PRC C: Expiring on
31 January 2050
ENERER -5 REIREEMT RAZENEE BRI
SERET6H —A=t-RER
CRZZRTE
—A=t-RER
Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting No. 766 Jinchao Avenue, RC 190,753 R 79,933  R:Expiing on 100% R %%  Completed
Yuan Phase 2 Fuzhou City, Jiangxi (: 2,383 31 January 2080 G:67%
Province, the PRC C: Expiring on
31 January 2050
ENERER S REIREEMT R:RZZNEE BRI
SERETOH —A=t-RER
C:R-Z1%F
—A=t-RER
Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting No. 766 Jinchao Avenue, RC 190,753 R 117177 R Expiring on 100% R 9%  Completed
Yuan Phase 3 Fuzhou City, Jiangxi Province, G:8,717 31 January 2080 G-
the PRC G: Expiring on
31 January 2050
ENERER =5 HETREEM T R:RZZENEE BRI
SERET6H —A=t-RER
C:R-Z1%F
—A=t-RER
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Property Portfolic

Approximate
Site Areain  Planned/Actual Percentage  Expected
Respect of Entire Gross Floor Effective Group Soldand  Completion
Location Type Project (sq.m.) Area(sqm,)  Tenure Interest Delivered  Date
RE/ER 2ER
RN BEEE IEREER REEH BRI
& BAl EHER(THX) (T5k) &8 Bi BEfitt BH
COMPLETED PROPERTIES (continued)
BRINEE)
Yichun Royal Lake City No. 299 Yiyang Avenue, RC 607,084 R: 104,000 R Expiring on 100% R 76%  Completed
Phase 1 Yuanzhou District, Yichun City, G611 29 March 2077 (: 66%
Jiangxi Province, the PRC C: Expiring on
29 March 2047
EEMN -5 HEIREEAT RiRZZttE BAT
RNEEREAE99% ZAZTNAER
C R-ZMtF
ZAZTNAER
Yichun Royal Lake City No. 299 Yiyang Avenue, R 607,084 R 133921 R Expiring on 100% R68%  Completed
Phase 2 Yuanzhou District, 29 March 2077
Yichun City, Jiangxi C: Expiring on
Province, the PRC 29 March 2047
EEMNE HEIREEAT RiRZZttE BART
RNEERAE99% ZAZTNAER
C RZZMtF
ZAZTNAER
PROPERTIES HELD UNDER DEVELOPMENT
BRI
Han Zhi Yun Commercial Southwest junction of C 20,482 (:81926  Expiring on 100% NA - Q4CY2018
Centre* Moganshan Road and 6 April 2064
Shenhua Road, Gongshu
District, Hangzhou City,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC
EZBERRL REIEMNTEER RZTHME iR ZTNE
EFIERREAEHD MAXAER FmE
BT
Formerly known as Sino Harbour Kaixuan Square
* o HEER SRS
EREREEERAA
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Property Portfolio

MEES

Approximate
Site Areain  Planned/Actual Percentage  Expected
Respect of Entire Gross Floor Effective Group Soldand  Completion
Location Type Project (sq.m.) Area(sqm.,)  Tenure Interest Delivered  Date
RE/ER 2ER
BEEEN BEER FEREEER REEH BRI
1% £l EHER(THR) (FhK) #8 5 BEfitt BH
FUTURE PROJECTS
ARER
Nanchang Sino Harbour No. 888 Huang Jia Hu West RC 719,548 R: 746425 R Expiring on 55% N/A Under
Kaixuan City Zone 4-13 Road, Nanchang C: 156,472 18 May 2072 planning
Economic and Technology C: Expiring on
Development Zone, 18 May 2052
Nanchang City, Jiangxi
Province, the PRC
HEEREN4-1348E REIRERER R:RZTtZf TaR o aE
HEMERIALE BATNRER
BRI 6885 CR-ER-F
TATNBER
Yichun Royal Lake No. 299 Yiyang Avent, RC 607,084 RC: 1,047,088 R Expiring on 50% N/A Under
City Phase 3-6 Yuanzhou District, 29 March 2077 planning
Yichun City, Jiangxi C: Expiring on
Province, the PRC 29 March 2047
EEMIA=Z/E REIREEED RiRZZttE AER  HER
RNEEBAE2905 SAZTHRER
C:RZZMEE
ZAZThRER
Leping Project Hushan Meiyuan Reclamation RC 333,341 RC:394800 R Expiring on 51% NA  Under
Fam, Leping City, Jiangxi 17 June 2074 planning
Province, the PRC C: Expiring on
17 June 2044
£VER REIREETH R:INZZthE AaR o iE
itz by RATERER
C:R-TEmE
AATTRER
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Property Portfolio

MEAS

Approximate
Site Areain  Planned/Actual Percentage  Expected
Respect of Entire Gross Floor Effective Group Soldand  Completion
Location Type Project (sq.m.) Area(sqm,)  Tenure Interest Delivered  Date
R8/8R BER
EEERM BEER FEREEER RN BRI
% £l EHER(TAR) (ThXK)  E8 Ba i AE
PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT
BERERNZ
Levels 1and 2 of Block 2, Units  No. 1568 Honggu Avente, C N/A C:4852  C:Expiring on 100% N/A - Completed
021006 on Level 1 of Block 6, Honggu Tan Central 16 September 2043
Unit 105 and Level 1 of Block 7 District, Nanchang City,
of Sino Harbour Kaixuan Center  Jiangxi Province, the PRC
and a 3-storey kindergarten of
Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan
HEAANECE-R-E- PEIEEEET Nam C:R-ZMm=%F AER BRI
AE-E02E06% - gy Sl NATRBER
ERSERLLE-F ATARE 15685
1055 R-E=EBHEE
Various retail units on Levels 1-4 No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, C N/A G:25,720  C: Expiing on 100% N/A - Completed
and various office units on Honggu Tan Central 16 September 2043
Levels 6-24 of Sino Harbour District, Nanchang City,
Kaixuan Center, Nanchang Jiangxi Province, the PRC
Honggu Kaixuan
MEAAEERS T, PEIREEET il C:WZZM=%F AER BRI
HEETSERMR6UE AAERLE AATREER
ATEFEREL ATARIE 15685
Various refail units on Levels 1 No. 299 Yiyang Avenue, C N/A G:5907  C: Expiring on 100% N/A~ Completed
and 2 of Blocks 1103, 6,7,9,  Yuanzhou District, 29 March 2047
10,11, 12and 35 t0 37 of Yichun City, Jiangxi
Yichun Royal Lake City Province, the PRC
BEERE123-6:7-0 PEIREEED i C:WZEMtE TER BRI
1011 12RBETEE-  RMEERAE200% =R-thRER
R-BETTEER
PROPERTIES OCCUPIED BY THE GROUP
hAREEEZ N
Various retail units on Levels -4, No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, C N/A G:6,909  C:Expiring on 100% N/A - Completed
25/F and 26/F, Sino Harbour Honggu Tan Central District, 16 September 2043
Kaixuan Center, Nanchang Nanchang City, Jiangxi
Honggu Kaixuan Province, the PRC
REfAdEERERL  REIREEET Qi C:HZEM=F AER BRI
HEETEREERR E Lo NATRBER
BRE ATARE 15685
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Property Portfolio

MEES

Approximate
Site Areain  Planned/Actual Percentage  Expected
Respect of Entire Gross Floor Effective Group Soldand  Completion
Location Type Project (sq.m.) Area(sqm.,)  Tenure Interest Delivered  Date
RE/ER 2ER
RN BEER IERLEER REEH BRI
] £l EHER(THR) (FHK) #8 Bi BEfitt BH
Room 1502 of Entrance B of No. 28 Zhangshan West Road, R N/A R 166 R: Expiring on June 2069 100% N/A - Completed
the South Building of Minshi Xihu District, Nanchang City,
Garden Jiangxi Province, The PRC
LENEMEBENISNE  HEIREEENAME TR R:R B NERRER MER BRI
R 285 \
R: (%
R:  Residential C:  ARRAEM
C: Commercial and other

[ &2 EmE | R [Fast 8 T AR DERERERRERG 51 E1F
The “Planned Gross Floor Area” and "Expected Completion Date” are i o R EBIE A BEREIR B A E TTEE) o
based on the best estimate by the management. These figures may
change as the projects progress.
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